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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO

P.O. BOX 839966
SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78283-3966

March 30, 2009

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council:

It is my pleasure to present the City of San Antonio’s (City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the fiscal year-ended September 30, 2008. These financial statements were prepared by the City’s Finance
Department and audited by the public accounting firm of Grant Thornton, LLP. As reflected in the Independent
Auditors’ Report, the City’s financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of
the City.

The Management Discussion and Analysis, (MD&A) beginning on page 1, provides a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. This transmittal letter complements the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it.

The audit of the aforementioned independent auditors was also designed to meet the requirements of the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Audit of State
and Local Government and Nonprofit Organizations, and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. The
Independent Auditors’ Report on the basic financial statements, MD&A (required supplementary information),
and required disclosures and schedules are included in the Financial Section of this CAFR. Required reports and
schedules mandated by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, OMB Circular A-133, and the State of Texas
Single Audit Circular are in separate documents. Copies are available upon request.

CITY SERVICES

The City is a home rule city that was incorporated in 1837 and chartered in 1951. The City Charter provides for
a Council-Manager form of government, subject only to the limitations imposed by the Texas Constitution and
the City Charter, all powers of the City are vested in an elective Council (the “City Council”) which enacts
legislation, adopts budgets and determines policy. The City Council is comprised of 11 members, with ten
members elected from single-member districts, and the Mayor elected at-large. An amendment to the City
Charter was passed at the November 4, 2008 election, which revised the terms of the office of the Mayor or a
member of the City Council to four full two-year terms of office, from the existing two full two-year terms, but
prohibit the current or former Mayors or current or former members of the City Council from being elected to
more than two full two-year terms. The City Council also appoints a City Manager who executes the laws and
administers the government of the City, and serves as the City’s Chief Administrative Officer. The City Manager

serves at the pleasure of the City Council.

The City is located in South Central Texas, approximately 75 miles south of the state capital of Austin and
serves as the county seat for Bexar County. San Antonians enjoy first-rate medical services, a convenient and
efficient airport, an excellent highway system, mild weather, and superb recreation choices, including:
championship golf courses, theme parks, historical attractions, museums, professional sporting attractions, and
a lively performing arts environment. As of September 30, 2008, the City’s geographic area was approximately
467 square miles; this is down from fiscal year 2007 due to the de-annexation of a portion of the south side to
City South Management. The United States Census Bureau cites the City as the second most populated city in
the State of Texas with 1,328,984 citizens and is ranked as the seventh most populated city in the country.

‘“AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER"



CITY SERVICES (Continued)

The City provides a vast array of municipal services. The full range of services provided to its constituents
includes ongoing programs to provide health, welfare, art, cultural, and recreational services; maintenance
and construction of streets, highways, drainage, and sanitation systems; public safety through police and fire
protection; and urban redevelopment and housing. The City also considers the promotion of convention and
tourism and participation in economic development programs high priorities. The funding sources from which
these services are provided include ad valorem, sales and use, and hotel occupancy tax receipts; grants; user
fees; bond proceeds; tax increment financing; and other sources.

The City has twenty-three entities that are legally separate, but are considered part of the City’s operations
and therefore are included in its annual financial statements. Ten of these entities are presented as blended
component units of the City, while the other thirteen entities are discretely presented in the City’s financial
statements. For additional details on each of these entities and the basis for their respective presentation in
our financial report, please refer to the Financial Section, Note 1, entitled, Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies subsection Reporting Entity.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

As a community, San Antonio has positioned itself for long-term growth and prosperity by successfully following
a strategy to diversify its economy and improve quality of life for all citizens. The City’s economic strategy
focuses on further development of major industries, including domestic and international trade, convention
and tourism, medical and health care, government employment, manufacturing, information security, financial
services, telemarketing, telecommunications, finance and insurance, oil and gas refining, and the military. The
City is also undertaking ongoing infrastructure improvements, neighborhood revitalization, and workforce
development initiatives, as well as providing assistance to businesses of all sizes. Both government and citizens
are actively committed to increasing the caliber of educational and economic opportunities, expanding arts
and leisure choices, revitalizing older neighborhoods, and planning for overall growth in the City. The City’s
cultural and geographic proximity to Mexico provides favorable conditions for international business relations
therewith. Also enhancing San Antonio’s business appeal is the high quality of life the City offers and a cost-of-
living that is well below the national average. In addition to the favorable economic climate, excellent
weather conditions year round help to encourage and enhance the operation of many of San Antonio’s most
important industries.

Economic indicators tell the story of a healthy 2008 for San Antonio, albeit one affected by the slowdown in
the larger economy. Employment grew by 2.2% in the San Antonio metropolitan area in fiscal year 2008, while
unemployment in the same area increased from 4.1% in fiscal year 2007 to 4.2% in fiscal year 2008. Sales and
use tax revenue grew by 3.8% from fiscal year 2007 to 2008. According to the business cycle index - a
composite index measuring current economic activity - the San Antonio economy continued its string of
consecutive month-to-month growth in fiscal year 2008. While the national housing market suffered substantial
declines, the housing market in San Antonio held steady in fiscal year 2008. It is expected that San Antonio will
continue to experience flatter growth in housing in fiscal year 2009. Also, in contrast to other regions with a
large tourism industry that are seeing a slowing in their tourist business, San Antonio’s tourist business is
expected to have a comparatively strong year.

San Antonio’s strong growth was fueled by several targeted industry projects in 2008. Fred Loya Insurance
began construction of a $10.0 million regional claims center. This consolidation and expansion will create 500
new jobs for the community. Healthways, Inc. established a customer care service center which will create 200
new jobs with a total investment of over $4.0 million. The center will hire nurses to provide patient
consultation after patients are released from the hospital. The Tindall Corporation established a new facility in
San Antonio that will design, manufacture, and erect precast, prepressed concrete products and building
systems. Tindall’s new facility represents $25.0 million in real and personal property improvements as well as
250 new jobs at their new facility. Fiscal year 2008 also saw KLN Steel Products Company, a manufacturer of
high quality furniture for institutional applications, expand its firm. KLN’s expansion will bring an additional
500 jobs and $20.0 million in capital investment to the City of San Antonio.

- i -



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Economic impact analysis initiated by the Greater San Antonio Chamber of Commerce in the manufacturing and
health care and bioscience industries also illustrates strengthening targeted industries. In 2006, the
manufacturing industry contributed a total of $14.4 billion to the local economy, a healthy 13.0% increase from
the last study for 2005. According to the Greater Chamber, the industry has grown by about 50.0% over the
past decade. Individuals employed in the manufacturing industry earned on average $41,496 in 2006. This is
approximately 13.0% above the 2006 average of $36,699 for all workers in San Antonio. The 2006 study
represents the latest data available from the Chamber at time of submission. Additionally, the health care and
bioscience industry registered equally impressive figures contributing a total of $16.3 billion to the local
economy for 2007, a healthy $1.0 billion increase from 2006, and double the amount from 1997. There are
116,417 jobs in this sector, roughly one in seven jobs in San Antonio.

Following are additional details that provide a more in-depth look at the business climate and local economy
for the City of San Antonio:

Base-Realignment and Closure (BRAC) and Fort Sam Houston

One of the most significant events in San Antonio’s recent economic history is the 2005 Base Realignment and
Closure (BRAC). BRAC will have a major positive impact on military medicine in San Antonio resulting in $2.3
billion in construction and the addition of 12,500 jobs in San Antonio by 2011. This is up from the $1.6 billion in
construction and 11,500 personnel projected in 2007. Currently, all U.S. Army combat medic training is
conducted at Fort Sam Houston. As a result of BRAC 2005, all military combat medic training - Army, Air Force,
Navy, Marines and Coast Guard - will be undertaken at the new Medical Education and Training Campus at Fort
Sam Houston known as the San Antonio Military Medicine Center (SAMMC). Wilford Hall Medical Center will
transfer its Level 1 trauma facility to Brooke Army Medical Center (BAMC). This will double BAMC’s trauma and
burn capabilities and will be renamed SAMMC-North. Wilford Hall Medical Center will receive outpatient
missions from BAMC, become an outpatient facility, and will transform into SAMMC-South. In addition, San
Antonio will receive new medical research missions. The U.S. Army Institute for Surgical Research located next
to BAMC will double in size as a result of new BRAC missions and will be renamed Battlefield Health and
Trauma. The new mission will continue its cutting edge research in the areas of robotics, prosthetics and
regenerative medicine.

Port San Antonio

Port San Antonio (the Port) is a multi-modal logistics platform and aerospace complex that is home to over 74
tenants including world-renowned aerospace leaders such as Boeing, Lockheed Martin, Standard Aero, two
divisions of Chromalloy Gas Turbine Corporation, Gore Design Completions and Pratt Whitney.

Port San Antonio has a $3.3 billion economic impact resulting in 22,763 direct and indirect jobs in San Antonio
in 2007, according to a study by the University of Texas San Antonio. The direct economic impact of Port San
Antonio in 2007 was $1.5 billion, most of which came from the Port’s 74 tenants. The Port also directly
employed 8,529 workers last year. As part of the local community’s ongoing efforts to revitalize the Port San
Antonio area, the U.S. Air Force recently transferred title of 1,017 acres of land to the Port that were
previously part of Kelly AFB. The deed for this transfer was signed on September 30, 2008. This transfer of
more than 1,000 acres represents the single largest land transfer to the Port since Kelly’s closure in 1995. The
Air Force transferred a total of 1,446 acres of land to the Port, with an additional 440 acres slated to be
conveyed by the end of 2010. The land was previously used for military housing and other base facilities. Now
the land will be marketed for commercial development.

The 2007 opening of the East Kelly Railport, a $35.0 million redevelopment project, has transformed the City
into an international transportation distribution center. The number of rail cars passing through the East Kelly
Railport increased from 2,007 in 2007 to 3,026 in 2008 (January-September). Rail revenues grew from $150,680
in 2007 to $250,320 in 2008 (January-September). Over the past year, the Port increased its global presence in
terms of shipping. In 2007, the majority (71.0%) of goods moved in or out of the Port was domestic. In 2008,
domestic movements accounted for only 3.0% of all activity, with most goods either coming from or being
shipped to China. The Port is one of three activated Foreign Trade Zones in San Antonio’s network of 10

general-purpose sites.
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Brooks City-Base

Brooks City-Base (BC-B) continues to foster the development of its business and technology center on the south
side of San Antonio through its aggressive business attraction and retention efforts. Recognized as one of the
most innovative economic development projects in the United States, BC-B is a 1,246 acre campus with
approximately 350 acres available for immediate development.

In 2007, DPT Laboratories, Inc., a major pharmaceutical company, moved into its $24.0 million build-to-suit
research and development warehouse production facility. The joint City/County Emergency Operations Center
opened its $24.5 million operations facility in winter 2007. BC-B broke ground on a new thoroughfare, which
will connect the center with the major roadways surrounding the business and technology campus. The $47.0
million South New Braunfels Avenue extension will enhance access to BC-B for future development. Brooks
City-Base will also become the site of a new Baptist Hospital for southeast San Antonio.

Currently, approximately 18 private-sector, non-profit, and governmental tenants occupy space on the Brooks
City-Base campus. This accounts for about 3,800 employees, of which 2,100 are Air Force military and civilian
employees and 1,100 are employed at the City-Base Landing retail center.

Aerospace Industry Development

San Antonio International Airport (SAT) has a total of 34 nonstop destinations, which does not include seasonal
charter service to Mexico available during the spring and summer. During calendar year 2007, SAT handled a
record number of passengers. At final count 8,075,437 people made their way through the gates in 2007, a
number which had never been reached in the history of SAT. This marked the third year in a row that SAT had
set an all-time record for the total number of passengers.

According to the U.S. Department of Transportation SAT ranks 5" out of the 50 busiest airports across the
country in on-time departure percentage. The percentage at SAT was 81.0% for calendar year 2007, while the
national average was 8 points lower at 73.0%. The news is even more impressive when you consider the fact
that for the third year in a row, SAT handled more passengers than ever before.

SAT is now permanently designated as an “Airport of First Landing.” Sometimes referred to as “Landing Rights”
status, this designation means that private aircraft flying from foreign countries will be able to fly directly into
San Antonio without having to clear U.S. Customs at other airports. This designation will significantly enhance
business, commerce and trade relationships throughout Mexico.

December 12, 2007 marked the opening of the first of three major improvement projects at SAT. SAT officially
opened the first 1,200 spaces in its new Long-Term Parking Garage. The additional 1,600 spaces were opened
to the public on June 17, 2008. The new facility offers more than 2,800 spaces and will bring the airport’s total
parking inventory to approximately 9,000 spaces. In addition to the new parking garage, the airport expansion
program includes the construction of two new terminal facilities and a new roadway system.

On February 25, 2008, AirTran Airways announced that it would enter the San Antonio market with four daily
nonstop flights to Atlanta’s Hartsfield-Jackson Airport. AirTran Airways launched its first flight from San

Antonio on June 11, 2008.

On June 17, 2008, a groundbreaking ceremony was held launching the construction of a new terminal facility.
“Terminal B” is a seven-gate facility that will replace the aging Terminal 2 and will be occupied by current
tenants of Terminal 2. The new facility is part of an overall expansion program that calls for a new long-term
parking garage and a new two tier roadway system.

July 4, 2008 marked the launch of free WiFi service for all SAT customers. What used to cost $6.95 per day is
now offered free of charge. Both terminal facilities at SAT are giant “hot-spots” for laptop users. The coverage
area will eventually include the Cell Phone Waiting Parking Lot and Stinson Municipal Airport.

-jv -



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Aerospace Industry Development (Continued)

Stinson Municipal Airport (Stinson) is at an occupancy rate of 100.0% and has a tenant waiting list for the
facilities. To accommodate the demand for services at Stinson, a $4.8 million terminal expansion project will
add approximately 24,000 square feet of additional concession, administrative, education, and corporate
aviation space to the existing 7,000 square feet terminal building. The Stinson groundbreaking ceremony was
held on May 31, 2006 for the terminal expansion project. The expansion, along with a runway extension and
other infrastructure improvements, will allow for the growth of existing tenants as well as create opportunities
for new business to locate at Stinson. Palo Alto College will move their Aviation Program to Stinson in the
expanded terminal space. The terminal expansion project was completed November 2008.

International Trade and Qutlook

The International Affairs Department was created to provide a clear entrance or “front door” to City programs
and services in order to achieve global trade, attract foreign investment, offer protocol guidance and establish
San Antonio as the “Center of International Excellence”.

In fiscal year 2008 the International Affairs Department continues to create wealth for local companies through
effective global business development and lasting relationships. In doing so, it has identified and served over
669 companies that conduct business internationally. The department also conducts the Export Leaders
Program, a unique training program that is designed to help San Antonio companies become successful in
international markets. This unique municipal program has graduated 91 companies and has generated $91.8
million in exports. An additional tool to foster international trade is the department’s web portal that serves as
a catalyst for business and cultural exchanges.

As of August 31, 2008, the North American Development Bank (NADB) is participating in the development and
financing of 115 environmental infrastructure projects, with approximately $868.3 million in loans and grants.
These projects are estimated to cost a total of $2.6 billion to build and will benefit an estimated 11.9 million
border residents throughout the 10 states that comprise the U.S. - Mexico border region.

San Antonio continues to develop itself as an Inland Port for imports and exports with Mexico, India, China,
Japan, Spain, Latin America and other regions of the world. This is accomplished through transportation,
manufacturing and logistics facilities; professional services and value-added services involved in processing,
marketing and moving freight within the South Texas Region. Over the past 15 years, the City led the nation by
establishing three commercial trade offices in Mexico’s principal cities and in Tokyo, Japan; which has
generated over $170.0 million in bilateral trade since their inception.

For 24 years, the International Affairs Department’s Trade Representative in Japan has attracted multi-million
dollar operations to San Antonio including Toyota, Takata Seat Belt, Sony Corporation, MyCom International,
Hyatt Hill Country Resort (a major Japanese investment joint venture), Colin Medical Equipment, and Higuchi
to name a few. The Trade Representative continues to promote Japanese investment in San Antonio by
conducting trade missions to cities throughout Japan.

Community Development

Community development projects continue to play an important role in San Antonio’s economic success.
Targeted redevelopment, neighborhood revitalization, and smart growth strategies are shaping the way San
Antonio is growing and its citizens are living. The City has initiated efforts to redevelop portions of the
community and influence the pattern of development of new areas, such as the far South Side. Leveraging the
economic momentum surrounding the Toyota manufacturing plant and Texas A&M University San Antonio
campus development, the City South Management Authority (CSMA) continues to guide growth through
development tools which focus on New Urbanism or place-making through shaping the form of the built
environment. CSMA has supported the adoption by City Council of amendments to the Unified Development
Code for the Form Based Development Code and Form Based Zoning District in the City South area. CSMA and
the City executed the Interlocal Agreement for Zoning and Plan Amendments providing zoning and plan
amendment services through the City.



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Community Development (Continued)

In 2007, San Antonio moved one step closer to becoming the first major Texas city to possess both a University
of Texas and a Texas A&M University degree granting campuses. The Texas A&M University System accepted a
donation of 696 acres of land from Triple L Management Company to develop a new San Antonio campus. To
help the University raise enrollment to 1,500 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) students, the University has launched
the A&M San Antonio Foundation with a goal of raising $8.0 million in scholarships. Triple L Management has
supported the fund with a $1.0 million commitment. The fall 2008 enrollment reached almost 900 FTE
students, with the projected minimum requirement of 1,500 students by 2009, to qualify for $40.0 million in
tuition revenue bonds to finance a permanent campus.

Other community development efforts such as the Westside Development Corporation (WDC) are an example of
the ongoing commitment to revitalization and targeted redevelopment. The WDC is a multi-council district
collaboration focused on revitalization of San Antonio’s inner-city Westside. The WDC focus area is one of the
most densely populated and economically distressed areas in San Antonio. In 2007, the WDC Board of Directors
hired a full-time executive director, completed a three-year strategic plan, and completed a comprehensive
market analysis. WDC staff has been actively providing development assistance since its inception. Currently,
the WDC is assisting three redevelopment projects and four potential employers to locate property for business
expansion in the near Westside of San Antonio.

Initially funded as the Downtown Development Office in fiscal year 2008, the Center City Development Office
(Office) was created to assist in the development of the San Antonio’s downtown. Still in its infancy, this office
is beginning to shape its roles within the downtown community as well as the areas immediately surrounding
downtown.

The Office will perform various roles to include managing and facilitating downtown development projects,
initiating and implementing public/private partnerships, and identifying appropriated financial incentives and
tools to assist development. Additionally, the Office will provide staff support for the various TIRZ boards in
the area as well as the River Commission, and Empowerment Zone and Downtown Advisory Boards.

One of the Office’s most important roles will involve the communication and coordination with stake holders,
appropriate departments, and external organizations. They will act as liaisons and provide coordination with
organizations such as San Antonio for Growth on the Eastside (SAGE), Westside Development Corporation (WDC)
and the Downtown Alliance.

Hospitality Industry

The City’s diversified economy includes a significant sector relating to the hospitality industry. A recent study
by the Greater San Antonio Chamber of Commerce released in 2008 (for period 2006), found that the
hospitality industry had an economic impact of nearly $10.5 billion. The estimated annual payroll for the
industry was $1.88 billion, and the industry employed more than 100,000 workers.

San Antonio’s hospitality industry attracted 26 million visitors in 2006, and 11 million were overnight leisure
visitors, placing San Antonio as one of the top leisure destinations in Texas. This industry contributed more
than $125.0 million in taxes and fees to the City of San Antonio, and more than $222.0 million to all local
governments combined. San Antonio continues to rank high as a top leisure and convention/group meeting
destination. Recent initiatives contributing to this success are the City’s new brand image, the upcoming JW
Marriott San Antonio Hill Country Resort and Spa, the Riverwalk Expansion Project and new events like the Rock
‘n’ Roll Marathon held in November 2008. In addition, the Hill Country bordering San Antonio is a burgeoning
region of championship golf resorts, culinary treats and vineyards. Orbitz recently ranked the Texas Hill
Country as the second fastest-growing destination for wine and culinary enthusiasts. Tourism helped San
Antonio rank as Second-Most Recession Proof City in the United States, according to a survey conducted by
Forbes.com, in 2008. The list of attractions in the San Antonio area includes, among many others, the Alamo
(and other sites of historic significance), Riverwalk and two major theme parks (SeaWorld of Texas and Six
Flags Fiesta Texas). San Antonio is also one of the top convention cities in the country, and the opening of the
new Grand Hyatt Hotel will allow the City to host more and larger conventions and meetings in the years to
come. The City continues to be proactive in attracting convention business through its management practices

and marketing efforts.
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Hospitality Industry (Continued)

According to Smith Travel, in 2007, while the City’s overall performance for hotel occupancy decreased slightly
by 3.0%, hotel room supply increased by 3.5%. Average daily rate (ADR) increased by 4.6%; revenue per
available room (REVPAR) increased by 1.4%; and total room nights sold in the destination increased by 0.3%. In
2008, from January through August, hotel occupancy decreased by 0.7% while room supply increased by 5.4%.
Room nights sold increased by 4.7%, ADR increased by 4.4% and REVPAR increased by 3.6%. Overall hotel
revenue growth for San Antonio was up 9.2% for the first eight months of 2008.

Convention, Sports and Entertainment Facilities

The City’s hospitality industry is an integral part of the local economy and the Convention, Sports and
Entertainment Facilities (CSEF) are significant to the progression of the sector. Convention Facility revenues
increased to more than $1.4 million above budget in 2007-2008 due to increased catering commissions from the
2008 NCAA Men’s Final Four, Golden Jubilee and other short-term bookings.

The 2007 Valero Alamo Bowl and Dr. Pepper Big 12 Championship combined to bring more than 105,750 out-of-
town visitors to San Antonio and generated a direct economic impact of $73.1 million for the City in December
2007, according to a survey conducted by Strategic Marketing Services and SportsEconomics. An Alamodome
record sports crowd of 66,166 for the 2007 Valero Alamo Bowl between Penn State and Texas A&M translated
into a bowl record with a direct economic impact for San Antonio of $42.6 million.

San Antonio is one of the most popular convention destinations in the country and the addition of the $285.0
million, 1,003-room Grand Hyatt Hotel adjoining the Convention Center will afford the City greater
opportunities to host larger conventions and meetings in the future.

The CSEF hosted more than 41,000 out-of-town visitors during the NCAA Men’s Final Four. In addition, the NCAA
Hoop City experienced record attendance with more than 62,000 visitors and resulted in unprecedented
economic impact for the City. Including spending within the Alamodome and organizational spending by teams,
media, and corporations, the total new incremental direct spending by visitors and business in the State due to
the 2008 Final Four and related events was nearly $51.1 million. New incremental indirect spending amounted
to more than $39.4 million in the State. Total economic impact due to the Final Four and related activities was
approximately $90.4 million. In preparation for the Final Four, the Alamodome received $6.4 million in
improvements designed to enhance the facility’s appearance. Enhancements included a new roof, exterior
paint and cable lighting as well as a pedestrian shade structure which provides access from the Convention
Center to the Alamodome. The City received a $6.5 million rebate via the State’s Sporting Event Trust
Legislation. These upgrades will assist the City in enticing future, high profile clients, and improve fan’s
experiences with state-of-the-art technology.

San Antonio has been selected by the NCAA to serve as an inaugural member in its new “NCAA Championship
City” pilot program. The program will feature multiple host opportunities of NCAA Division I, Il and lil men’s
and women’s championships through 2012. The centerpiece of the pilot program is a long-term agreement
between the NCAA and each host city to bring a wide array of championships and ancillary events to the area
over the course of several years.

The CSEF served as the site of the 2008 Golden Jubilee, a religious gathering of 35,000 Ismaili Muslims and
their spiritual leader Prince Karim Aga Khan. During the event, the CSEF caterer served more than 200,000
meals in 60 hours. The gathering was the City’s largest three-day event since the 1968 Hemisfair.
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Downtown Development Projects

The City hosted a two-day San Antonio Federal Empowerment Zone Conference in July 2008 at the Drury Plaza
Hotel and the Henry B. Gonzalez Convention Center. Over 100 attendees from other Empowerment Zone (EZ),
Enterprise Communities, and Renewal Communities attended the conference to receive legislative updates and
learn about best practices in other communities. In addition, workshops provided small businesses information
on how to utilize the tax credits associated with the program. Included in the conference was a bus tour of two
of the three EZ developable sites, Brooks City-Base and Port San Antonio. San Antonio was designated a Round
[ll EZ in 2002 and received the largest allocation of $230.0 million in EZ Bonds. Pamela Glekas Spring, Director
of the Office Community Renewal for HUD was the featured keynote speaker for the Conference. Ms. Glekas
Spring recognized San Antonio as the most successful EZ Community for utilizing a total of $170.0 million in EZ
Bonds for the Drury Plaza Hotel and the Grand Hyatt Hotel. An additional allocation of $25.0 million in
Empowerment Zone facility bond capacity was set aside to support the $113.0 million mixed-use Piazza San
Lorenzo project continuing development along Houston Street. The remaining $35.0 million in EZ bonds must
be reserved and issued prior to the program’s expiration on December 31, 2009. Just across Houston Street
from the Piazza San Lorenzo with its back on the River, a 260-room Embassy Suites broke ground in 2008 and
construction is moving forward.

The Vidorra is downtown’s first true high rise condominium project. Located just north of Sunset Station, this
138-unit, 20-story building will enjoy some of the best views in the City. The Vistana is a $60.0 million, 14-
story, 246-unit rental apartment complex located in the western half of downtown, across from Market Square
and Milam Park. This building includes retail on the ground floor, three levels of structured parking and
apartments above. Both residential projects are currently under construction and are scheduled to open in
2009.

A $10.0 million renovation of Main Plaza was completed this year, in the historic center of San Antonio, with
San Fernando Cathedral and many of our local government facilities adjacent to the plaza. The renovation
includes the expansion of the plaza and the addition of new landscaping, fountains and public restrooms.
Another important project currently underway is the Riverwalk Improvements. This project will extend the
existing Riverwalk pedestrian amenities north almost two miles to the old Pearl Brewery, which is also in the
middle of being renovated. One of the unique features is a lock and dam at Brooklyn that will allow the
Riverboats to travel the full length of the improvements. This ambitious project will be completed in 2011.

Joint Planning and Operations Council

In response to the charge of the 2004 City of San Antonio/Bexar County Citizen’s Commission on City/County
Service Integration to investigate opportunities for integrating services, and in an effort to reduce system
duplications and enhance coordination of care, the San Antonio Metropolitan Health District (SAMHD) and
University Health System (UHS) engaged in a formal process to enhance collaboration. A Joint Planning and
Operations Council (JPOC) composed of senior staff from both SAMHD and UHS was formed to plan and
implement service integration efforts.

Under the Direction of City and County leadership SAMHD and UHS staff negotiated an amendment to their
existing interlocal agreement to transfer clinical preventative health services (prenatal care, family planning,
well-child screenings, breast and cervical cancer screenings, senior health screenings, and refugee health
services) as of February 4, 2008. This transition involved the transfer of 125 SAMHD staff positions, the lease of
space in 10 SAMHD public health clinics, the redirection of $1.8 million in grant funds managed by SAMHD, and
a contract for approximately $4.2 million in City’s General Fund for the initial service period through December

31, 2008.

Since the February transition of services the JPOC has continued to coordinate services between SAMHD and
UHS and implement changes to solidify the transition. These efforts include offsetting adjustments to City and
UHS tax rates in line with the Truth in Taxation Laws, long-term leases and transfer agreements for 10 City
public health clinic facilities, and upgrading and standardization of clinic procedures. Evaluative data to date
shows clinics continue to provide a high standard of care to patients throughout the community.
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Haven for Hope

in January 2005 City Council adopted a 10-year plan to end chronic homelessness. On February 13, 2006, Mayor
Phil Hardberger committed to accelerating implementation of the City’s 10-year Plan to End Chronic
Homelessness and the development of a homeless campus. In order to address these issues he established the
Mayor’s Homeless Council and appointed then-Councilmember Patti Radle and NuStar Energy Chairman of the
Board, Bill Greehey, as co-chairs. This unified vision officially set an aggressive timeline for development of the

Campus.

The Haven for Hope campus is located within one and one half miles from central downtown, comprised of
multiple buildings on approximately 16 acres. Once complete it will serve 800 men, women and families living
in residential buildings with an additional 500 people in the outdoor courtyard. The Campus will be a well
designed, attractively landscaped, and secure property offering a range of services, to members and
surrounding neighborhood residents, including medical, dental, education, job training, childcare, legal
services and more.

The projected investment for the Haven for Hope Campus is $74.0 million. The City will invest approximately
$15.0 million on land acquisition, environmental remediation and demolition. The remaining funding will come
from Bexar County ($10.0 million) and private fundraising efforts. The campus will also provide 100 new jobs,
save taxpayers an estimated $40.0 million annually, and revitalize the surrounding neighborhood.

Haven for Hope will work with the new Public Safety Triage facility which opened on April 15, 2008. This
facility has already seen success in helping chronic serial inebriants, many of whom are homeless. Several
hundred inebriants have avoided jail by being admitted to the sobering unit where they can take advantage of
a detoxification program followed by intensive outpatient care. Significant savings have been realized in the
criminal justice system and emergency room care and many of the people admitted have been referred to
other services to treat their addiction and mental health issues.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The management of the City is responsible for establishing a system of internal controls that are designed to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The City’s accounting
system supports the internal controls and procedures, which provide reliable financial records for preparing
financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control
structure provides reasonable assurance that the City’s assets are safeguarded as well as the reliability of
financial records for preparing financial statements. The concept of reasonable assurance first recognizes that
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. Secondarily, the evaluation of costs
and benefits require estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary compliance is a significant tool for managing and controlling governmental activities, as well as
ensuring conformance with the City’s budgetary limits and specifications. The objective of budgetary controls
is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by City
Council. Levels of budgetary control, that is the levels at which expenditures cannot legally exceed
appropriated amounts, are established by function and activity within individual funds. The City utilizes an
encumbrance system of accounting as one mechanism to accomplish effective budgetary control. Encumbered
amounts lapse at year-end and are generally appropriated as part of the following year’s budget. Another
budgetary control is the monthly revenue and expenditure reports detailing budget and actual balances with
variances that are generated and reviewed by the Office of Management and Budget, Finance and the City
Manager’s Office prior to submission to City Council. As part of the annual review and close-out process, City
Council will approve desired budget adjustments and carryforwards for the next fiscal year.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Accounting System and Budgetary Control (Continued)

Each year the City prepares a five-year financial forecast (Forecast) prior to the adoption of the annual
operating budget. The Forecast is a financial and budgetary planning tool that provides a current and long-
range assessment of financial conditions and costs for City services. The Forecast includes the identification of
service delivery policy issues that will be encountered in the next five years and that will have a fiscal impact
upon the City’s program of services. The Forecast also examines the local and national economic conditions
that have an impact on the City’s economy and ultimately, its budget.

The Forecast serves as a foundation for development of the proposed budget by projecting revenues and
anticipated expenditures under a defined set of assumptions. The Forecast enables the City Council and staff
to identify financial issues in sufficient time to develop a proactive strategy in order to address emerging
strategic issues.

After obtaining the priorities of City Council, as well as conducting reviews of each City department, the
proposed City budget is presented to City Council. The proposed budget represents the City staff’s professional
recommendation on how to utilize revenues and expenditures in order to achieve a balanced budget, while
optimizing City service deliveries. After obtaining public input on the proposed budget a two year balanced
plan is adopted. The City’s budget incorporates a strategy to increase the financial reserves to 10.0% by fiscal
year 2010. The establishment and maintenance of appropriate reserves within the General Fund is critical to
prudent financial management.

The City also employs a comprehensive multi-year, long-term capital improvement planning program that is
updated annually. Debt management is a major component of the financial planning model which incorporates
projected financing needs for infrastructure development that is consistent with the City’s growth while at the
same time measuring and assessing the cost and timing of each debt issuance.

The City’s long-term financial planning along with the City’s healthy economy and positive business climate are
evidenced by the recent upgrade by Standard & Poor’s to ‘AAA’ from ‘AA+’ on the City’s general obligation and
taxable general improvement refunding bonds. Standard & Poor’s based the increase on the City’s “deep and
increasingly diverse economy, strong financial management policies, very strong financial performance and
position, and moderate overall debt burden.”

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules in the Financial Section of this report, the City continues to
meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Fiscal Management and Administrative Topics

Pension and Postemployment Retirement Benefits

The City provides retirement pension benefits for its uniformed and non-uniformed employees. Uniformed
retirement benefits are provided through the Fire and Police Pension Fund, a single-employer defined benefit
retirement plan, with contribution and benefit levels established under state statute. In addition, the City
provides all other eligible employees with retirement benefits through the Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS), a state-wide public employee retirement system that is a joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
plan. For additional information on the City’s pension plans, see Note 8, Pension and Retirement Plans.

The City provides postemployment health benefits to all non-uniformed City retirees, and for all uniformed fire
and police retirees who retired prior to October 1, 1989. The cost of the program is reviewed annually, with
costs funded jointly on a pay-as-you-go basis. The City also provides retirement health care benefits for eligible
fire and police retirees under the Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund. Contribution and benefits levels
are established by State statute with the Health Care Fund Board’s ability to modify benefits within certain
parameters. For additional information on the City’s postemployment health benefits, see Note 9,
Postemployment Retiree Benefits.



FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Fiscal Management and Administrative Topics (Continued)

Active Employee Health Benefits Program

In fiscal year 2008, the City’s Self-Insured Employee Health Benefits Program achieved a positive ending fund
balance of $18.1 million and established a reserve of $7.4 million. These savings are primarily attributed to
increased medical provider and prescription discounts resulting from a change in Third Party Administrator
(TPA) vendor contracts, effective January 1, 2008. The new TPA contract provides additional cost containment
elements not found in previous TPA contracts including; a negotiated out-of-network savings program,
comprehensive disease management activities, and an aggressive subrogation and recovery program. In
addition to a change in TPA vendors, the City implemented significant plan design changes in 2008 which have
resulted in additional savings to the health benefits fund.

The overall cost sharing ratio achieved for civilian medical claims for fiscal year 2008 was 85.0%/15.0%, with
the City contributing 85.0% of total claims cost. The City continues to move toward its target of achieving
80.0% City and 20.0% employee benefits cost sharing ratio by fiscal year 2010. This cost sharing target is an
integral part of our Total Compensation approach to employee pay and benefits designed to attract and retain
employees. These plan design changes and increased provider discounts have resulted in a medical claims trend
for all City self-funded medical plans of 2.4% for fiscal year 2008, well below the national average of 5.0% for
employer sponsored health plans (HRET and Kaiser Family Foundation, Employee Health Benefits, 2008 Annual
Survey).

The City’s Employee Wellness Program continues to progress toward full implementation of the strategic plan
created in 2007. Components of this strategic initiative implemented in fiscal year 2008 include the
implementation of a customized smoking cessation program and the opening of a dedicated City Employee
Health and Wellness Center for convenient access to primary health care and preventative screenings. These
initiatives are expected to drive a significant return on investment by reducing absenteeism, as well as
lowering the number of emergency and urgent care visits made by employees, while increasing productivity in
the workplace. This program delivers the added benefit of providing employees with early detection of chronic
diseases and support programs designed to assist them in managing these potentially high-cost conditions. In
addition to changes in the Medical plan benefits, the City changed Life Insurance carriers and negotiated a
33.0% reduction in the basic term life premiums paid by the City.

In fiscal year 2009, the City will continue to build on the cost saving strategies that are already in place, while
seeking out opportunities to further strengthen the financial position of the Fund into the future.

Risk Management Programs

The City’s Liability and Workers’ Compensation Funds operate under the direction of the Risk Management
Division within the Human Resources Department. Programs are reviewed continuously to reduce liability
exposure, minimize losses, and strategize to reduce the frequency of injuries, illnesses, and the cost of
workers’ compensation. Insurance policies are purchased by the City to cover standard risks associated with
commercial property coverage for its buildings, airport liability, boilers and machinery, commercial crime,
medical professional insurance, and public official bonds. Excess insurance policies are also purchased to cover
large liability and workers’ compensation exposures.

In addition, the City engages an actuary to review the City’s self insurance funds. Such reviews estimate
outstanding losses, project the ultimate losses, and recommend overall funding each year. Contributions to the
City’s self-insurance funds include department assessments from the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and
other Proprietary Funds. Another actuary was also engaged with the City to prepare its actuarial valuation to
comply with GASB Statement No. 45.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Fiscal Management and Administrative Topics (Continued)

Cash and Investment Management

The City’s investment policies are governed by state statute and the City’s own written investment policies.
Under Texas law, the City is required to invest its funds under written investment policies that primarily
emphasize safety of principal, liquidity and diversification, yield, and proactive portfolio management. This
includes a list of authorized investments for City funds, maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual
investment, and the maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed for pooled fund groups. All City funds
must be invested consistent with a formally adopted “investment strategy statement” that specifically
addresses each fund’s investment. Each investment strategy statement will describe strategy objectives
concerning: (1) suitability of investment, (2) preservation and safety of principal, (3) liquidity, (4)
marketability of each investment, (5) diversification of the portfolio, and (6) yield.

The City is authorized to use demand accounts, time accounts, and other permissible investments including
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and
instrumentalities, Certificates of Deposit and Share Certificates, Repurchase Agreements, Securities Lending,
Banker’s Acceptance, Commercial Paper, Mutual Funds, Guaranteed Investment Contracts, and Investment
Pools. The City’s investment portfolio does not include any derivative products. It is not the City’s policy to use
derivative products in its portfolio, nor does the City leverage its investments. For additional information on
cash and investments, see Note 3, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments.

Debt Administration

The City utilizes a comprehensive debt management financial planning program, which is updated annually and
is a major component of the City’s financial planning. The model projects financing needs, measuring and
assessing the cost and timing of each debt issuance. It involves comprehensive financial analysis, which utilizes
computer modeling, and incorporates variables such as interest rate sensitivity, assessed value changes,
annexations, and current ad valorem tax collection rates. Use of this financial management tool has assisted
the City in meeting its financing needs by facilitating timely and thorough planning, which has allowed the City
to capitalize on market opportunities.

Strict adherence to conservative financial management has allowed the City to meet its financing needs while
at the same time, improving its bond rating by Standard & Poor’s (S&P) to AAA, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
(Moody’s) to Aal and maintaining rating by Fitch at AA+, on the City’s general obligation and certificates of
obligation debt. For additional information on the City’s long-term debt, see Note 6, Long-Term Debt.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

State statutes require that an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant be conducted. The
City selected the accounting firm Grant Thornton, LLP. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in
state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996, OMB Circular A-133, Audit of State and Local Government and Nonprofit Organizations and State of
Texas Single Audit Circular. The Independent Auditors’ Report on the basic financial statements, Managements
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (required supplementary information), required disclosures, and schedules are
included in the Financial Section of this CAFR. The Independent Auditors’ Report, along with other required
reports and schedules mandated by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and OMB Circular A-133, and the
State of Texas Single Audit Circular are in separate documents.
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal year-ended September
30, 2007. This was the 32™ consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR. This report satisfies both U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The Office of Management and Budget received the Annual Distinguished Budget Award from the Government
Finance Officers Association, recognizing outstanding achievement in preparation of the 2008 Operating and
Capital Budget.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Audit = Tax = Advisory

Grant Thornton LLP
1717 Main Street, Suite 1500
Dallas, TX /5201-9436

. . T214.561.2300
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council F 214.561.2370
City of San Antonio, Texas voww. GrantThornion. com

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of San Antonio, Texas (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30,
2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of San Antonio
Fire and Police Pension Fund, San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund, San Antonio Health
Facilities Development Corporation, San Antonio Industrial Development Authority, San Antonio Housing
Trust Finance Corporation, and San Antonio Public Library Foundation, blended component units, which
represent 68%, 73% and 44%, respectively, of the assets, net assets and revenues /additions, of the aggregate
remaining fund information. We also did not audit the San Antonio Water System, City Public Service of San
Antonio, and the other non major discretely presented component units which represent 100% of the assets,
net assets and revenues of the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited
by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for those component units, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America as established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Anditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of Main
Plaza Conservancy, Municipal Golf Association — San Antonio, SA Energy Acquisition Public Facilities
Corporation, San Antonio Educational Facilities Corporation, San Antonio Health Facilities Development
Corporation, San Antonio Industrial Development Authority, San Antonio Housing Trust Finance
Corporation, San Antonio Public Library Foundation, and City Public Service of San Antonio were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Grant Thornton LLP
WS member firm of Grant Thornton International | td
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In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Antonio, Texas, as of September 30, 2008, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 30, 2009 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain prowsmns of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, the net assets of the governmental activities, aggregate
remaining funds and the component units as of September 30, 2007 have been restated.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 1 through 13 and the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
~ General Fund on page 157, and Schedules of Funding Progress on pages 158 - 161 are not required parts of
the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining financial statements
and schedules, capital assets used in the operation of governmental funds, and the statistical section listed in
the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining financial statements and schedules and capital assets used in the
operation of governmental funds have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory
section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and other
auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

&M}Km‘fo‘nw

Dallas, Texas
March 30, 2009

Grant Thornton LLP
U.S. member firm of Grant Tharnton International Ltd
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of San Antonio (City) presents the following discussion and analysis of the City’s financial performance
during the fiscal year-ended September 30, 2008. This discussion and analysis is intended to assist readers in
focusing on significant financial issues and changes in the City’s financial position, and identifying any
significant variances from the adopted budget. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal and the
financial statements provided in this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in
thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $2,694,476 (net assets). Of this amount, $194,244
(unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

e As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $904,700, an increase of $75,378 compared to the restated fiscal year 2007 fund balance.
The total unreserved fund balance of $478,904 is available for spending at the government’s discretion.
Of this amount, $91,499 is designated and $387,405 is undesignated fund balance.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $190,775 or
25.9% of the total General Fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as the introduction to the City of San Antonio’s basic financial
statements, which have three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business financial presentation.

The statement of net assets is a presentation of the City’s assets and liabilities, including capital and
infrastructure assets, and long-term liabilities. This statement reports the difference between assets and
liabilities as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may help determine or help indicate
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
fiscal year. Changes in net assets are recorded when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs
regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for
some items will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave). Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees or charges
(business-type activities). Governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works,
sanitation, health services, culture and recreation, convention and tourism, conservation, urban
redevelopment and housing, welfare, and economic development and opportunity. The business-type activities
of the City include the airport system, parking system, and environmental services.

In addition, the basic financial statements provide information regarding the City’s legally separate discretely
presented component units. Component unit financial information is reported separately from the primary
government in the government-wide financial statements.
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Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Fund financial statements are used to present financial information detailing resources that have been
identified for specific activities. The focus of the fund financial statements is on the City’s major funds,
although nonmajor funds are also presented in aggregate and further detailed in the supplementary
statements. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with requirements placed on
resources. Funds are divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Fund financial
statements allow the City to present information regarding fiduciary funds, since they are not reported in the
government-wide financial statements.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used for essentially the same functions reported in the
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
statement, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

As the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented in the governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental fund and governmental
activities.

The City maintains five individual governmental fund types for financial reporting purposes. The governmental
fund types are General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Debt Service Funds, and
Permanent Funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund,
Categorical Grant-In Aid, and the Debt Service Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from
the other funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation labeled “Nonmajor Governmental Funds.”
Individual fund data for each nonmajor governmental fund is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary Funds - The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the
functions presented in business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its Airport System, Parking System, and Environmental Services Funds. Internal
Service Funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions,
including, self-insurance programs, other internal services, and information technology services. The services
provided by these funds predominantly support the governmental rather than the business-type functions. They
have been included within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and are
reported alongside the enterprise funds in the fund financial statements.

Information is presented separately in the proprietary funds statement of net assets and in the proprietary
funds statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets for the Airport System Fund, which is
considered to be a major fund. The Internal Service Funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation
in the proprietary fund financial statements. Data from the other enterprise funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation labeled “Nonmajor Enterprise Funds.” Individual fund data for each nonmajor
enterprise fund and each internal service fund are provided in the form of respective combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
primary government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements as the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s programs and operations. With the exception of
agency funds, the accounting for fiduciary funds is much like that used for the proprietary funds.

City of San Antonio, Texas -2- Amounts are expressed in thousands



Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes, this report also
presents the required supplementary information of (a) the City’s General Fund budgetary comparison schedule
that demonstrates compliance with its budget, and (b) schedules of funding progress related to pension and
postemployment plans. The Debt Service Fund, various Special Revenue Funds and specific Permanent Fund
budgets, which are legally adopted on an annual basis, are also included in the CAFR as supplementary
schedules within the Combining Financial Statements and Schedules.

Government-Wide Financial Statement Analysis

The following tables, graphs and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial position for
the City as a whole as of and for the year-ended September 30, 2008.

/ Net Assets \
Year-Ended September 30, 2008

(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2007 Restated)
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2007 2007
2008 (Restated)* 2008 2007 2008 (Restated)*
Current and Other Assets $ 1,224,028 $ 1,138,798 $ 358,995 $ 245,495 $ 1,583,023 $ 1,384,293
Capital Assets 3,335,579 3,198,188 417,333 344,861 3,752,912 3,543,049
Total Assets 4,559,607 4,336,986 776,328 590,356 5,335,935 4,927,342
Current and Other Liabilities 379,171 333,615 44,844 51,634 424,015 385,249
Long-term Liabilities 1,802,279 1,674,050 415,165 252,307 2,217,444 1,926,357
Total Liabilities 2,181,450 2,007,665 460,009 303,941 2,641,459 2,311,606
Net Assets:
Investments in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 2,092,623 2,024,576 208,894 201,846 2,301,517 2,226,422
Restricted 122,537 120,591 76,178 61,559 198,715 182,150
Unrestricted 162,997 184,154 31,247 23,010 194,244 207,164

Total Net Assets $ 2,378,157 $ 2,329,321 $ 316,319 $ 286,415 $ 2,694,476 $ 2,615,736

Qrtain amounts have been restated as discussed in Note 17, Prior Period Restatement. /

For the year-ended September 30, 2008, total assets exceeded liabilities by $2,694,476. The largest portion of
the City’s net assets, $2,301,517 (85.4%) represents its investment in capital assets less any related debt used
to acquire those assets that are still outstanding, and includes assets such as land, infrastructure,
improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment.

Capital assets are used to provide services to the citizens of San Antonio and are not available for further
spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources
needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources, as capital assets cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities.

Of the total net assets, $198,715, 7.4%, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. The remaining $194,244, 7.2%, represents unrestricted net assets, which can be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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City of San Antonio, Texas
Changes in Net Assets
Year-Ended September 30, 2008
(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2007 Restated)

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2007 2007
2008 (Restated)* 2008 2007 2008 (Restated)*
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 169,107 $ 165,460 $ 156,920 $ 133,431 $ 326,027 $ 298,891
Operating Grants and Contributions 198,736 186,381 198,736 186,381
Capital Grants and Contributions 49,577 57,891 36,987 23,188 86,564 81,079
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 379,457 326,342 379,457 326,342
Other Taxes 341,976 327,990 341,976 327,990
Revenues from Utilities 304,545 257,687 304,545 257,687
Investment Earnings 39,463 54,027 12,010 11,099 51,473 65,126
Miscellaneous 30,299 26,530 12 1,973 30,311 28,503
Total Revenues 1,513,160 1,402,308 205,929 169,691 1,719,089 1,571,999
Expenses:
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government 168,215 118,881 168,215 118,881
Public Safety 527,075 456,375 527,075 456,375
Public Works 191,518 143,172 191,518 143,172
Sanitation 3,000 2,878 3,000 2,878
Health Services 90,220 91,432 90,220 91,432
Culture and Recreation 141,661 128,450 141,661 128,450
Convention and Tourism 68,584 155,285 68,584 155,285
Conservation 1,068 1,068
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 19,226 20,575 19,226 20,575
Welfare 168,461 153,704 168,461 153,704
Economic Development and Opportunity 17,329 19,167 17,329 19,167
Interest on Long-Term Debt, Net 71,103 48,114 71,103 48,114
Business-Type Activities:
Airport System 80,505 64,482 80,505 64,482
Parking System 10,382 8,525 10,382 8,525
Environmental Services 82,002 68,072 82,002 68,072
Total Expenses 1,467,460 1,338,033 172,889 141,079 1,640,349 1,479,112
Change in Net Assets
Before Transfers and Special Items 45,700 64,275 33,040 28,612 78,740 92,887
Special Items (1) 8,320 (8,320)
Transfers (5,184) (6,404) 5,184 6,404
Net Change in Net Assets 48,836 57,871 29,904 35,016 78,740 92,887
Beginning, Net Assets as restated 2,329,321 2,271,450 286,415 251,399 2,615,736 2,522,849
Ending, Net Assets $ 2,378,157 $ 2,329,321 $ 316,319 $ 286,415  $ 2,694,476 $ 2,615,736

*Certain amounts have been restated as discussed in Note 17, Prior Period Restatement.

(1) Debt and capital project activity moved from governmental activities to business-type activities. See Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies, "Special Items" for more information.

The City’s total revenues were $1,719,089 for fiscal year-ended September 30, 2008. Revenues from
governmental activities totaled $1,513,160 and revenues from business-type activities totaled $205,929.
General revenues represented 64.4% of the City’s total revenue, while program revenues provided 35.6% of
revenue received in fiscal year 2008.

Expenses for the City totaled $1,640,349. Governmental activity expenses totaled $1,467,460, or 89.5% of total
expenses.
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Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities
Program Revenues and Expenses
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Governmental Activities increased the City’s net assets by $48,836. The reason for the change is as follows:

e Grants and Contributions revenues increased by $4,041 primarily due to $10,511 in hurricane activities
recognized during the year, a one-time $6,081 increase in the Hotel Occupancy Tax from contributions
from the State for the NCAA Men’s Final Four, as well as the addition of a blended component unit, the
San Antonio Library Foundation, which increased capital grants by $2,129. Additional project increases
of $5,446 and $635 in Public Works and General Government, respectively, also assisted in the growth
of revenues from grants and capital projects. These increases were mitigated primarily by a decrease
in contributions of $15,678 in the Capital Projects funds for the Convention Center Hotel Corporation
due to the project’s completion of the Grand Hyatt Hotel.

e Revenues from Property Taxes increased by $53,115 due to an increase in the overall taxable value,
increased collection, reappraisals, annexations and new construction. Even though tax rates were
reduced from $0.58 to $0.57 per $100 valuation in fiscal year 2007 and 2008, respectively, taxable
values increased from $56,767,701 in fiscal year 2007 to $65,954,867 in fiscal year 2008, resulting in
additional revenues of $50,339 in current property taxes.

e Other Taxes, which includes sales and use taxes, increased $13,986, of which $8,272 of that increase
was from sales and use tax due to continued growth, increased economic development throughout the
City, and increased tourism. Hotel occupancy taxes also increased by $4,536 due to an increase in
tourism and convention business.

e CPS Energy revenues increased by $45,256 due to higher natural gas prices and an increase in
consumers. SAWS revenues also increased by $1,215 due to a drier summer season resulting in
increased water usage and an overall increase in consumers causing an increase in Revenues from
Utilities of $46,858.

e Investment Earnings decreased by $14,564 due to a significant decrease in yields within the market
during the fiscal year and lower cash and investment holdings as a result of lower average investment
balances.
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e An increase of $49,334 of General Government expenses is primarily attributed to Capital Project
activity increasing by $28,709 due to a purchase of Right Away acquisitions for the Edwards Aquifer
Land Acquisition and Parks Expansion and an increase of $1,456 due to an increase in projects initiated
in fiscal year 2008 compared to fiscal year 2007. General Government activity saw an additional
increase of $18,267 due to implementing GASB Statement No. 45 Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

e Public Safety expenses increased by $70,700 primarily due to an increase in personal services of
$54,189 due to the hiring of 80 police officers and 96 firefighters during fiscal year 2008, and an
increase in fuel costs of $3,436.

e Public Works expenses increased by $48,346 due to the increase in public works projects after the
passage of the 2007 $550,000 bond initiative as well as an increase in the City’s contractual street
maintenance program.

e Culture and Recreation expenses increased by $13,211 due to increased personal services of $3,353 in
the Convention and Visitors Facilities Fund; increased General Fund expenditures for the library and
parks in the amount of $4,099 and $886, respectively. The library increase includes a $994 increase in
charges for phone and computer services and an $830 increase in expenses for a new book
identification and security system.

e Convention and Tourism expenses decreased by $86,701, primarily due to a decrease in expenses
associated with the Grand Hyatt Hotel, which was completed in fiscal year 2008.

e Welfare expenses increased in fiscal year 2008 by $14,757 due to an increase of grant funded
expenditures in fiscal year 2008 of $7,153 and an increase in the General Fund in personal services of
$2,166 and other expenditures of $1,525 related mostly to fuel costs and direct welfare payments.

e Interest on Long-Term Debt, Net increased by $22,989 due to an increase in interest expense as a
result of additional issuances obtained during 2008, as well as a modification to the effective interest
calculation on the amortization of unamortized bond issuance costs, discounts and premiums.

Business-Type Activities

Program revenues for the City’s Business-Type Activities totaled $193,907, which is $37,288 higher than the
previous fiscal year. The remaining revenues were a result of interest earnings and other miscellaneous items.
Expenses for Business-Type Activities were $172,889 compared to prior year’s expenses of $141,079.

Business-Type Activities Business-Type Activities
Expenses and Revenues Revenues by Source
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Business-Type Activities increased the City’s net assets by $29,904, primarily because of the following:

e Charges for Services increased $23,489 primarily because the Airport System experienced an increase in
revenues in the amount of $10,829 as a result of increased concession and parking revenues, due to
continued growth in passenger travel through San Antonio International Airport and the Airport’s
construction and opening of a new parking garage in fiscal year 2008 to keep up with that growth.
Environmental Services revenues also increased by $11,908 due to an increase in customers served as
well as a fee increase to cover costs of the automated conversion of trucks, new waste containers and
solid waste services.

e A $13,799 increase in Capital Grants and Contributions in the Airport System was primarily attributed
to a $9,144 increase in reimbursement from grant funded capital projects due to the Airport’s ongoing
expansion project, as well as an increase of $4,717 in passenger facility charge revenues due to
increased passenger travel at San Antonio International.

e While yield amounts are lower than the prior year, Investment Earnings increased by $911 due to larger
cash balances maintained in the funds as a result of operations and bond sales that took place in fiscal
year 2008.

e Airport System expenses increased by $16,023 primarily due to increased personnel costs and
contractual services associated with the growth of both San Antonio International and Stinson Airports.

e Parking System expenses increased by $1,857, which is a result of higher personnel costs and increase
repair and maintenance costs of parking facilities and assets.

e Environmental Services expenses increased by $13,930, due to additional expenses associated with the
ongoing implementation of the automated garbage collection services, which are scheduled to be
completed in fiscal year 2010.

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds

Activities of the Primary Government’s General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, and Capital
Projects Funds are considered general government functions. The General Fund is the City’s general operating
fund. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted as to expenditure. The Debt Service Fund is used to account for financial activity related to the
City’s general bonded indebtedness, as well as other long-term obligations. The Capital Projects Funds are
used to account for financial activity related to the City indebtedness for Capital Projects, other agency
contributions and the operating activities of those projects.

Revenues from taxes increased by $67,101, which is primarily attributable to: (1) a $27,618 or 13.5% increase
in property tax and related penalties and interest revenues in the General Fund, (2) a $6,957 or 3.6% increase
in sales and use tax revenues in the General Fund, (3) a $17,992 or 15.1% increase in property tax and related
penalties and interest revenues in the Debt Service Fund, (4) a $4,521 or 7.1% increase in occupancy taxes and
related penalties and interest revenues in the Nonmajor Governmental Funds, and (5) a $3,560 or 73.4%
increase in property tax revenue in the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Fund. The increases in property
taxes are a result of increased property valuation, increased collections, new construction, and annexation;
while the increase in sales and use taxes and occupancy taxes are a result of continued growth and room
capacity, as well as expanded tourism and convention business.

The total fund balance of the General Fund at year-end was $205,548, an increase of $45,251 from the total
restated fund balance of $160,297 in fiscal year 2007. The total unreserved General Fund balance for fiscal
year 2008 is $190,775, which represents $82,994 in designated and $107,781 in undesignated fund balances.
The undesignated fund balance, which represents amounts available for additional appropriations in the
General Fund at the close of the fiscal year, increased by $26,876 from the previous year’s restated balance. In
addition, the City’s financial reserves were increased $20,050 in fiscal year 2008. This reserve, which is
recorded in the designated unreserved balance, will be utilized for unforeseen operational or capital
requirements, extraordinary occurrences such as natural disasters or other similar events, to assist the City in
managing fluctuations in available General Fund resources and to stabilize the budget.
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The total fund balance of the Debt Service Fund at year-end was $105,948, an increase of $3,642 from the
total fund balance of $102,306 in fiscal year 2007. The entire fund balance is reserved for payment of debt

service.

The Categorical Grant-In Aid Fund has a total deficit fund balance of $7,873. The City engaged in a grant
reconciliation effort that began in fiscal year 2006 and continued into fiscal year 2008. The City’s departmental
fiscal staff was required to validate data in the City’s financial system relating to grants. With this effort, the
City determined that it spent dollars in excess of the grant allocations while providing more services to the
community. These deficits have been incorporated into the City’s annual budget process and are scheduled to
be funded over the next four years from general revenues.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

/ Variances in Budget Appropriations \

(Budgetary Basis)
General Fund
Original Final Actual
Budget Budget Results
General Government $ 95,325 $ 113,531 $ 84,270
Public Safety 463,611 467,555 456,687
Public Works 11,290 11,301 11,477
Health Services 63,178 63,908 65,892
Sanitation 3,113 3,465 3,446
Welfare 44,136 47,962 46,712
Culture and Recreation 76,202 77,095 74,574
Economic Development
and Opportunity 3,561 3,707 3,143
Transfers to Other Funds 92,143 95,290 95,755

K Total $ 852,550  § 883,814 _$ 841,956 /

Changes in original budget appropriations to the final amended budget appropriations were a $31,255 increase
in appropriations. This increase can be summarized by the following discussion:

General Government has an $18,206 increase composed of $12,650 of budget carryforwards and a
$5,556 increase in budget. Of the $12,650 of budget carryforwards, $10,769 is nondepartmental and
one time projects carryforwards while the remainder is carryforwards for other departments. The
$5,556 budget increase is made up increases in special projects and nondepartmental appropriations of
$4,645, other budget increases and decreases in various departments resulting in a net budget increase
of $9,532, less the recovery of indirect costs from applicable program activities.

Of the $3,944 increase in Public Safety, $750 is due to budget carryforwards and $3,194 to budget
increases. The $3,194 in budget increases is primarily due to an increase in personal services within the
Police Department of $1,210 and within Fire of $1,140.

Of the $3,826 increase in Welfare, $3,516 is due to budget carryforwards and $310 is due to a budget
increase. Because much of the Welfare budget is spent on contracts with cost reimbursement
payments, a larger percentage of the budget is encumbered at year-end than other program activities.

The $3,147 increase in transfers is due to $1,294 in budget carryforwards and $1,853 in new
appropriations. The majority of the new appropriations come from the transfer of $2,000 from the
designated reserve loss fund’s balance to the streets Endowment Reserve Fund, to properly track the
interest earnings on that $2,000 for street endowment while the $2,000 corpus is retained in the total
loss fund’s balance.
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Final budgeted appropriations for the General Fund were $883,814, while actual expenditures were $841,956
creating a positive variance of $41,858. Significant variances are as follows:

General Government had a $29,261 positive variance, which is due to the fact that indirect costs
charged and recovered from other departments are netted against actual related expenditures. These
indirect cost’s recoveries ($8,621 in fiscal year 2008) were not included in the budget. The City
budgeted the annual cost of living adjustment in the General Government function while actual
payouts were charged to both General Government and Public Safety in line with the City’s personnel
components. Salary reserves represented $10,585 in fiscal year 2008. Public Safety typically receives
70% of the total estimate.

Public Safety had a $10,868 positive variance, which is primarily due a reduction of expenses in the
amount of $5,977 for a rebate of flexible benefit contributions made to the City’s self insurance funds.
Also, reimbursement of various expenditures were recognized for Hurricanes Dolly and lke for $1,569.
Health Services had a $1,984 negative variance, which is primarily due to higher than budgeted
personal services expenditures associated with keeping personnel to complete the transition of clinics
to University Health, which took longer than expected.

Welfare had a $1,250 positive variance, which is primarily due to $1,170 of carried forward
expenditures for contractual services and direct welfare payments to cost reimbursement contracts.
Culture and Recreation had a $2,521 positive variance, which is due to $1,494 in contractual services
savings for parks due to a carry forward of a five year maintenance and renovation program for
Casiano, Martinez and Harlandale parks.

The following charts provide a comparison of the City’s budget appropriations.

Budget Appropriations by Function
Original Budget/Final Budget/Actual - General Fund
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Financial Analysis of Proprietary Funds

Activities of the Primary Government’s Airport System, Parking System, and Environmental Services Funds are
considered proprietary funds. The Airport System handles operations at both the San Antonio International
Airport and Stinson Municipal Airport. The Parking System handles operations of the City’s parking garages and
lots. The Environmental Services handles trash collection operations and the activities of the City’s landfills.
Financial analysis for the proprietary funds is on the same basis as the business-type activities. See further
analysis on the funds’ operations at pages 6 and 7.

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30,
2008 amounts to $3,752,912 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
other non-depreciable assets, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and
construction in progress. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year
was $209,865, which comprises of a $137,393 increase in governmental activities and a $72,472 increase in
business-type activities.

/ Governmental Business-Type Total Primary \
Activities Activities Government
2007 2007
2008 (Restated) * 2008 2007 2008 (Restated)
Land $ 1,356,141 $ 1,341,567 $ 14,341 $ 13,561 $ 1,370,482 $ 1,355,128
Other Non-Depreciable Assets 500 500
Buildings 472,703 449,071 146,223 99,009 618,926 548,080
Improvements 222,640 176,453 127,720 129,614 350,360 306,067
Infrastructure 851,846 861,586 851,846 861,586
Machinery and Equipment 151,335 155,322 7,596 4,678 158,931 160,000
Construction in Progress 280,414 214,187 121,453 97,999 401,867 312,186
Total $ 3,335,579  $ 3,198,186 $ 417,333 $ 344,861 $ 3,752,912 $ 3,543,047
*Certain amounts have been restated as discussed in Note 17, Prior Period Restatement.

" /

During fiscal year 2008, the City transferred $200,325 of construction in progress to depreciable asset classes
for various completed projects of buildings, improvements, and infrastructure.

The following schedule provides a summary of the City’s capital assets:

Total Capital Assets $3,752,912 Biang
$1,400,000 1 A $1,370,482 B Other Non-Depreciable
$1,200,000 - \ Assets
W Buildings

$1,000,000 - \ $851,846

$800,000 A \ $618,926 /\ OlImprovements

600,000 +—|

$ | $350,360 / \ $401,867 OInfrastructure

$400,000 - \ $158,931 /\ ' _

$200,000 +— i B Machinery and Equipment

$0 - - - — O Construction in Progress
Governmental and Business-Type Activities

For Fiscal Year 2008
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Change in Capital Assets
September 30, 2008
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Beginning Balance $ 5,038,066 $ 521,735 $ 5,559,801
Additions 254,028 84,543 338,571
Deletions (11,991) (779) (12,770)
Accumulated Depreciation (1,944,524) (188,166) (2,132,690)
Ending Balance $ 3,335,579 $ 417,333 $ 3,752,912

o J

The following charts provide a summary of the ending balances of capital assets for both the current and prior
fiscal years:

Total Capital Assets

$3,400,000 $3,335,579

$3,300,000 $3 108 186

$3,200,000

$3,100,000
Governmental Activities

|EI Fiscal Year End 2008 B Fiscal Year End 2007

Total Capital Assets

$600,000
$400,000
$200,000

$0

$417,333 $344,861

Business-Type Activities
OFiscal Year End 2008 B Fiscal Year End 2007

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4, Capital Assets.

Debt Administration

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total of $2,041,332 in bonds, certificates, tax notes and
commercial paper outstanding, an increase of 15.2% over last year. Additional information on the City’s long-
term debt, including descriptions of the new issues, can be found in Note 6, Long-Term Debt and Note 7,
Commercial Paper Programs.
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/ City of San Antonio's Outstanding Debt \

September 30, 2008 and 2007

Governmental Activities

2008 2007
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds $ 717,275 $ 667,280
Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation 291,380 218,185
Taxable Certificates of Obligation 225 290
Tax Notes 17,925 60,000
Commercial Paper 10,500 4,000
Revenue Bonds 578,412 554,372
Capital Appreciation Bonds (CAB) 17,620 16,497
Total $ 1,633,337 $ 1,520,624
Business-Type Activities
2008 2007
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds $ 9,495 $ =
Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation 2,805
Revenue Bonds 395,695 251,370
Total $ 407,995 $ 251,370

Governmental Activities

In 2008, the City issued additional indebtedness for a total of $388,245. The $388,245 was composed of
$121,220 in general obligation bonds, $104,255 in certificates of obligations, $21,270 in tax notes, $135,000 in
revenue bonds, and $6,500 in commercial paper.

The general obligation bonds will be utilized to refund a portion of the City’s outstanding tax supported debt,
and to fund various capital improvement projects. The certificates of obligations will be utilized for such capital
projects to improve existing municipal facilities (to include libraries, golf courses, and parks), constructing the
new Haven for Hope Homeless Campus, acquiring the Mission Drive In Theatre land for open space and other
projects related to public safety, drainage, streets, and flood control.

In December 2007, the City issued $21,270 in tax anticipation notes that will be will be used to fund technology
improvements for various City-owned systems and improvements to the City’s infrastructure improvements at
Brooks City-Base.

Additionally in July 2008, the City issued $135,000 of Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) Revenue Refunding Bonds;
the proceeds will be used to refund a portion of the City’s outstanding debt and for renovation to the Lila
Cockrell Theatre as well as other expansion-related improvements.

In May 2007, the City adopted an ordinance authorizing the issuance of up to $50,000 in Sales Tax Revenue
Commercial Paper Notes, Series A. Proceeds from the sale of the Commercial Paper Notes are to provide funds
to acquire property with the intent of protecting water in the Edwards Aquifer as contemplated by the
“Edwards Aquifer Protection Venue Project” (authorized at an election held on May 7, 2005). As of September
30, 2008, $10,500 of Commercial Paper Notes are outstanding.

Business-Type Activities

On December 14, 2007, the City issued $82,400 in Airport System Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2007.
Concurrently, the City issued $74,860 in Passenger Facility Charge and Subordinate Lien Airport System
Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2007. The Bonds were issued to fund various airport system capital
improvements including PFC eligible airport-related projects.

In fiscal year 2008 the Environmental Services Fund received proceeds from the Combination Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2007, in the amount of $2,500. These proceeds will be utilized to provide a
Compress Natural Gas fueling facility at the City’s Northeast Service Center, and to repair a slope failure at
Pearsall Landfill.
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In fiscal year 2008 several transactions were initiated transferring debt issued for proprietary fund projects
from governmental funds to proprietary funds. When the debt relating to 2006 Certificates of Obligations,
2004A Refunding General Obligations, and 2007 Tax Notes (which were subsequently refunded with 2006
General Obligations) were initially recorded, proceeds, bonds payable, and additional bond costs (premiums,
discounts, cost of issuances) were recorded in the governmental funds. Therefore, all self supporting enterprise
debt was moved from governmental funds into their respective enterprise fund, along with any capital projects
currently under construction and remaining unspent bond proceeds. As a result, $9,685 of outstanding debt was
transferred into the Parking System Fund from the Debt Service Fund and a total of $1,360 of debt was
transferred into the Environmental Services Fund from Capital Project Funds. See Note 6, Long-Term Debt for
additional information on the transferring of debt obligations.

Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch’s underlying rating for City obligations during fiscal year 2008 are as
follows:

/ Standard \

& Poor's Moody's Fitch
General Obligation/Certificates of Obligation/Tax Notes AA+ Aal AA+
Hotel Occupancy Tax Bonds (Long Term) A+ Al A
Hotel Occupancy Tax Bonds (Short Term) AAA/A-1+  Aaa/VMIG1  AA+/F1+
Hotel Occupancy Tax Notes Private Placement - Not Rated
Airport System A+ Al A+
Aiport PFC A- A2 A
Parking System A+ A2 A+
Municipal Drainage Utility System Revenue Bonds AA- Al A+
\ Sales Tax Revenue Commercial Paper A-1+ P-1 F1+ /

Standard & Poor’s elevated the City’s General Obligation/Certificates of Obligation/Tax Notes rating in
October 2008 to AAA.

The Constitution of the State of Texas and the City Charter limit the amount of debt the City may incur. For
more information related to these limits see Note 6, Long-Term Debt. The total assessed valuation for the
fiscal year-ended 2008 was $76,465,984, which provides a debt ceiling of $7,646,598.

Currently Known Facts

The City processed numerous debt issuances after fiscal year-end. In November 2008, the City issued $10,120 in
Taxable General Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2008. In December 2008, the City issued $75,060 of
General Improvement Bonds, Series 2008, $85,005 in Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2008, and $15,320 in Tax Notes, Series 2008.

On November 25, 2008, the City engaged in a real estate exchange transaction with Hixon Properties, Inc. The
City sold the River Bend Parking Garage property valued at $22,400 for other downtown property valued at
$15,500 and cash proceeds of $6,900, less related closing fees. This new property will be used to construct a
new Public Safety Headquarters, which will serve as a downtown headquarters for both the Fire and Police
Departments.

For more information on these items, please see Note 18, Subsequent Events.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s position for those with an interest
in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department, P.O. Box 839966, San
Antonio, TX 78283-3966.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Assets
As of September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Collateral from Securities Lending
Investments
Receivables, Net
Due from:
Fiduciary Funds
Other Governmental Agencies
Internal Balances
Materials and Supplies, at Cost
Prepaid Expenses
Other Assets
Deposits
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses
Deposits
Deferred Charges
Due from:
Other Governmental Agencies
Prepaid Expenses
Capital Assets:
Non Depreciable
Depreciable, Net
Assets Held for Resale
Prepaid Rent Long Term - Leaseback
Net OPEB Asset
Other Noncurrent Assets
Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs
Total Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Unearned Revenue
Securities Lending Obligation
Accrued Interest
Due to:
Other Governmental Agencies
Restricted Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Interest
Due to:
Other Governmental Agencies
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Renewal and Replacement
Perpetual Care:
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
$ 22,259 $ 3,249 25,508 198,854
400,306
364,125 38,447 402,572 414,417
100,622 12,124 112,746 267,639
442 442
3,126 3,126 3,313
(6,899) 6,899
6,195 825 7,020 157,989
1,350 2 1,372 80,016
719
213 50 263
66,417 21,667 88,084 114,008
551,777 268,142 819,919 1,447,713
80,841 2,025 82,866 22,084
2 22
261 261
6,268
7,906 7,906
627,470
1,637,055 135,794 1,772,849 1,476,018
1,698,524 281,539 1,980,063 7,297,421
3,283
456,813
30,218
37,792
25,371 5,545 30,916 17,286
4,559,607 776,328 5,335,935 13,059,627
105,002 11,438 116,440 461,753
11,688 1,136 12,824 1,959
400,306
15 15
729 729 2,158
65,789 7,285 73,074 16,740
25,955 25,955
13,249 5,105 18,354 8,994
3,654 3,654
153,105 19,865 172,970 235,989
1,802,279 415,165 2,217,444 7,128,149
2,181,450 460,009 2,641,459 8,256,048
2,092,623 208,894 2,301,517 3,767,039
116,771 33,790 150,561 24,569
42,388 42,388 2,953
506,835
1,000 1,000
4,766 4,766
162,997 31,247 194,244 502,183
S 2,378,157 S 316,319 S 2,694,476 4,803,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Activities
Year-Ended September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
FUNCTION/PROGRAM ACTIVITIES EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government 168,215 S 45,757 S 1,637 2,572
Public Safety 527,075 9,536 16,757 928
Public Works 191,518 46,970 21,480 25,123
Sanitation 3,000 5 986 233
Health Services 90,220 22,792 14,918 159
Culture and Recreation 141,661 40,549 5,725 1,218
Convention and Tourism 68,584 1,278 1,524 19,003
Conservation 1,068
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 19,226 2 18,199 274
Welfare 168,461 192 115,049 67
Economic Development and Opportunity 17,329 2,026 2,461
Amortization of Issuance Cost 7,266
Amortization of Bond (Premium)/Discount (24,475)
Amortization of Refunding Charges 9,645
Interest on Long-Term Debt 78,667
Total Governmental Activities 1,467,460 169,107 198,736 49,577
Business-Type Activities:
Airport System 80,505 63,944 36,987
Parking System 10,382 10,988
Environmental Services 82,002 81,988
Total Business-Type Activities 172,889 156,920 36,987
Total Primary Government 1,640,349 S 326,027 S 198,736 86,564
Discretely Presented Component Units:
CPS Energy 1,904,053 1,860,677 58,390
San Antonio Water System 341,626 330,337 139,764
Brooks Development Authority 18,830 24,988 5,294
City South Management Authority 244
Main Plaza Conservancy 522 1 736
Municipal Golf Association - San Antonio 2,448 2,516
Port Authority of San Antonio 32,017 44,578 (540)
SA Energy Acquisition Corporation 39,684 39,372
San Antonio Development Agency 492 370 131
San Antonio Education Facilities Corporation 2 20
San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation, Inc. 1,391 8 1,066
San Antonio Local Development Company 1,234 425 369
Westside Development Corporation 253
Total Component Units 2,342,796 S 2,303,302 S 867 204,343
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property

General Sales and Use
Selective Sales and Use
Gross Receipts Business
Occupancy
Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes
Revenues from Utilities
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Adjustment for STP Pension Cost
Special Items
Transfers, net

Total General Revenues, Special Items, and Transfers

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Fiscal Year, as restated

Net Assets - End of Fiscal Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

-15 -

Amounts are expressed in thousands



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Activities
Year-Ended September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
3 (118,249) & 3 (118,249)  $
(499,854) (499,854)
(97,945) (97,945)
(1,776) (1,776)
(52,351) (52,351)
(94,169) (94,169)
(46,779) (46,779)
(1,068) (1,068)
(751) (751)
(53,153) (53,153)
(12,842) (12,842)
(7,266) (7,266)
24,475 24,475
(9,645) (9,645)
(78,667) (78,667)
(1,050,040) (1,050,040)
20,426 20,426
606 606
(14) (14)
21,018 21,018
(1,050,040} 21,018 (1,029,022)
15,014
128,475
11,452
(244)
225
68
12,021
(312)
9
18
(317)
(440)
(253)
165,716
379,457 379,457
232,348 232,348
5,712 5,712
31,705 31,705
68,414 68,414
3,797 3,797
304,545 304,545
39,463 12,010 51,473 142,652
30,299 12 30,311 913
(21,174)
8,320 (8,320)
(5,184) 5,184
1,098,876 8,886 1,107,762 122,391
48,836 29,904 78,740 288,107
2,329,321 286,415 2,615,736 4,515,472
s 2,378.157 S 316,319 S 2,694,476 S 4,803,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
As of September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

MAJOR FUNDS
CATEGORICAL NONMAJOR TOTAL
DEBT GRANT-IN GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE AID FUNDS FUNDS
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 5,602 $ - S - S 11,788 S 17,390
Investments 118,610 130,934 249,544
Receivables, Net 86,658 10,530 97,188
Prepaid Expenditures 18 384 402
Due from:
Other Funds 37,881 834 38,715
Other Governmental Agencies 2,010 1,037 3,047
Materials and Supplies, at Cost 4,326 415 4,741
Deposits 75 75
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 20,503 268 45,646 66,417
Investments 85,502 466,275 551,777
Receivables, Net 6,609 50,432 23,800 80,841
Prepaid Expenditures 22 22
Deposits 261 261
Due from:
Other Funds 855 2,242 46,657 49,754
Other Governmental Agencies 7,906 7,906
Total Assets S 255,105 S 113,469 S 52,942 S 746,564 S 1,168,080
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable S 5,673 $ - S - ) 4,647 $ 10,320
Accounts Payable - Other 6,821 9,962 16,783
Accrued Payroll 14,279 3,091 17,370
Accrued Leave Payable 8,422 605 9,027
Unearned Revenue 10,123 10,123
Due To:
Other Funds 4,239 14,278 18,517
Other Governmental Agencies 18 18
Restricted Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable 4,197 23,012 27,209
Accounts Payable - Other 189 9,363 25,552 35,104
Accrued Payroll 808 239 1,047
Accrued Leave Payable 5 5
Unearned Revenues 5,189 11,660 14,295 31,144
Amounts Held in Trust 2,429 2,429
Due to:
Other Funds 2,143 34,235 44,252 80,630
Other Governmental Agencies 552 3,102 3,654
Total Liabilities 49,557 7,521 60,815 145,487 263,380
Fund Balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for Encumbrances 10,429 303,918 314,347
Reserved for Deposits 336 336
Reserved for Materials and Supplies 4,326 415 4,741
Reserved for Prepaid Expenditures 18 406 424
Reserved for Debt Service 105,948 105,948
Unreserved:
Designated: General Fund 82,994 82,994
Designated: Special Revenue Funds 3,487 3,487
Designated: Permanent Funds 5,018 5,018
Undesignated: Major Funds 107,781 (7,873) 99,908
Undesignated: Special Revenue Funds 167,810 167,810
Undesignated: Capital Projects Funds 109,004 109,004
Undesignated: Permanent Funds 10,683 10,683
Total Fund Balances 205,548 105,948 (7,873) 601,077 904,700
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S 255,105 S 113,469 S 52,942 S 746,564 S 1,168,080

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Funds
As of September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:
Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds ) 904,700

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the governmental funds.

Governmental Capital Assets:

Land 1,356,141

Other Non-Depreciable Assets 500
Construction In Progress 280,414
Buildings 710,707
Improvements 295,314
Infrastructure 2,291,681

Machinery and Equipment 194,834
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,848,546)

Total Governmental Capital Assets 3,281,045

Some of the City's revenues will be collected after year-end, but are not available soon enough
to pay for the current period's expenditures, and therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds (See Note 14). 3,647

Long-term receivables applicable in governmental activities are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 1,565

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are included in the
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 116,456

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, neither are associated
unamortized assets available financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.

Governmental Bonds Payable (1,622,837)
Commercial Paper Payable (10,500)
Unamortized Discount/ (Premium) on Bonds, Net (39,991)
Deferred Amount on Refunding 10,287

Leases Payable (12,381)
Notes Payable (54,958)
Other Payables (2,315)
Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs 25,371

Net OPEB Obligation (16,171)
Accrued Interest (13,249)
Arbitrage Rebate (501)
Compensated Absences (192,011)

(1,929,256)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities S 2,378,157

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year-Ended September 30, 2008
(in Thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
General Sales and Use
Selective Sales and Use
Gross Receipts Business
Occupancy

Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Revenues from Utilities
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Miscellaneous
Investment Earnings
Contributions
In-Kind Contributions
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health Services
Sanitation
Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Convention and Tourism
Urban Redevelopment and Housing
Economic Development and Opportunity
Capital Projects
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest
Other
Issuance Costs
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of Long-Term Debt
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent
Issuance of Notes and Loans
Issuance of Commercial Paper
Premium/ (Discount) on Long-Term Debt
Release of Enterprise Fund Obligations
Debt Transfer to Enterprise Funds
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, October 1, as restated

Fund Balances, September 30

MAJOR FUNDS

CATEGORICAL NONMAJOR TOTAL
DEBT GRANT-IN GOVERNMENTAL  GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE AID FUNDS FUNDS

232,493 $ 136,090 $ 8,301 § 376,884
196,306 36,042 232,348
5,712 5,712
31,705 31,705
68,414 68,414

2,279 1,327 191 3,797
7,756 7,756
6,468 161,725 53,750 221,943
304,158 304,158,
43,010 831 105,140 148,981
12,249 12,249
10,982 384 2,622 15,483 29,471
4,940 6,430 62 23,980 35,412
15,053 15,053

15,091 1,131 16,222

858,058 144,231 180,331 327,485 1,510,105
81,880 698 1,615 33,660 117,853
454,466 16,679 1,759 472,904
11,477 26,311 83,235 121,023
65,049 17,217 7,820 90,086
3,301 1,071 4,372
44,547 121,301 415 166,263
74,031 2,144 56,575 132,750
20,053 20,053

1,009 18,999 20,008

3,046 380 11,211 14,637
319,663 319,663

97,485 1,900 99,385

62,170 15,101 77,271

1,071 1,396 2,467

737,797 161,424 187,727 571,787 1,658,735
120,261 (17,193) (7,396) (244,302) (148,630)
164,865 216,880 381,745
(170,737) (170,737)

2,799 2,799

6,500 6,500

3,267 8,747 12,014

9,645 9,645
(9,645) (1,400) (11,045)

18,720 25,066 10,397 287,044 341,227
(93,730) (1,626) (370) (252,414) (348,140)
(75,010) 20,835 10,027 268,156 224,008
45,251 3,642 2,631 23,854 75,378
160,297 102,306 (10,504) 577,223 829,322
205,548 S 105,948 S (7.873) $ 601,077 S 904,700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year-Ended September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Net change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds S 75,378

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceed depreciation in the current period.

Expenditures for Capital Assets 234,213

Less: Current Year Depreciation (96,900)

Less: Current Year Deletions (3,943) 133,370

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not

reported as revenues in the funds. (3,120)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, notes and loans) provides current financial resources to

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current

financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.

Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items

when debt is first issued. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-

term debt and related items.

Bond, Note and Loan Amounts Issued (391,044)

Premium, Discount and Deferred Charges (12,014)

Bond Issuance Costs 2,467

Payments to Escrow Agent 170,737

Amortization of Bond Premiums and Discounts, and Deferred Charges, Net 5,944

Debt Transfer to Enterprise Funds 1,400

Note Payments 20

Principal Payments 99,365 (123,125)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds (See Note 14). (49,374)

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities to individual

funds. The net (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 15,707
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities S 48,836

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Assets:
Current Assets:
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net:
Other Accounts
Accrued Interest
Accrued Revenue
Due from:
Other Funds
Other Governmental Agencies, Net
Materials and Supplies, at Cost
Prepaid Expenses
Deposits

Total Unrestricted Assets
Restricted Assets:
Debt Service Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Due From Other Funds
Construction Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Due From Other Funds
Other Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest

Improvement and Contingency Accounts:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Due From Other Funds

Total Restricted Assets

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets
Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR INTERNAL
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE SERVICE
SYSTEM FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
$ 918 S 2,331 S 3,249 S 4,869
19,710 18,737 38,447 114,581
3,096 80 3,176 960
139 145 284 907
1,905 6,759 8,664 2
112 16,399 16,511 5,400
79
590 235 825 1,454
22 22 948
50 50 138
26,492 44,736 71,228 129,338
9,020 1,384 10,404
24,303 1,540 25,843
152 14 166
998 3,602 4,600
8,471 567 9,038
185,031 8,647 193,678
1,480 68 1,548
2,219 2,219
194 194
4,247 4,247
21 21
1,761 270 2,031
38,472 5,902 44,374
272 18 290
8,825 8,825
283,247 24,231 307,478
309,739 68,967 378,706 129,338
5,323 9,018 14,341
195,802 30,362 226,164 178
213,246 8,214 221,460 530
11,578 10,503 22,081 149,804
120,184 1,269 121,453
546,133 59,366 605,499 150,512
170,066 18,100 188,166 95,978
376,067 41,266 417,333 54,534
4,946 599 5,545
381,013 41,865 422,878 54,534
S 690,752 $ 110,832 S 801,584 $ 183,872
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR INTERNAL
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE SERVICE
SYSTEM FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Payable from Current Unrestricted Assets:
Vouchers Payable S 574 S 1,114 S 1,688 S 4,714
Accounts Payable-Other 5,830 1,997 7,827 3,154
Claims Payable 51,267
Accrued Payroll 871 1,052 1,923 1,394
Current Portion of Accrued Leave Payable 356 333 689 429
Unearned Revenue 1,136 1,136 23
Accrued Interest 15 15
Current Portion of Lease Purchase 180
Due to Other Funds 3,060 12,040 15,100 1,805
Total Payable from Current Unrestricted Assets 11,827 16,551 28,378 62,966
Payable from Restricted Assets:
Vouchers Payable 7,220 65 7,285
Accrued Bond Interest 4,919 186 5,105
Current Portion of Bonds 13,200 2,075 15,275
Due to Other Funds 6,968 2,562 9,530
Current Portion of Unamortized Premium/ (Discount) 319 (14) 305
Current Portion of Deferred Amount on Refunding (559) (24) (583)
Current Portion of Lease Purchase 3,887 3,887
Current Portion of Accrued Landfill Postclosure Costs 275 275
Other Payables 14 3 17
Total Payable from Restricted Assets 32,081 9,015 41,096
Total Current Liabilities 43,908 25,566 69,474 62,966
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Revenue Bonds (Net of Current Portion) 360,380 21,015 381,395
General Obligation Bonds and Certificates (Net of Current Portion) 11,325 11,325
Unamortized Premium/ (Discount) (Net of Current Portion) 4,906 40 4,946
Deferred Amount on Refunding (Net of Current Portion) (2,155) (215) (2,370)
Accrued Leave Payable (Net of Current Portion) 1,778 1,666 3,444 2,145
Lease Purchase (Net of Current Portion) 11,059 11,059 124
Net OPEB Obligation 1,546 2,059 3,605 2,096
Due to Other Governmental Agencies 711
Accrued Landfill Postclosure Costs (Net of Current Portion) 1,761 1,761
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 366,455 48,710 415,165 5,076
Total Liabilities 410,363 74,276 484,639 68,042
Net Assets:
Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 198,423 10,471 208,894 54,230
Restricted:
Debt Service 29,373 4,417 33,790
Capital Projects 40,345 2,043 42,388
Unrestricted 12,248 19,625 31,873 61,600
Total Net Assets S 280,389 S 36,556 S 316,945 S 115,830
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. ($626)

Net assets of business-type activities. S 316,319

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year-Ended September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR INTERNAL
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE SERVICE
SYSTEM FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services S 63,602 S 92,144 S 155,746 S 221,413
Total Operating Revenues 63,602 92,144 155,746 221,413
Operating Expenses:

Personal Services 25,652 34,033 59,685 38,095

Contractual Services 7,306 25,077 32,383 27,205

Commodities 2,207 8,071 10,278 7,028

Materials 24,580

Claims 86,395

Other 6,450 17,486 23,936 17,253

Depreciation 9,721 1,605 11,326 14,751
Total Operating Expenses 51,336 86,272 137,608 215,307

Operating Income 12,266 5,872 18,138 6,106
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment Earnings 10,732 1,278 12,010 4,036

Other Nonoperating Revenue 16,368 842 17,210 2,479

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 2 2 3,693

Interest and Debt Expense (18,516) (1,880) (20,396) (15)

Other Nonoperating Expense (11,291) (5,915) (17,206)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (2,705) (5,675) (8,380) 10,193
Change in Net Assets Before Contributions

and Transfers 9,561 197 9,758 16,299
Capital Contributions 20,961 20,961
Debt Transfer from Governmental Funds (8,320) (8,320)

Transfers In (Out):

Transfers In 300 7,188 7,488 10,363

Transfers Out (239) (2,065) (2,304) (8,634)
Total Transfers In (Out) 61 5,123 5,184 1,729
Change In Net Assets 30,583 (3,000) 27,583 18,028
Net Assets - October 1 249,806 39,556 97,802
Net Assets - September 30 S 280,389 S 36,556 S 115,830

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. 2,321

Change in Net Assets of Business-Type Activities. S 29,904

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets/Balance Sheet

Fiduciary Funds
As of September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Security Lending Collateral
Investments, at Fair Value:

U.S. Government and Agency Issues

Corporate Bonds
Preferred and Common Stock
Other

Total Investments, at Fair Value
Receivables:

Other Accounts

Accrued Interest

Accrued Revenue
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets
Machinery and Equipment
Buildings

Total Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable
Accounts Payable - Other
Accrued Payroll
Due to Other Funds

Unearned Revenue
Securities Lending Obligation

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
and Other Purposes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

FIRE AND
POLICE
PENSION AND
HEALTH CARE
FUNDS

PRIVATE PURPOSE

TRUST FUND -
SAN ANTONIO
LITERACY
PROGRAM

AGENCY
FUNDS

$ 64,484
166,199

65,089
328,269
849,981
753,876

21

1,396

9,548

1,997,215

21

9,548

2,923
7,079
2,645

19

358
1"

2,240,564

22

11,313

126
767

893
379

514

S 2,241,078

22

11,313

4,438
7,313
106

306
168,229

45
10,826

442

180,392

11,313

) 2,060,686

22
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
Year-Ended September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

FIRE AND PRIVATE PURPOSE
POLICE TRUST FUND -
PENSION AND SAN ANTONIO
HEALTH CARE LITERACY
FUNDS PROGRAM
Additions:
Contributions:
Employer S 78,136 S
Employee 33,748
Total Contributions 111,884
Investment Earnings/(Loss):
Net (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (347,208)
Real Estate Income, Net 8,551
Interest and Dividends 39,628 1
Securities Lending 4,786
Other Income 1,535
Total Investment Earnings/(Loss) (292,708) 1
Less Investment Expenses:
Investment Management Fees and Custodian Fees (12,559)
Securities Lending Expenses:
Borrower Rebates (4,796)
Lending Fees (707)

Net Investment Earnings/(Loss) (310,770) 1
Total Additions (198,886) 1
Deductions:

Benefits 129,232

Refunds of Contributions 490

Administrative Expense 2,536 1

Salaries, Wage and Employee Benefits 655
Total Deductions 132,913 1
Change in Net Assets (331,799)

Net Assets - October 1 2,392,485 22
Net Assets - September 30 S 2,060,686 S 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Assets

Discretely Presented Component Units
As of September 30, 2008

(In Thousands)
SAN ANTONIO NONMAJOR

CPS WATER COMPONENT
ENERGY SYSTEM UNITS TOTAL
Assets:
Current Assets:
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 160,926 S 14,384 S 23,544 S 198,854
Cash Collateral from Securities Lending 400,306 400,306
Investments 234,115 179,615 687 414,417
Receivables, Net:
Notes 7,079 7,079
Other Accounts 180,740 43,037 8,245 232,022
Accrued Interest 25,788 2,666 84 28,538
Materials and Supplies, at Cost 153,084 4,805 100 157,989
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 3,313 3,313
Prepaid Expenses 43,361 2,242 34,413 80,016
Other Assets 719 719
Total Unrestricted Assets 1,198,320 246,749 78,184 1,523,253
Restricted Assets:
Debt Service Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,272 2,272
Investments 30,318 30,318
Receivables - Accrued Interest 2 2
Capital Projects Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,773 13,773
Investments 290,501 204,727 495,228
Receivables - Accrued Interest 2,816 2,816
Ordinance Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 54,039 54,039
Investments 444,220 444,220
Receivables - Accrued Interest 5,473 5,473
Other Restricted Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,913 22,011 43,924
Investments 429,449 37,424 11,074 477,947
Deferred Charges 6,268 6,268
Receivables 11,921 11,921
Receivables - Accrued Interest 1,872 1,872
Prepaid Expenses 627,470 627,470
Total Restricted Assets 1,252,557 286,242 678,744 2,217,543
Total Current Assets 2,450,877 532,991 756,928 3,740,796
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land 63,411 123,336 39,032 225,779
Infrastructure 55,968 55,968
Buildings 201,095 201,095
Utility Plant in Service 8,130,874 3,082,140 11,213,014
Machinery and Equipment 132,892 4,046 136,938
Construction in Progress 846,682 361,192 42,365 1,250,239
Nuclear Fuel 538,357 538,357
Total Capital Assets 9,579,324 3,699,560 342,506 13,621,390
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 3,773,793 1,002,265 71,893 4,847,951
Net Capital Assets 5,805,531 2,697,295 270,613 8,773,439
Assets Held for Resale 2,760 523 3,283
Prepaid Rent Long Term-Leaseback 456,813 456,813
Net OPEB Asset 30,218 30,218
Other Noncurrent Assets 37,496 296 37,792
Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs 17,286 17,286
Total Noncurrent Assets 6,330,058 2,717,637 271,136 9,318,831
Total Assets S 8,780,935 S 3,250,628 S 1,028,064 S 13,059,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Net Assets

Discretely Presented Component Units
As of September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:

Payable from Current Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Sewer Service Collections Payable
Unearned Revenue
Securities Lending Obligation
Notes and Lease Payables
Due to Other Governmental Agencies
Current Portion of Long-term Lease/Notes Payable
Current Portion of Other Payables

Total Payable from Current Unrestricted Assets

Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued Bond and Certificate Interest
Current Portion of Bonds and Certificates
Other Payables

Total Payable from Restricted Assets
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Revenue Bonds (Net of Current Portion)
Commercial Paper
Unamortized Premium on New Series Bonds
Unamortized Discount on New Series Bonds
Deferred Amount on Refunding
Long-Term Lease/Notes Payable (Net of Current Portion)
Net OPEB Obligation
Other Payables (Net of Current Portion)

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Renewal and Replacement
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

SAN ANTONIO NONMAJOR
CPS WATER COMPONENT
ENERGY SYSTEM UNITS TOTAL

386,036 44016 31,207 461,259
304 304

1,959 1,959

400,306 400,306
190 190

2,158 2,158

22,561 453 18,078 41,092
2,642 3,541 8,209 14,392
811,545 48,314 61,801 921,660
8,994 8,994

152,875 27,630 180,505
16,740 16,740

152,875 53,364 206,239
964,420 101,678 61,801 1,127,899
3,689,746 1,484,880 5,174,626
100,000 100,000

18,421 18,421
(11,516) (11,516)
(26,550) (26,550)

520,772 118 749,742 1,270,632
13,217 13,217

576,288 451 12,580 589,319
4,786,806 1,579,021 762,322 7,128,149
5,751,226 1,680,699 824,123 8,256,048
2,259,117 1,333,818 174,104 3,767,039
503,733 3,102 506,835
2,274 21,324 971 24,569
2,953 2,953

264,585 214,787 22,811 502,183
3,029,709 1,569,929 % 203,941 4,803,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Component Units
Year-Ended September 30, 2008
(In Thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
CPS Energy S 1,904,053 S 1,860,677 S - S 58,390
San Antonio Water System 341,626 330,337 139,764
Nonmajor Component Units 97,117 ’ 112,288 867 6,189
Total S 2,342,796 S 2,303,302 $ 867 S 204,343

General Revenues:
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

Adjustment for STP Pension Cost

Total General Revenues and Special Items

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Fiscal Year, as restated

Net Assets - End of Fiscal Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Component Units
Year-Ended September 30, 2008

(In Thousands)

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

TOTALS

15,014
128,475

22,227

165,716

142,652
913
(21,174)

122,391

288,107
4,515,472

SAN ANTONIO NONMAJOR
CPS WATER COMPONENT
ENERGY SYSTEM UNITS
$ 15,014
128,475
22,227
15,014 128,475 22,227
116,508 24,442 1,702
913
(21,174)
95,334 24,442 2,615
110,348 152,917 24,842
2,919,361 1,417,012 179,099
$ 3,029,709 $ _ 1,569,929 203,941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

4,803,579
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of San Antonio (the City) have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for local governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
standards. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the City.

Reporting Entity

In the evaluation of how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management considered all potential
component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by
applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units—an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14. The underlying concept of the financial reporting entity is that elected officials are
"accountable” to their constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of this concept is to provide users of
governmental financial statements with a basis for assessing the accountability of those elected officials.

The financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government (in these financial statements the primary
government is the City), (b) component units, which are legally separate organizations for which the City is
financially accountable or the services rendered by the component unit is provided entirely or almost entirely to
the City (blended), and (c) component units, the nature and significance of their relationship with the City is such
that exclusion from the reporting entity’s financial statements would be misleading or incomplete (discretely
presented).

Using the criteria of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 39 outlined below, potential component units were
evaluated for inclusion in or exclusion from the reporting entity, whether the organizations were financially
accountable or not, and were further evaluated for financial statement presentation. Based on their individual
relationships with the City, some component unit financial statements were blended as though they are part of
the City and others only discretely presented.

The following criteria (as set forth in GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 39) were used in the evaluation of
potential component units of the City:

1) Legally separate

2) Financial accountability
a) Appointment of a voting majority
b) Imposition of will
c) Financial benefit to or burden on the City
d) Fiscal dependency

3) The relationship with the City is such that exclusion would cause these financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete

4) Service rendered by the potential component unit is provided entirely or almost entirely to the City

5) The City or its component units, are entitled to, or have the ability to access the majority of the
resources received or held by the separate organization

The criteria outlined above were excerpted from GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 39. For a more detailed
explanation of the criteria established by the Statements, the reader is referred to the Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, as of June 30, 2008, published by GASB, Section-
2600. GASB Statement No. 39 further clarifies that a “not for profit” may not be financially accountable to the
City, but may be considered a component unit based on the nature and significance of its relationship with the
City. Predicated upon the application of the criteria outlined above, the following is a brief overview of
component units included in the reporting entity.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Blended Component Units

The relationships among the following component units and the City meet the criteria, as set forth in GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 39, for inclusion in the reporting entity and are such that the financial statements are

blended in with those of the City.

As set forth in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—
for State and Local Governments, the City excludes fiduciary funds and component units that are fiduciary in
nature from the government-wide financial statements. The City’s component units that are fiduciary in nature
are the San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund and the San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund.
These component units are presented in the Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assets. Following is a brief description of the City’s blended component units:

Convention Center Hotel
Finance Corporation
P.O. Box 830504,
San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504
Contact: Ed Davis
Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

Empowerment Zone
Development Corporation
P.0. Box 830504
San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504
Contact: Ed Davis
Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

San Antonio Fire and Police
Pension Fund
311 Roosevelt
San Antonio, Texas 78210-2700
Contact: Warren Schott
Telephone No. (210) 534-3262

The Convention Center Hotel Finance Corporation (CCHFC) was
established in fiscal year 2005 in accordance with state laws for the
purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in local economic
development to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City.
The CCHFC is governed by a board of directors, which is comprised of the
City Council of San Antonio.

The Empowerment Zone Development Corporation (EZDC) was
established in fiscal year 2004 in accordance with state laws for the
purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in local economic
development to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City.
The EZDC is governed by a board of directors, which is comprised of the
City Council of San Antonio. The EZDC is fully blended within the
Community Development Program Fund, in the Grants section. EZDC has
neither assets nor obligations and has incurred expenditures of $54
during fiscal year 2008 that were paid with CDBG funding. Financial
statements are not audited or separately available.

The San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund (Pension Fund) is a single
employer defined benefit plan established in accordance with state law.
The Pension Fund is administered by a nine-member board of trustees,
including two City Council members of San Antonio, and the Mayor or his
appointee. The City and Pension Fund participants are obligated to make
all contributions to the Pension Fund in accordance with rates established
by state laws. Benefit levels are also set by state laws. Services rendered
by the Pension Fund are exclusively for the benefit of eligible firefighters
and police officers, upon retirement.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Blended Component Units (Continued)

San Antonio Fire and Police
Retiree Health Care Fund
300 Convent Street, Suite 2500
San Antonio, Texas 78205-3716
Contact: James Bounds
Telephone No. (210) 220-1385

San Antonio Health Facilities
Development Corporation
P.0O. Box 830504
San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504
Contact: Ed Davis
Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

San Antonio Housing Trust
Finance Corporation
2515 Blanco Road
San Antonio, Texas 78212
Contact: John Kenny
Telephone No. (210) 735-2772

San Antonio Industrial
Development Authority
P.O. Box 830504
San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504
Contact: Ed Davis
Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

The City of San Antonio Firefighters’ and Police Officers’ Retiree
Prefunded Group Health Plan was created in October 1989, in accordance
with the provisions of the City’s contracts with the local fire and police
unions, respectively, to provide postemployment health care benefits to
uniformed employees who retired on or after October 1, 1989. Pursuant to
the passage of Senate Bill 1568 in 1997, a separate and distinct statutory
trust, the Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund (Health Fund), was
created to provide these postemployment health care benefits for eligible
uniformed employees of the City. The Health Fund is administered by a
nine-member board of trustees, including two City Council members of San
Antonio and the Mayor or his appointee, and is funded primarily by
contributions from the City and contributions made by active employees
and retirees on behalf of their dependents. Contribution rates and benefits
are established pursuant to legislation enacted by the State with the
Health Care Fund Board’s ability to modify benefits within certain
parameters.

The City of San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation (HFDC)
was established by Ordinance No. 55400, dated June 3, 1982, in
accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and to act on behalf of the
City as, a health facilities development corporation under the Texas
Health Facilities Development Act of 1981. The HFDC is authorized to issue
tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds, for which the City is not
obligated in any manner, to finance health related projects in support of
the promotion, expansion, and improvement of health facilities. The City
Council of San Antonio comprises the board of directors that govern HFDC.

The San Antonio Housing Trust Finance Corporation (SAHTFC) was
established in fiscal year 1997 under the Texas Housing Finance
Corporations Act (the Act), in accordance with state laws for the purposes
of, and to act on behalf of the City in, carrying out the purposes of the
Act, including the issuance of single family and multi-family revenue
bonds. SAHTFC is managed by a five-member board of directors, which is
appointed by the City Council of San Antonio.

The City of San Antonio Industrial Development Authority (IDA) was
established by Resolution No. 79-48-100 dated October 11, 1979, in
accordance with state laws for the purposes of benefiting and
accomplishing public purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City as, an
industrial development corporation under the Development Corporation
Act of 1979. The IDA is authorized to issue tax-exempt industrial revenue
bonds, for which the City is not obligated in any manner, to finance
qualified projects, which may further the promotion and development of
commercial, industrial, and manufacturing enterprises to advance and
encourage employment and public welfare. The IDA is governed by a board
of directors, which is comprised of the City Council of San Antonio.

Amounts are expressed in thousands
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Blended Component Units (Continued)

San Antonio Public Library
Foundation
625 Shook
San Antonio, Texas 78212
Contact: Kaye Lenox
Telephone No. (210) 225-4728

San Antonio Texas Municipal
Facilities Corporation
P.O. Box 839966
San Antonio, Texas 78283-3966
Contact: Ben Gorzell Jr.
Telephone No. (210) 207-8620

Starbright
Industrial Development
Corporation
P.0. Box 839966
San Antonio, Texas 78283-3966
Contact: Ben Gorzell Jr.
Telephone No. (210) 207-8620

The San Antonio Public Library Foundation was created in 1983 to
emphasize the important role the private sector has in helping to enhance
Library resources and services. The Library Foundation works to raise funds
from several sources, including individuals, corporations and charitable
foundations for the sole benefit of the Library and to raise awareness for
reading. The City’s library board of trustees’ Chairman and two additional
members of the library’s board of trustees are members of the 100+
member Foundation Board. The Foundation is a self-governing agency, as
such the City has no control over the board of trustees or how the funds
are expended. Additionally, as a self-governing agency, the City has no
access to the Foundation’s funds. The purpose of the Foundation is
exclusively to support the San Antonio Public Library System and to
increase the awareness and use of the Library through financial support
and programmatic efforts.

The City of San Antonio Texas Municipal Facilities Corporation (TMFC) was
established in fiscal year 2001 in accordance with state laws for the
purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in, acquiring, constructing,
equipping, financing, operating, and maintaining land and other municipal
facilities for the City. The TMFC is governed by a board of directors, which
is comprised of the City Council of San Antonio.

The Starbright Industrial Development Corporation (SIDC) was established
in fiscal year 2003 in accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and
to act on behalf of the City in, the promotion and development of
commercial, industrial, and manufacturing enterprises, to advance and
encourage employment and public welfare, including but not limited to
the acquisition of land. The SIDC is governed by a board of directors, which
is comprised of the City Council of San Antonio.

The blended component unit with a different fiscal year-end from the City is the San Antonio Public Library
Foundation with a fiscal year-end of December 31,

Discretely Presented Component Units

The relationship among the following component units and the City is such that they meet the criteria, as set
forth in GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 39, for inclusion in the reporting entity, and accordingly are included;
however, is such that the financial statements are discretely presented alongside, but not blended with those of

the City.

Brooks Development Authority
8030 Challenger Drive
Brooks City-Base, Texas 78235-
5355
Contact: Bart Sanchez
Telephone No. (210) 536-6710

The Brooks Development Authority (BDA) is a special district and political
subdivision of the State of Texas. It was established on September 27,
2001, as a defense base development authority in accordance with state
laws for the purposes of, and to act on behalf of the City in, improving
mission effectiveness, reducing the cost of providing quality installation
support through improved capital asset management, and promoting
economic development for Brooks Air Force Base and in the surrounding
community. An eleven-member board of directors appointed by the City
Council of San Antonio governs the BDA for two-year terms and oversees
the Brooks Technology and Business Park in support of the Brooks City-Base
Project. The City’s ability to impose its will on this organization is through
City Council having the power to remove board members.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

City South Management
Authority
P.O. Box 830504
San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504
Contact: Ed Davis
Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

CPS Energy

P.O. Box 1771
San Antonio, Texas 78296-1771
Contact: Richard E. Williamson
Telephone No. (210) 353-2397

Main Plaza Conservancy
111 Soledad, Suite 811
San Antonio Texas 78205
Contact:

Penny Postoak Ferguson
Telephone No. (210) 225-9800

Municipal Golf Association -
San Antonio
8250 Vista Colina
San Antonio, Texas 78255
Contact: James E. Roschek
Telephone No. (210) 695-5050

City South Management Authority (CSMA) is a political subdivision of the
State of Texas established at the request of the City for the purposes of
supporting economic development, creating sustainable communities, and
promoting the unique historical, cultural and environmental assets of the
City’s southern edge. CSMA was established by the City in 2005, with a
fifteen-member board; six appointed by the City, six by Bexar County, and
three appointed collectively by Southwest, East Central, and Southside
Independent School Districts. The issuance of bonds or notes must be
approved by the City Council of San Antonio.

CPS Energy, a municipally owned utility, provides electricity and natural
gas to San Antonio and the surrounding areas. CPS Energy is governed by a
board of trustees, which is comprised of four members appointed by the
City Council of San Antonio and has the City’s Mayor as an ex-officio
member. The user rates for services and charges and the issuance of bonds
are approved by the City Council.

Main Plaza Conservancy (MPC), a nonprofit organization that provides the
management of Main Plaza, was incorporated in October 2007. MPC
operates and maintains Main Plaza in coordination with the City and Bexar
County; to develop and implement a strategy to increase awareness of the
historical and cultural significance of Main Plaza, and to organize cultural
and artistic events at Main Plaza for the benefit of the citizens, residents
and visitors of San Antonio. MPC is governed by an eleven-member board
of directors, with one representative from the City and one representative
from Bexar County. MPC must obtain written permission from the City
Manager or designee on such items including security guidelines, charges
for admittance, improvements and changes to Main Plaza, and debt
issuances.

Municipal Golf Association - San Antonio (MGA-SA) was established in fiscal
year 2007 in accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and to act on
behalf of the City in, operating and promoting the City’s municipal golf
facilities. MGA-SA is governed by a fifteen member board of directors,
which is comprised of seven members selected by MGA-SA according to the
approved process contained in its by-laws; two ex-officio member positions
from City staff who are appointed by the City Manager; and six members
appointed by the City Council of San Antonio.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

Port Authority of San Antonio
dba Port San Antonio

143 Billy Mitchell Blvd., Ste 6

San Antonio, Texas 78226-1816
Contact: Bruce Miller

Telephone No. (210) 362-7800

San Antonio Development
Agency
P. O. Box 831386
San Antonio, Texas 78283-1386
Contact: David D. Garza
Telephone No. (210) 207-5850

San Antonio Education
Facilities Corporation
P.O. Box 830504
San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504
Contact: Ed Davis
Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

Greater Kelly Development Corporation (GKDC) was established in 1996 as
a local development authority on an interim basis under the Development
Corporation Act of 1979 for the development and redevelopment of Kelly
Air Force Base (Kelly). In November 1999, the City established the Greater
Kelly Development Authority (GKDA) as the successor-in-interest to the
GKDC pursuant to the newly enacted Senate Bill 655. In accordance with
the Act, the GKDA has the powers previously enjoyed by the GKDC, while
at the same time clarifying such powers and preserving the property tax-
exempt status of prior commercial tenants at Kelly. In 2006, GKDA
changed its name to Port Authority of San Antonio dba Port San Antonio
(the Port). The Port is a special district and political subdivision of the
State of Texas and was established for the purpose of monitoring the
proposed closing of Kelly; conducting comprehensive studies of all issues
related to the closure, conversion, redevelopment, and future use of Kelly;
reviewing all options relative to the most appropriate uses of Kelly and the
surrounding area; formulating and adopting a comprehensive plan for the
conversion and redevelopment of Kelly and submitting such plan to the
appropriate agency or agencies of the federal government; and
implementing such plan as it relates to Kelly and the surrounding area. The
Port is governed by an eleven-member board of directors, appointed by
the City Council of San Antonio. The City Council also has the ability to
remove appointed members of the organization’s governing board at will.
The Port is authorized to issue bonds to finance any project as permitted
by state laws, but said bonds are not obligations of the City.

San Antonio Development Agency (SADA) was created under the provisions
of the Urban Renewal Law of the State of Texas. SADA is responsible for
implementing the City’s Urban Renewal Program and may designate for
urban renewal in such areas as it deems advisable, subject to approval by
the City Council of San Antonio and the federal agency, which administers
the overall program. SADA receives a majority of its operating funds from
the City as pass-through grant funds and daily operations are being staffed
by City personnel. SADA is governed by a seven-member board of
commissioners appointed by the City Council.

City of San Antonio Higher Education Authority (SAHEA) was established in
1984, in accordance with state laws for the purpose of aiding nonprofit
institutions of higher education in providing educational, housing, and
other related facilities in accordance with, and subject to the provisions of
Section 53.35 (b) Texas Education Code, all to be done on behalf of the
City and its duly constituted authority and instrumentality. In 2001, the
SAHEA changed its name to San Antonio Education Facilities Corporation
(SAEFC). The Code authorizes SAEFC to issue revenue bonds for these
purposes on behalf of the City, but the bonds are not obligations of the
City. SAEFC is governed by an eleven-member board of directors appointed
by the City Council of San Antonio for two-year terms. Board members are
subject to removal by the City Council for cause, or at will, and the City
reserves the right to terminate and dissolve SAEFC at any time.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

SA Energy Acquisition Public
Facility Corporation
145 Navarro
San Antonio, Texas 78205
Contact: Shannon R. Albert
Telephone No. (210) 353-2940

San Antonio Housing Trust
Foundation, Inc.
2515 Blanco Rd.
San Antonio, Texas 78212-2796
Contact: John Kenny
Telephone No. (210) 735-2772

San Antonio Local
Development Company Inc.
dba South Texas Business
Fund
P.O. Box 830505
San Antonio, Texas 78283-0505
Contact: Ed Davis
Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

SA Energy Acquisition Public Facility Corporation (SAEAPFC) was
established in 2007, in accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and
to act on behalf of the City in, the financing and acquisition of electric
energy and power, oil, gas, coal and other liquid, gaseous or solid
hydrocarbon fuels for the electric and gas systems of the City. SAEAPFC is
governed by a seven-member board of directors appointed by the City
Council of San Antonio for two-year terms. Board members are subject to
removal by the City Council for cause, or at will.

San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation, Inc. (SAHTF) is a nonprofit
corporation incorporated in 1990 under the laws of the State of Texas.
SAHTF was organized for the purposes of supporting charitable,
educational, and scientific undertakings, and specifically for providing
housing for low- and middle-income families, and to provide administrative
and other support for the operations of the City of San Antonio Housing
Trust Fund, a Permanent Fund of the City. The Housing Trust Fund was
established by the City for the purposes of providing additional and
continuing housing opportunities for low- and moderate-income families;
promoting public health, safety, convenience, and welfare; and
revitalizing neighborhoods and the downtown area through appropriate
housing activities. SAHTF is governed by an eleven-member board of
directors appointed by the City Council of San Antonio. SAHTF administers
the San Antonio Housing Trust Finance Corporation. The City has the
ability to appoint, hire, reassign, or dismiss those persons responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the SAHTF as it authorizes a contract for the
administration and management of the operations on an annual basis.

San Antonio Local Development Company, Inc. (SALDC) is a nonprofit
corporation organized in 1978 under the laws of the State of Texas and the
auspices of the City. In 2004, SALDC changed its name to San Antonio Local
Development Company dba South Texas Business Fund (STBF). STBF also
expanded the area served from twelve counties to all of the counties in
the State of Texas. STBF was formed to participate in the Neighborhood
Business Revitalization Program (NBRP), which is co-sponsored by the Small
Business Administration (SBA), the Economic Development Administration,
and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). STBF
is governed by a twenty-five member board of trustees; twelve are
directors all appointed by the City Council of San Antonio and the Alamo
Area Council of Governments. STBF, under agreement with the City,
administers and operates a revolving loan fund; the NBRP provides
qualifying local businesses with loans under economic development
programs administered by the SBA. STBF also administers, by agreement
with the City, a U.S. Department of Commerce Title IX Revolving Loan
Fund, SBA MicroLoan Program, the Bill Sinkin Micro-Loan Fund, and the
Inner-City Loan Fund.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

San Antonio Water System On May 19, 1992, the consolidation of water systems, agencies and
P.O. Box 2449 activities into one institution through a refunding of the then outstanding

San Antonio, Texas 78298-2449 water and sewer bonds of the former City Water Board, Alamo Water
Contact: Doug Evanson Conservation and Re-Use District, and the City’s Sewer and Stormwater

Telephone No. (210) 233-3803 System, resulted in the creation of the San Antonio Water System (SAWS).
The City Council of San Antonio determined that the interests of the
citizens and the customers would best be served by placing authority for
management and control of SAWS, as consolidated, with a board of
trustees. This board of trustees includes the City’s Mayor as an ex-officio
member, along with six members appointed by the City Council for four-
year staggered terms. The rates for user charges and bond issuance
authorizations are approved by the City Council.

Westside Development Westside Development Corporation (WDC) was established in fiscal year
Corporation 2006 in accordance with state laws for the purposes of promoting

P.O. Box 830504 economic development and redevelopment opportunities in the Westside

San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504 of San Antonio. WDC seeks to generate new capital investment, create
Contact: Ramon Flores more, higher paying jobs, and reduce the poverty level in the area. In

Telephone No. (210) 207-8204 addition, WDC functions as a land development corporation that has the
power to buy, sell, and accept land as a nonprofit without the restrictions
placed upon a municipality. WDC is governed by a board of directors
nominated by a City Council committee and appointed by the City Council
of San Antonio. Representatives of key stakeholders and Westside
advocates are the policy-setting oversight authority for WDC, comprising of
17 members.

Essential disclosures related to the above mentioned discretely presented and blended component units are
included in the complete financial statements of each of the individual component units. These statements
may be obtained at the respective entity’s administrative office.

It is management’s belief that to exclude essential disclosures from the City’s financial statements as they
pertain to CPS Energy and SAWS would be misleading. CPS Energy and SAWS have been identified as major
discretely presented component units as they both relate to total component units and to the primary
government. Therefore, relevant disclosures have been included in the City’s financial statements. Discretely
presented component units with different fiscal year-ends from the City are CPS Energy and SAEAPFC with fiscal
year-ends of January 31st, and SAWS, with a fiscal year-end of December 31st.

Related Organizations

The City Council of San Antonio appoints members to the board of commissioners for the San Antonio Housing
Authority (SAHA) and a majority of the board of directors for Keep San Antonio Beautiful, Inc. However, the City’s
accountability for these entities does not extend beyond making appointments to their boards, and the
coordination and approval of strategic plans, for SAHA.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basic Financial Statements - GASB Statement No. 34

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - The basic financial statements include three components:
(1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial
statements. The government-wide financial statements report information on all nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. MD&A introduces the basic financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the City’s financial activities. As part of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, the
City early implemented requirements for infrastructure reporting. GASB Statement No. 34 requires the
historical cost of infrastructure assets, retroactive to 1980, to be included as part of capital assets, as well as
the related depreciation to be reported in the government-wide financial statements. In addition, for the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the statements.

The Statement of Net Assets - Reflects both short-term and long-term assets and liabilities. In the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets, governmental activities are reported separately from business-type
activities. Governmental activities are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, whereas business-
type activities are normally supported by user fees and charges for services. Long-term assets, such as capital
assets and unamortized bond issuance costs, and long-term obligations, such as debt, are now reported in the
governmental activities. The components of net assets, previously shown as fund balances, are presented in
three separate components: (1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt, (2) restricted, and (3)
unrestricted. Interfund receivables and payables within governmental and business-type activities have been
eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, which minimizes the duplication of assets and
liabilities within the governmental and business-type activities. The net amount of interfund transfers between
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds is the balance reported in the Statement of Net Assets.
Component units are also reported in the Statement of Net Assets.

The Statement of Activities - Reflects both the gross and net cost format. The net cost (by function or
business-type activity) is usually covered by general revenues (property tax, sales and use tax, revenues from
utilities, etc.). Direct (gross) expenses of a given function or segment are offset by charges for services, and
operating and capital grants and contributions. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function
of program activity. The presentation allows users to determine which functions are self-supporting and which
rely on the tax base in order to complete their mission. Internal Service Fund balances, whether positive or
negative, have been eliminated against the expenses and program revenues shown in the governmental and
business-type activities of the Statement of Activities.

A reconciliation detailing the change in net assets between the government-wide financial statements and the
fund financial statements is presented separately for governmental funds. In order to achieve a break-even
result in the Internal Service Fund activity, differences in the basis of accounting and reclassifications are
allocated back to user departments. These allocations are reflected in the government-wide statements. Any
residual amounts of the Internal Service Funds are reported in the governmental activity column.

The proprietary funds have a reconciliation presented in the proprietary funds’ Statement of Net Assets and

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets. The only reconciling item is the Internal
Service Fund allocation.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets and other debits, liabilities, fund balances and other credits, revenues and expenditures, or
expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based
upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
The City has three types of funds: governmental funds, enterprise funds, and fiduciary funds. The fund
financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds, but not on the
City as a whole. Major governmental funds and major enterprise funds are reported separately in the fund
financial statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated in the fund financial statements and independently

presented in the combining statements.

The criteria used to determine if a governmental or enterprise fund should be reported as a major fund are as
follows: the total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditure/expenses of that governmental or enterprise fund
are at least 10.0% of the corresponding element total for all funds of that category or type (that is, total
governmental or total enterprise funds), and the same element that met the 10.0% criterion above in the
governmental or enterprise fund is at least 5.0% of the corresponding element total for all governmental and

enterprise funds combined.

The following is a brief description of the major governmental funds that are each presented in a separate
column in the fund financial statements:

e The General Fund is always presented as a major fund.
e The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs, except those that are accounted for in

proprietary type funds.
e The Categorical Grant-In-Aid Fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of all federal and state
grants, except for Community Development Block Grants, HUD 108 loans, and HOME Investment

Partnership Grants.

The following is a brief description of the major proprietary fund that is presented separately in the fund
financial statements:

e The Airport System accounts for the operation of the San Antonio International Airport and Stinson
Municipal Airport. Financing for the Airport System operations is provided by user fees.

Governmental Funds

General Fund is the primary operating fund for the City, which accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than private-
purpose trusts and major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-
term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds).
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Fund Accounting (Continued)

Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, and
not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs - that is, for the
benefit of the government or its citizenry.

The governmental funds that have legally adopted budgets are the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds
(excluding HOME Program, Categorical Grant-In-Aid, HUD 108 Loan Program, Community Development Program,
and most Community Services Funds), Debt Service Fund, Visitor Information Center and City Store, Animal Care
Services, Better Jobs, Child Safety, Municipal Courts Security, Municipal Courts Technology, Recreation Athletic,
South Texas Business, Starbright Industrial Development Corporation, Tax Increment Financing, Tree Preservation
Mitigation, and San Jose Burial Fund. Please note the Visitor Information Center and City Store, Animal Care
Services, Better Jobs, Child Safety, Municipal Courts Security, Municipal Courts Technology, Recreation Athletic,
South Texas Business, Starbright Industrial Development Corporation, Tax Increment Financing, and Tree
Preservation Mitigation are reported as components of the Community Services Funds.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the expenses (including depreciation)
of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis should be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges.

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or
agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement
basis. The City's self-insurance programs, data processing programs, and other internal service programs are
accounted for in these funds.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, or other funds. These include Pension Trust and
Retiree Health Care Trust, which account for resources for pension fund and health care benefits for the City's
firefighters and police officers. The Private Purpose Trust Funds includes an assistance fund and a scholarship
fund for City employees, as well as reporting on funds restricted for the City's literacy programs. The Agency
Funds account for the City's sales and use tax to be remitted to the State of Texas, various fees for other
governmental entities, unclaimed property, and holds various deposits. Pension Trust, Retiree Health Care
Trust, and Private Purpose Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds
since capital maintenance is critical. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve the measurement of results of operations.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements present information about the City as a whole. Government-wide
financial statements exclude both fiduciary funds and fiduciary component units. The Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The City recognizes revenue from property taxes in the period for
which they were levied. Property taxes receivable includes taxes due and amounts expected to be collected
within 60 days after the year-end, along with related interest and penalties. For additional disclosure related to
property taxes see Note 2, Property Tax. Other taxes and fees are recognized as revenue in the year they are
earned. Revenues from grants and similar items are recognized in the fiscal year the qualifying expenditures are
made and all other eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
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Program revenues are presented in the government-wide Statement of Activities. The City reports program
revenues into three categories: (1) charges for services, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital
grants and contributions. Further descriptions of these three categories follow. They are presented separately
as a reduction of the total expense to arrive at the net expense of each functional activity. Program revenues
are revenues generated by transactions with outside parties who purchase, use, or directly benefit from a
program. They also include amounts such as grants and contributions received from outside parties that restrict
the use of those funds to specific programs. Investment earnings that are legally restricted to specific programs
are additionally reported as program revenues.

1) Charges for services are revenues generated by those who purchase goods or services from the City.
Examples of charges for services include airport landing fees, solid waste collection and disposal fees, vacant
lot clean up, golf course fees, and food establishment licenses. Fines and forfeitures, license and permits and
intergovernmental revenues as reported in the General Fund are also reported under charges for services.

2) Operating grants and contributions are those revenues that are restricted in the way they may be spent for
operations of a particular program.

3) Capital grants and contributions are also restricted revenues; the funds may only be spent to purchase or
build capital assets for specified programs.

All governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally
included in their balance sheets. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become
available and measurable. For this purpose, the City considers revenues, other than grants, to be available if the
revenues are collected within 60 days after year-end. Grant revenues are recognized when reimbursable
expenditures are made and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met. Grant funds
received in advance and delinquent property taxes are recorded as unearned revenue until earned and available.

Gross receipts and sales and use taxes are considered available when received by intermediary collecting
governments, and are recognized at that time. Anticipated refunds of such taxes are recorded as liabilities and
reductions of revenue when they are measurable and their validity seems certain.

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred; however,
compensated absences, debt service expenditures, claims and judgments, and arbitrage rebates are recorded
only when the liability is matured.

The reported fund balance (net current assets) for each fund is considered a measure of "current financial
resources.” Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources)
and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present
a summary of sources and uses of "current financial resources"” during the period.

Special reporting treatments are applied to governmental fund materials and supplies and prepaid expenditures
to indicate that they do not represent “current financial resources,” since they do not represent net current
assets. Such amounts are generally offset by fund balance reserve accounts.

Proprietary, Pension Trust, Private Purpose Trust, and Retiree Health Care Funds are accounted for using the
accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses and related
liabilities, including claims, judgments, and compensated absences, are recognized when they are incurred.
These funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "economic resources” measurement focus. Consequently,
all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included in their
balance sheets. The reported proprietary fund net assets are segregated into three components: (1) invested in
capital assets, net of related debt, (2) restricted, and (3) unrestricted net assets. Proprietary fund type operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net assets.
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Proprietary funds report both operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets. The City defines operating revenues as those receipts
generated by a specified program offering either a good or service. For example, parking garage and street lot
fees are operating revenues of the Parking System Fund. This definition is consistent with GASB Statement No.
9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, which defines operating receipts as cash receipts from customers and other cash
receipts that do not result from transactions defined as capital and related financing, noncapital financing or
investing activities. Operating expenses include personnel services, contractual services, commodities, other
expenses (such as insurance), and depreciation. Revenues and expenses not fitting the above definitions are
considered nonoperating.

The City’s proprietary funds, pension trust, private purpose trust and retiree health care funds and business-type
activities, as well as its discretely presented component units, apply all applicable GASB Statements as well as
FASB Statements and Interpretations, APB Opinions, and ARBs issued on or before November 30, 1989, in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.

CPS Energy’s operating revenue includes receipts from energy sales and miscellaneous revenue related to the
operation of electric and gas systems. Miscellaneous revenue includes late payment fees, rental income,
jobbing and contract work, and ancillary services. Operating expenses are recorded as incurred and include
those costs that result from the ongoing operations of the electric and gas systems.

Nonoperating revenue consists primarily of investment income, including fair market value adjustments. The
amortization of net gains from the lease/leaseback of J.K. Spruce Unit 1 and the sale of water rights, when
applicable, are also included. Certain miscellaneous income amounts from renting general property and
providing various services are also recorded as nonoperating revenue when they are not directly identified with
the electric or gas systems. These amounts for fiscal year 2008 were recorded net of expenses.

SAWS’ principal operating revenues are charges to customers for water supply, water delivery, wastewater,
and chilled water and steam services. Operating expenses include the cost of service, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Nonoperating revenues consist primarily of interest income earned on investments, including the changes in
fair value of investments. Nonoperating expenses consist primarily of interest expense, amortization of debt
related costs, sales of capital assets and payments to the City.

Current Year GASB Statement Implementations

In fiscal year 2008, the City implemented the following GASB Statements:

GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB expense/
expenditures and related liabilities, assets, note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary
information in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. See Note 9, Postemployment
Retirement Benefits and the related Postemployment Schedules.

GASB Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits, requires employers to disclose termination benefit
arrangements, the cost of the termination benefits, and significant methods and assumptions used to determine
termination benefit liabilities. The City did not have any terminations in fiscal year 2008 that met the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 47.
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Current Year GASB Statement Implementations (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of
Assets and Future Revenues, establishes criteria that governments will use to determine if a certain
transaction should be regarded as a sale or a collateralized borrowing, requires enhanced disclosures pertaining
to future revenues that have been pledged or sold, provides guidance on sales of receivables and future
revenues within the same financial reporting entity, and provides guidance on recognizing other assets and
liabilities arising from the sale of specific receivables or future revenues. Implementation of this Statement did
not impact the City’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27, aligns the
reporting requirements for pensions with those for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) and, in doing so,
enhances information disclosed in the notes to financial statements or presented as required supplementary
information (RSI) by pension plans and by employers that provide pension benefits. The reporting changes
required by this Statement amend applicable note disclosure and RSI requirements of Statements No. 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and
No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, to conform with requirements of
Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Plans Other Than Pension Plans, and No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. See Note 8,
Pension and Retirement Plans and the related Pension Schedules.

Future GASB Statement Implementations

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards for pollution, including contamination, remediation obligations,
which are obligations to address the current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating
in pollution remediation activities such as site assessments and clean-ups. The scope of the statement excludes
pollution prevention or control obligations with respect to current operations, and future pollution remediation
activities that are required upon retirement of an asset, such as landfill closure and post-closure care and nuclear
power plant decommissioning. The requirements for this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2007.

GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, establishes consistent guidance
on recognition of intangible assets. The Statement requires that an intangible asset be recognized in the
Statement of Net Assets only if it is considered identifiable. This Statement also establishes a specified-conditions
approach to recognizing intangible assets that are internally generated. Effectively, outlays associated with the
development of such assets should not begin to be capitalized until certain criteria are met. Outlays incurred
prior to meeting these criteria should be expensed as incurred. This Statement also establishes guidance specific
to intangible assets related to amortization. It provides guidance on determining the useful life of intangible
assets when the length of their life is limited by contractual or legal provisions, and if there are no factors that
limit the useful life of an intangible asset, it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. The requirements for
this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2009.

GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments, establishes consistent
standards for the reporting of land and other real estate held as investments by essentially similar entities. It
requires endowments to report their land and other real estate investments at fair value. Governments also are
required to report the changes in fair value as investment income and to disclose the methods and significant
assumptions employed to determine fair value, and other information that they currently present for other
investments reported at fair value. The requirements for this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning
after June 15, 2008.
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GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, is intended to improve
how state and local governments recognize, measure, and disclose information about derivative instruments in
their financial statements. The Statement specifically requires governments to measure most derivative
instruments at fair value in their financial statements. The guidance in this Statement also addresses hedge
accounting requirements. The requirements for this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after
June 15, 2009. It is the determination of the City that implementation of GASB Statement No. 53 will not impact
the City’s financials since the City does not invest in or use derivative instruments, but will impact certain of the

City’s component units.

The City has not fully determined the effects that implementation of Statements No. 49, No. 51, and No. 52 will
have on the City’s financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City's investment practices are governed by state statutes and by the City’s own Investment Policy. City cash
is required to be deposited in FDIC-insured banks located within the State of Texas. A pooled cash and investment
strategy is utilized, which enables the City to have one central depository. Investments are pooled into two
primary categories: operating funds and debt service funds. The balances in these funds are invested in an
aggregate or pooled amount, with principal and interest income distributed to each respective fund on a pro rata
basis. In addition, the City may purchase certain investments with the available balance of a specific fund for the
sole benefit of such fund. As of September 30, 2008, the City’s investment portfolio did not contain any
derivative or alternative investment products, nor was it leveraged in any way, except as noted in the Fire and
Police Pension Fund and Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund. For a listing of authorized investments, see
Note 3, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments.

The City, CPS Energy, and SAWS account for, and report investments, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. The Fire and
Police Pension Plan and the Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund report investments at fair value, in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans. The City’s policy with respect to money market investments, which
have a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase, is to report those investments at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. Amortization of premium or accretion of discount is recorded over the term
of the investments.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City, CPS Energy, and SAWS consider all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of approximately 90 days or less to be cash equivalents.

Materials and Supplies and Prepaid Items

Materials and supplies consist principally of expendable items held for consumption and are stated at cost, based
on first-in first-out and lower of average cost or market methods. For governmental and proprietary fund types,
the "consumption” method is used to account for certain materials and supplies. Under the consumption method,
these acquisitions are recorded in material and supplies accounts and charged as expenditures (governmental
fund types) or expenses (proprietary fund types) when used.

Prepaid items are goods and services that are paid in advance. These payments reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods, and are recorded in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Using the
consumption method, prepaid items are charged as expenditures for governmental funds and as expenses for
proprietary funds as the goods or services are used.
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Capital Assets and Depreciation

Primary Government (City)

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. Capital assets recorded
under capital leases are recorded at the present value of future minimum lease payments. Depreciation on all
exhaustible capital assets of the City is charged as an expense with accumulated depreciation being reported in
the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the
straight-line method. The City has established capitalization thresholds for buildings, improvements,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and furniture and office equipment which includes computer
equipment. All infrastructure assets are reported in the financial statements and the estimated useful lives and
capitalization thresholds applied are as follows:

Useful Life Capitalization

Assets (Years) Threshold
Buildings 15-40 S 100
Improvements (Other than buildings) 20-40 100
Machinery and Equipment 2-20 5
Furniture and Office Equipment 5-10 5
Infrastructure 15-100 100

CPS Energy

The costs of additions and replacements of assets identified as major components or property units are
capitalized. Maintenance and replacements of minor items are charged to operating expenses. Except for
certain assets that may become impaired, the cost of depreciable plant retired, plus removal costs and less
salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Per the financial reporting requirements of GASB Statement
No. 42, any losses associated with capital asset impairments will be charged to operations, not to accumulated

depreciation.

The CPS Energy’s utility plant is stated at the cost of construction, including expenses for contracted services;
direct equipment, material and labor; indirect costs, including general engineering, labor, equipment and
material overheads; and an allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC), which represents capitalized
interest. CPS Energy computes AFUDC using rates that approximate the cost of borrowed funds measured as the
investment rate for other funds used for construction. Noncash AFUDC is applied to projects estimated to
require 30 days or more to complete.

Proceeds from customers to partially fund construction expenditures are reported in the Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets as increases in fund net assets in accordance with the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

Except for nuclear fuel, which is amortized over units of production, CPS Energy computes depreciation using
the straight-line method over the estimated service lives of the depreciable property according to asset type.
Total depreciation as a percent of total depreciable assets, excluding nuclear fuel, was 3.3% for fiscal year

2008.
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CPS Energy (Continued)

In fiscal year 2008, a depreciation study was performed that resulted in a change in depreciation rates and the
useful lives of capital assets. The updated estimated useful lives were as follows:

2008

Buildings and structures 20-60 years
Systems and improvements:

Generation 18-60 years

Transmission and distribution 20-55 years

Gas 50-65 years
Machinery and equipment 4-30 years
Lignite mineral rights and other 20-40 years
Nuclear fuel Units of Production

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

SAWS’ capital assets in service are capitalized when the unit cost is greater than or equal to $1. Utility plant
additions are recorded at cost, which includes materials, labor, overhead, and interest capitalized during
construction. Assets acquired through capital leases are recorded on the cost basis and included in utility plant
in service. Assets acquired through contributions, such as those from land developers, are recorded at
estimated fair value at date of donation. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are charged to operating
expense; major plant replacements are capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated and property under capital
lease is amortized on the straight-line method. This method is applied to all individual assets except
distribution mains. Groups of mains are depreciated on the straight-line method using rates estimated to fully
depreciate the costs of the asset group over their estimated average useful lives. The table below shows an
estimated average of useful lives used in providing for depreciation of capital assets:

Structures and improvements 50 years
Pumping and purification equipment 10-50 years
Distribution and transmission system 25-50 years
Collection system 50 years
Treatment facilities 25 years
Equipment and machinery 5-20 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Software 3 years

General Bonded Debt Service

The ad valorem tax rate is allocated each year between the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund. Amounts
estimated to be required for debt service on general bonded debt are provided by allocated property taxes,
interest earned within the Debt Service Fund, and transfers from other funds.
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Primary Government (City)

In the governmental fund financial statements, the City accrues annual leave and associated employee related
costs when matured (payable from available resources) for City nonuniformed employees and uniformed fire and
police employees. In addition, the City accrues the matured portion of the City’s uniformed fire and police
employees, accrued sick leave pay, holiday pay, and bonus pay. Compensatory time is also accrued for the
matured portion of the City’s nonuniformed, nonexempt employees, as well as uniformed police officers.

For governmental fund types, the matured current portion of the liability resulting from the accrual of these
compensated absences is recorded in the respective governmental fund and reported in the fund financial
statements, while the entire vested liability is reported in the government-wide financials. The current and long-
term portions of the liability related to proprietary fund types are accounted for in the respective proprietary
fund.

CPS Energy

Employees earn vacation benefits based upon their employment status and years of service. As of January 31,
2008 the accruals for those vested benefits were $14,200.

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

It is SAWS’ policy to accrue employee vacation pay as earned as well as the employer portion of Social Security
taxes related to the accrued vacation pay. Sick leave is not accrued as a terminating employee is not paid for
accumulated sick leave.

Insurance

Activity for the City’s self-insurance programs is recorded in the Internal Service Funds. Assets and obligations
related to property and casualty liability, employee health benefits, retiree health benefits, workers’
compensation, unemployment compensation, extended sick leave, and employee wellness are included.

The City is insured for property loss on a primary basis through Great American Insurance Company of New York
and through RSUI Indemnity Company for excess loss to the Convention Center. Excess liability coverage for
casualty losses is provided by Star Insurance Company. Related liabilities are accrued based on the City’s
estimates of the aggregate liability for claims made and claims incurred but not reported prior to the end of the
fiscal year. The City determines and accrues loss liabilities based on an actuarial assessment of historical claim
data and industry trends performed annually.

The City also provides employee health, a pro rata share of retiree health benefits, workers’ compensation,
and unemployment benefits under its self-insurance programs. The City is a member of the Texas Municipal
League Workers’ Compensation Joint Insurance Fund, and uses this fund as a mechanism for administering
workers’ compensation claims that occurred prior to September 30, 1986. Workers’ compensation claims that
occurred after October 1, 1986 are administered by third-party administrators. In addition, as of September 30,
2008, the City has excess workers’ compensation coverage through Star Insurance Company. The City records
all workers’ compensation loss contingencies, including claims incurred but not reported. The City determines
and accrues workers’ compensation liabilities based on an actuarial assessment of historical claim data and

industry trends performed annually.
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Employee and retiree health benefit liabilities are determined and accrued based upon the City’s estimates of
aggregate liabilities for unpaid benefits utilizing claim lag data from the City’s third party administrator (TPA).
The City additionally determines and accrues postemployment liabilities based on an actuarial assessment of
historical claim data performed bi-annually and reviewed annually. Current year unpaid benefit liabilities for
retirees are netted against the postemployment liability as additional contributions.

Regarding unemployment compensation, the City is subject to the State of Texas Employment Commission Act.
Under this act, the City’s method for providing unemployment compensation is to reimburse the State for claims

paid by the State.

All insurance carriers providing coverage for the City are required to possess an A.M. Best Company rating of A- or
better; where A- denotes “Excellent.” A.M. Best is an industry recognized rating service for insurance companies.
For a more detailed explanation of the City’s self-insurance programs, see Note 12, Risk Financing.

Fund Equity

Reservations of fund equity represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific
purpose. Designations of fund equity represent tentative plans identified by management and are subject to
change. Designations are utilized in the City’s governmental funds for amounts that have been designated for
subsequent years’ expenditures and amounts allocated to making future improvements and replacements. Such
designations will be reflected on the fund financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Primary Government (City)

Governmental funds record revenues on the modified accrual basis of accounting and are reported as such in the
fund financial statements. That is, revenues are recorded when they are both measurable and available to
finance current operations or when they are considered susceptible to accrual. “Available” means collectible
within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Revenues
from property taxes, sales and use taxes, occupancy taxes, gross receipts taxes, municipal court fines and fees,
licenses, revenues from utilities, interest revenue, and charges for services are recorded on the modified accrual
basis of accounting, and therefore, are considered susceptible to accrual. The City’s availability period is no more
than 60 days beyond the end of the fiscal year. When collections are delayed beyond the normal time of receipt
due to unusual circumstances, the amounts involved are still recognized as revenues of the current period. Grant
revenues are recognized when reimbursable expenditures are made and all other eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met. Proprietary funds record revenues when earned. In the government-wide
financial statements, all revenues are recorded when earned.

CPS Energy

CPS Energy revenues are recorded when earned. Customers’ meters are read and bills are prepared monthly
based on billing cycles. Rate schedules include adjustment clauses that permit recovery of electric and gas fuel
costs. CPS Energy has used historical information from the relative prior fiscal years as partial bases to estimate
and record earned revenue not yet billed. This process has involved an extrapolation of customer usage over the
days since the last meter read through the last day of the monthly period. The amount of unbilled revenue
receivable recorded at January 31, 2008 including estimates for electric and gas fuel costs, was $49,600.
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CPS Energy (Continued)

CPS Energy’s electric fuel cost adjustment clause also permits recovery of regulatory assessments. Specifically
beginning in March 2000, CPS Energy began recovering assessments from the Public Utility Commission of Texas
(PUCT) for transmission access charges and from the Texas Independent System Operator, also known as the
Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT), for its operating costs and other charges applicable to CPS Energy as
a wholesale provider of power to other utilities. Regulatory assessments for fiscal year 2008 were $23,200.

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)
SAWS revenues are recorded when earned. Customers’ meters are read and bills are prepared monthly based on

billing cycles. SAWS uses historical information to estimate and record earned revenue not yet billed. The amount
of unbilled revenue receivable was $19,158 at December 31, 2007.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The City recovers indirect costs in the General Fund through the application of departmental indirect cost rates.
These rates are developed and documented in the City’s departmental indirect cost rate plan. In this plan, each
department is classified by function. Indirect costs are budgeted by department and are used as a basis for the
City’s actual indirect cost allocation. Base rates are then applied to actual indirect costs recovered and indirect
costs are reclassified to reduce general government expenditures. For fiscal year 2008, general government
expenditures were reduced by $8,621, resulting in increased expenditures in other governmental functions and in
business-type activities in the amounts of $5,476 and $3,145, respectively.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Bond premiums, discounts and debt
refundings are deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the original bonds or the life of the
refunding bonds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses.

Bond Issuance Costs

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, bond issuance costs are reported as assets in
the Statement of Net Assets and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuance costs during the current
period as expenditures of the funds in which proceeds of debt issuances are recorded.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Elimination of Internal Activity

Elimination of internal activity, particularly related to Internal Service Fund transactions, is needed to make the
transition from governmental funds to government-wide activities. The overriding objective in eliminating the
effects of Internal Service Fund activity is to adjust the internal charges to cause a break-even result. Eliminating
the effect of Internal Service Fund activity requires the City to look back and adjust the Internal Service Funds’
internal charges. Net income derived from Internal Service Fund activity would cause a pro rata reduction in the
charges made to the participating funds/functions. Conversely, an Internal Service Fund net loss would require a
pro rata increase in the amounts charged to the participating funds/functions. Therefore, eliminations made to
the Statement of Activities remove the doubling up effect of Internal Service Fund activity. The residual internal
balances between the governmental and business-type activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and
the internal balance amounts that exist within the governmental funds or within business-type funds are
eliminated. The City reports Internal Service Fund balances in both governmental and business-type activities,
based on the pro rata share of the amounts charged to the participating funds/functions.

The City has three Internal Service Funds: Other Internal Services, Information Technology Services, and Self-
Insurance Funds. Other Internal Services and Information Technology Services charge users fees for requested
goods or services. Building maintenance charges, a component of the Other Internal Services Fund, are based on
the space occupied by departments. Through the tracking of these charges to the applicable departments, the
net income or loss will be allocated back to the user department, based on actual charges incurred.

The Self-Insurance Funds generate their revenues through fixed assessments charged to the various funds each
year, as well as, a pro rata user fee charged to employees. The retiree benefit fund additionally generates
revenue through a pro rata user fee charged to retirees. The net income or loss generated by the Self-Insurance
Funds is allocated back, based on the same allocation by which the revenues are received over time.

Application of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Assets

The City may receive funding from an organization whose expenditures are restricted to certain allowable costs.
In situations where both restricted and unrestricted net assets are expended to cover allowable expenses, the
City will first expend the restricted net assets and cover additional costs with unrestricted net assets. The City
reserves the right to selectively defer the use of restricted assets.

Unreserved Designated Fund Balance

The designated fund balances from the governmental funds balance sheet are composed of the following:

e The General Fund has designated unreserved fund balances of $3,348 for budgeted carryforwards, $5,796
for special projects, $68,168 for reserve for revenue loss, and $5,682 for Public, Educational and
Government Access Funding (PEG) revenues.

e Special Revenue Funds designated fund balance consists entirely of budgeted carryforwards.

e Permanent Funds designated fund balance consists of a reservation from the sale of burial lots within the
San Jose Burial Park Fund, a reservation for security of a loan within the San Antonio Housing Trust Fund,
and the endowment for the San Antonio Public Library Foundation.
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Special Items

In fiscal year 2008 several transactions were initiated moving debt from governmental activity funds to enterprise
funds. When the debt relating to 2006 and 2007 Certificates of Obligations, 2004A Refunding General Obligations,
and 2007 Tax Notes (which were subsequently refunded with 2006 General Obligations) were initially recorded,
proceeds, bonds payable, and additional bond costs (premiums, discounts, cost of issuances) were recorded in the
governmental activity funds as they were pledged with ad valorem taxes even though the funds were used for
construction of enterprise funds’ capital assets. Monthly transfers from the Parking System and Environmental
Services Fund to the Debt Service Fund were initiated to cover the principal and interest expenditures.
Therefore, all self supporting enterprise debt was moved from governmental activity funds into their respective
enterprise funds. For debt and related cost transfers, see Note 6, Long-Term Debt.

Note 2 Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied and due upon receipt on October 1, attached as an enforceable lien on property as of
January 1, and become delinquent the following February 1. Property tax billing and collections are performed
via an inter-local agreement with the Bexar County Tax Assessor/Collector’s Office.

In the governmental funds, property tax revenues are recognized when they become available, which means
when due, or past due and receivable within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter (within 60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Property tax receivables, including
related interest and penalty receivable, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts, represent amounts the City
believes will ultimately be collected. Property tax receivables, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts, are
offset by unearned revenues. The City is permitted by the Municipal Finance Law of the State of Texas to levy
taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of taxable valuation (please note amounts are not reflected in thousands). The tax
rate approved by City ordinance for the fiscal year-ended September 30, 2008, was $0.5723 per $100 taxable
valuation, which means that the City has a tax margin of $1.9277 per $100 taxable valuation (please note that tax
rate amounts are not reflected in thousands). This could raise an additional $1,271,412 per year based on the net
taxable valuation of $65,954,867 before the limit is reached.

The City has approved a “TIF Manual” for the utilization of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) and the creation of Tax
Increment Reinvestment Zones (TIRZ) pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code, as amended. Since 1998,
the City has utilized TIF as a vehicle to fund in whole or in part eligible capital costs for public infrastructure
related to economic development, commercial, and residential projects. As of September 30, 2008, there are 22
existing TIRZ with a total taxable captured value of $840,122. For fiscal year 2008, this total taxable captured
value produced $4,500 in tax increment revenues for use by the City to fund capital costs of certain public
infrastructure improvements in the TIRZ. The existing TIRZ have terms ranging from 10 years to 30 years which
are anticipated to expire starting in fiscal year 2009 through fiscal year 2032. It is estimated that the City will
contribute approximately $400,000 in tax increment revenues in aggregate over the next 30 years for these TIRZ
projects. The existing TIRZ are referred to as the Rosedale, Highland Heights, New Horizons, Mission Del Lago,
Brookside, Houston Street, Stablewood Farms, Inner City, Plaza Fortuna, Lackland Hills, Sky Harbor, North East
Crossing, Brooks City Base, Mission Creek, Hallie Heights, Heathers Cove, Ridge Stone, Palo Alto Trails, Hunters
Pond, Rosillo Ranch, River North, and Verano Projects.
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Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

A summary of cash and cash equivalents and investments for the primary government (City), Fire and Police
Pension Fund, Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund, CPS Energy, and SAWS are presented below as of each
entity’s respective fiscal year. The information is provided in order to facilitate reconciliation between the
Statement of Net Assets and the following note disclosures:

L Totals from Statement of Net Assets
Fire and Fire and Police
Police Retiree Health CPS
City Pension Fund 2 Care Fund ? Energy ® SAWS *

Unrestricted:

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 25,508 S 57,518 S 6,966 S 160,926 S 14,384

Security Lending Collateral 158,644 7,555 400,306

Investments 402,572 1,816,313 180,902 234,115 179,615
Total Unrestricted 428,080 2,032,475 195,423 795,347 193,999
Restricted:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 89,481 78,224 13,773

Investments 829,488 1,164,170 272,469
Total Restricted 918,969 1,242,394 286,242

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

and Investments S 1,347,049 S 2,032,475 S 195,423 S 2,037,741 S 480,241

' Private Purpose Trust and Agency Funds, Westside Development Corporation, City South Management Authority and San
Antonio Development Agency's cash and investments are included in the City's pooled cash and investments but are not
available for City activities and are excluded from the primary government's Statement of Net Assets. The Private Purpose
Trust and Agency assets are presented above as Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents of $1,397 and Investments of $9,569.
The other entities' assets are presented in the Discretely Presented Component Unit's Statement of Net Assets.

2 The Fire and Police Pension Fund and the Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund are separately issued fiduciary component
units and are excluded from the primary government's Statement of Net Assets.

3 For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008.
4 For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

L Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Fire and Fire and Police
Police Retiree Health CPS
City Pension Fund Care Fund Energy SAWS

Deposits with Financial Institutions $ 9,579 S 7,071 S 10 $ 5,362 $ 14,353
Investments with Original Maturities

of Less than Ninety Days 104,718 699 6,944 233,088 13,773
Cash with Pension/Retiree Health

Care Fiscal Agents 49,748
Cash with Other Financial Agents 341 12 578
Petty Cash Funds 163 122
Cash on Hand 188 31

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents S 114,989 S 57,518 S 6,966 $ 239,150 $ 28,157
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Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

I Summary of Investments

Fire and Fire and Police
Police Retiree Health CPS
City Pension Fund Care Fund Energy SAWS
U.S. Treasury, Government Agencies,
and Money Market Funds $ 1,329,364 S 65,788 S 21,857 S 1,386,412 S 465,857
Repurchase Agreements 5,089
Fixed Income Securities ' 581
Equity Securities ' 1,744
Corporate Bonds 328,269 47,391
Foreign Bonds 4,434
Preferred Stock 1,028
Common Stock 806,321 30,179 193,136
Real Estate 201,126 44,229
Hedge Funds 234,769 43,469
International Equities 12,453
Swaps Liabilities 1,011
Alternative Investment 178,700 35,659
Total Investments 1,336,778 1,817,012 187,846 1,631,373 465,857
Less: Investments with original maturities
of Less than Ninety Days included in
Cash and Cash Equivalents (104,718) (699) (6,944) (233,088) (13,773)
Total $ 1,232,060 S 1,816,313 S 180,902 S 1,398,285 S 452,084

These investments are reported under a blended component unit (SA Public Library Foundation). As the Foundation is a self-governing
agency the City has no control over or rights to the Foundation's investments. Further breakout of these investments was not

attainable.

Primary Government (City)

City monies are deposited in demand accounts at the City’s depository. The City utilizes a pooled cash and
investment strategy with each fund’s cash balance and pro rata shares of highly liquid investments, including U.S.
Treasury securities, U.S. government agency securities, and repurchase agreements with original maturities of
ninety days or less, summarized by fund type and included in the combined Statement of Net Assets as cash and
cash equivalents. Overdrafts, which result from a fund overdrawing its share of pooled cash, are reported as
interfund payables by the overdrawn fund and as interfund receivables of either the General Fund or another

fund within the CAFR reporting fund.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit at 102.0% of all deposits not covered by
federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States of
America and its agencies and obligations of the State and its municipalities, school districts, and district
corporations. Collateral pledged for demand accounts and certificates of deposit is required to be held in the
City's name in the custody of a third-party institution that customarily provides such custodial services.

Written custodial agreements are required which provide, among other things, that the collateral securities are
held separate from the assets of the custodial banks. The City periodically determines that the collateral has a
market value adequate to cover the deposits and that the collateral has been segregated either physically or by
book entry. At fiscal year-end, cash deposits for the City were entirely collateralized by the City’s depository with
securities consisting of U.S. government or government agency or U.S. government guaranteed obligations held in
book entry form by the Federal Reserve Bank in the City’s name.
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Primary Government (City) (Continued)

The City’s investment portfolio is managed in accordance with its own Investment Policy and the Texas Public
Funds Investment Act, as amended. Authorized investments include demand accounts, certificates of deposit,
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies, commercial paper, and repurchase agreements.
The City maintains in its investment portfolio U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. government agency securities with
original maturities greater than ninety days. Each fund’s pro rata share of these investments with original
maturities greater than ninety days is combined with similar nonpooled securities (i.e., securities purchased and
held for specific funds), including U.S. Treasury securities, and U.S. government agency securities, and are
reported as investments in the combined Statement of Net Assets, as of September 30, 2008.

The City accounts for and reports investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. The City’s policy with respect to
money market investments that have a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase is to report
these investments at amortized cost. Amortized cost approximates fair value for these investments. The increase
in fair value for investments of the City with a remaining maturity of greater than one year at the time of
purchase was $76 for the year-ended September 30, 2008. The City does not participate in external investment

pools.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Exposure, the following table and
narrative addresses the interest rate risk exposure by investment type, using the weighted average maturity
(WAM) method, custodial credit risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. The City does
not hold any foreign securities; therefore, foreign currency risk is not applicable.

A summary of the City’s cash and cash equivalents is provided at the beginning of Note 3, with a comparison to
the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets.

L City Investments

Carrying ' Fair '

Amount Value Allocation Rating * WAM
U.S. Government Agency Securities S 939,841 S 939,915 70.3% AAA/A-1+ 0.46 years
U.S. Treasuries 290,540 290,540 21.7% N/A 0.28 years
Money Market Mutual Fund 98,909 98,909 7.4% AAAmM 1 day
Fixed Income Securities * 581 581 0.1%
Equity Securities ¢ 1,744 1,744 0.1%
Repurchase Agreement 5,089 5,089 0.4% N/A 1 day
Total City Investments S 1,336,704 S 1,336,778 100.0%

1 The Carrying Amount and Fair Value include investments for the Starbright Industrial Development Corporation, Texas Municipal
Facilities Corporation, Convention Center Hotel Finance Corporation, and San Antonio Public Library Foundation, which total $25,396.
Z The allocation is based on fair value.

3 Standard & Poors.
4 These investments are reported under a blended component unit (SA Public Library Foundation). As the Foundation is a self-governing

agency the City has no control over or rights to the Foundation's investments. Further breakout of these investments, ratings and WAM

were not attainable.

Custodial Credit Risk (Deposits) - Collateral pledged for demand accounts and certificates of deposit is required
to be held in the City's name in the custody of a third-party institution that customarily provides such custodial
services. The City periodically determines that the collateral has a market value of not less than 102.0% of the
deposit amount and that the collateral has been segregated either physically or by book entry. At fiscal year-end,
cash deposits for the City were entirely collateralized by the City’s depository, with securities consisting of U.S.
government agency or securities held in book entry form by the Federal Reserve Bank in the City’s name.
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Primary Government (City) (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk (Investments) - The City’s investment securities are held at the City’s depository bank’s
third-party custodian, The Bank of New York Mellon, in the depository bank’s name “as a custodian for the City”.
Assets pledged as collateral must generally be a type of security specifically authorized to be held as a direct
investment; must be held by an independent third party; and must be pledged in the name of the City.

Interest Rate Risk - The City manages exposure to value losses resulting from rising interest rates by limiting the
investment portfolio’s weighted-average maturity to five years. Per the City’s Investment Policy, investments are
diversified across issuers and maturity dates so that fewer funds will be subject to interest rate risk occurrence at
any given time. In addition, the City generally follows a laddered approach to investing, whereby blocks of
roughly the same increments are invested at similarly increased maturity lengths. This approach provides security
that all investments will not become due at one particularly advantageous or disadvantageous period of time,
thereby spreading the risk. Weighted-average maturity is defined as the weighted-average time to the return of a
dollar of principal. It is used as an estimate of the interest rate risk of a fixed income investment. The City
invests in money market mutual funds with 100.0% overnight liquidity. Additionally, the City has entered into
several repurchase agreements with 100.0% overnight liquidity for investment of certain bond proceeds.

Credit Risk - The City’s Investment Policy requires the purchase of securities that are of the highest credit
quality, based on current ratings provided by nationally recognized credit rating agencies. The City deems
investments in U.S. Treasury securities and federal agency securities that are guaranteed to be without credit
risk. Investments in other debt securities will consist of securities rated “A” or better by at least two nationally
recognized rating agencies. As of September 30, 2008, the City’s investment portfolio, with the exception of the
repurchase agreement and the money market mutual fund investments, consisted only of U.S. Treasury securities
and U.S. government agency securities. Investments in U.S. government agency securities, including Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal
Agricultural Mortgage Corporation, and Federal Farm Credit Bank were rated AAA (Long-term) and A-1+ (Short-
term) by Standard & Poor’s. The investments in the money market funds were rated “AAAm” by Standard &
Poor’s, and all repurchase agreements were over 100.0% collateralized with U.S. government agency securities.
The City manages its exposure to credit risk by limiting its fixed income investments to a rating of “A” or better.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Although the City’s Investment Policy does not limit the amount of the portfolio
invested in any one U.S. government agency, the City manages exposure to concentration of credit risk through
diversification. As of September 30, 2008, the U.S. government agency’s 70.3% securities allocation was as
follows: Federal National Mortgage Association 25.7%, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 22.1%, Federal
Home Loan Bank 12.2%, Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 1.1%, and Federal Farm Credit Bank 9.2%.

Fire and Police Pension Fund

Investments of the Fire and Police Pension Fund (Pension Fund), a blended component unit, are administered by
the Fire and Police Pension Fund board of trustees. Investments of the Pension Fund are reported at fair value
and include corporate bonds; common stock; preferred stock; U.S. Treasury securities; U.S. government agency
securities; notes, mortgages, hedge funds and contracts; and real estate. Equity and fixed income securities
traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange
rates. Notes, mortgages, and contracts are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments
discounted at prevailing interest rates. The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent
appraisals and on the equity position of real estate partnerships in which the Pension Fund has invested.
Investments in private equity and others that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
value using discounted expected future cash flows at rates that are adjusted for the amount of expected risk and
valuations of comparable assets with ascertainable market values. Investment income is recognized as earned.
Net appreciation/(depreciation) in fair value of investments includes gains and losses that are being recognized
based on the change in the market value of the investments, but have not been realized because the assets have
not been sold or exchanged as of the balance sheet date. The Pension Fund’s assets are invested as authorized by
Texas state law. The fair value of the Pension Fund’s cash and investments are $2,032,475. A summary of the
Pension Fund’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments can be found at the beginning of Note 3.
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Fire and Police Pension Fund (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk (Deposits) - Cash and short-term investments include demand deposit accounts and short-
term U.S. government and other investments. As of September 30, 2008, cash in demand deposit accounts were
fully collateralized.

Custodial Credit Risk (Investments) - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Pension Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of the outside party. As of September 30, 2008, the Pension Fund had cash
deposits held by investment managers in the amount of $8 that was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Credit Risk - Using Standard and Poor’s rating system for fixed income securities as of September 30, 2008, 39.0%
of the Pension Fund’s bonds were rated AAA, 3.0% were rated AA, 7.0% were rated A, 19.0% were rated BBB,
13.0% were rated BB, 7.0% were rated B, 1.0% were rated CCC, and 11.0% were not rated.

Interest Rate Risk - Only the fixed income securities of the Pension Fund are subject to interest rate risk due to
the possibility that prevailing interest rates could change before the securities reach maturity. Securities that are
subject to interest rate risk as of September 30, 2008 amount to $394,276 and have a weighted-average maturity
(WAM) of 10.85 years. Securities that are subject to interest rate risk are shown in the following table.

Weighted-Average

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity WAM (Years)
Corporate Bonds S 64,061 12.55
Government Agencies 9,712 5.90
Government Bonds 42,333 6.36
Short Term Bills and Notes 3,805 0.18
Government Mortgage Backed Securities 105,524 7.75
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.s 24,300 27.74
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 3,458 7.56
Bank Loans 5,607 4.80
Asset Backed Securities 35,882 12.41
Ashmore 28,012 16.40
Ashmore LFC 16,380 6.60
Wellington Emerging Market Debt 55,202 10.40
Total Interest Rate Sensitive Securities S 394,276 10.85
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Fire and Police Pension Fund (Continued)

Foreign Currency Risk - The Pension Fund’s investments include investments in equities, bonds, and cash in
foreign currency denominations. Equities denominated in foreign currencies as of September 30, 2008 amounted
to $198,299 in equities, $136,380 in bonds and $(4,661) in cash. Detailed as follows:

Country Equities Bonds Cash Total
Argentine Peso S - S 1,232 S - S 1,232
Australian Dollar 6,567 9,978 (2,715) 13,830
Bermuda Dollar 1 1
Brazilian Real 10,650 17,439 28,089
Canadian Dollar 1,714 3,050 4,764
Swiss Franc 11,972 (1,369) 10,603
Chinese Renminbi 4,059 1,134 5,193
Chilean Peso 471 471
Colombian Peso 2,336 2,336
Czech Republic Krona (1,670) 1,254 (416)
Danish Krone 2,756 2,756
Egyptian Pound 815 815
European Union 54,155 1,113 (1,132) 54,136
British Pound 26,517 3,303 (1,855) 27,965
Hong Kong Dollar 7,826 7,826
Hungarian Forint 3,443 938 4,381
Iceland Krona 1,887 1,887
Indonesian Rupiah 1,550 4,951 6,501
Israeli New Shekel 811 811
Indian Rupee 717 717
Japanese Yen 24,857 18,659 818 44,334
South Korean Won 11,715 31 11,746
Lithuanian Litas 3 3
Mexican Peso 5,080 12,068 17,148
Malaysian Ringgit 60 6,823 1 6,884
Norwegian Krone 1,985 1 1,986
New Zealand Dollar 168 4,058 4,226
Nigerian Naira 1,947 1,947
Pakistani Rupe 273 273
Panamanian Balboa 267 267
Peruvian Nuevo Sol 3,647 3,647
Philippine Peso 3,002 3,002
Polish Zloty (2,068) 7,306 5,238
Romanian Leu 401 401
Russian Ruble 2,289 7,708 9,997
Swedish Krona 2,446 2,472 8 4,926
Singapore Dollar 784 3,064 7 3,855
Thai Baht 2,692 2,692
Turkey New Lira 4,177 4,695 1,575 10,447
Taiwan Dollar 10,271 10,271
Ukrainian Hyvnia 1 232 233
UAE Dirham 1,158 1,158
Uruguay Peso 1,408 1,408
Venezuelan Bolivar 3,071 3,071
South African Rand 2,097 4,863 6,960

S 198,299 S 136,380 S (4,661) S 330,018
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Fire and Police Pension Fund (Continued)

Securities Lending - State statutes and Pension Fund policies allow for securities lending transactions. The
Pension Fund has entered into an agreement with its custodial bank to lend the Pension Fund’s securities to one
or more borrowers for a fee. It is the policy of the Pension Fund and the custodial bank to require that collateral
equal to 102.0% and 105.0% for domestic and international securities, respectively, of the loaned securities be
maintained by the custodial bank. Collateral may be in the form of cash, U.S. government securities, or
irrevocable letters of credit. Until such time as the loan is terminated, the borrower retains all incidents of
ownership with respect to the collateral. In the event that the borrower fails to repay the borrowed securities,
the Pension Fund may suffer a loss. Management of the Pension Fund considers the possibility of such a loss to be
remote. Cash open collateral is invested in a short-term investment pool with an average weighted maturity of 23
days at September 30, 2008. For the year-ended September 30, 2008, the Pension Fund has recognized an
unrealized loss amounting to $2,030. The loss is due to the write down of some of the fixed income assets in the

investment pool.

As of September 30, 2008, the Pension Fund had lending arrangements outstanding with a total market value of
$159,951, which were fully collateralized with cash and securities. Of this amount, cash collateral of $160,674 is
recorded in the accompanying Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. The net loss recognized for the year-ended
September 30, 2008 under the securities lending arrangement was $717. This includes the $2,030 unrealized loss
on the valuation of the investment pool. Securities lending collateral - cash and cash equivalents, at fair value is
shown net of the $2,030 loss with the assets on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets.

Cash Collateral Pool

2008

U.S. Government Bonds S 1,457
U.S. Treasury Notes 5,052
U.S. Letters of Credit 260
U.S. Asset Backed Securities 27,870
U.S. Corporate Notes 22,237
U.S. Repo Agreements 37,302
U.S. Sweep Vehicle 1,562
U.S. Agencies Bonds 9,044
U.S. Certificates of Deposit 2,823
International Letters of Credit 698
International Certificates of Deposit 30,836
International Time Deposits 16,373
International Asset Backed Securities 4,078
International Corporate Notes 1,082
Subtotal 160,674
Unrealized Loss (2,030)
Total S 158,644

Derivatives and Structured Investments - The Pension Fund has only limited involvement with derivatives and
other structured financial instruments. The Pension Fund’s investment philosophy regarding the use of derivatives
and other structured financial instruments is to use derivatives to replicate exposures to equity or fixed income
securities. The fair value of structured financial instruments held by the Pension Fund at September 30, 2008,
was approximately $24,300, in commercial mortgage obligations and is included with investments in the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. The Pension Fund also invests in hedge funds which may employ the use of
derivatives to reduce volatility. The Pension Fund’s total investment in hedge funds was $234,769 as of

September 30, 2008.
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Fire and Police Pension Fund (Continued)

As of September 30, 2008, the fund held currency forward contracts as follows:

2008
Market Value
Receivable/

Currency (Payable) Maturity Date
Austrialian Dollars S (1,932) 11/10/2008
Austrialian Dollars (790) 12/19/2008
Euros (1,128) 12/19/2008
Japanese Yen 817 12/19/2008
Turkish Lira 1,573 1/26/2009
British Pound (2,693) 1/22/2009
British Pound 825 12/19/2008
Swiss Franc (1,366) 12/19/2008
U.S. Dollars 2,186 11/10/2008
U.S. Dollars 2,679 1/22/2009
U.S. Dollars (1,611) 1/26/2009
U.S. Dollars 1,698 12/19/2008
Total S 258

The Pension Fund invested using an investment strategy called “portable alpha” in the year-ended September
30, 2008. In implementing this strategy, the Pension Fund combined a low volatility absolute return strategy to
provide consistent returns that are greater than interest paid at LIBOR, or “alpha”. These returns are added to
the difference between LIBOR and the Lehman Brothers Government Index, or “beta”. In order to simulate the
beta exposure, a two part strategy is employed. First, a swap is employed whereby the Pension Fund pays the
30 day LIBOR and receives a fixed rate of 5.2%. The notional amount of the swap is $27,000. The counterparty
pays the fixed rate every 6 months on February 28" and August 28". The Pension Fund pays interest every
quarter on February 28", May 28", August 28" and November 28". The contracts are effective as of February
28, 2007. The swap is subject to counterparty risk in the event that the counterparties are unable to pay the
guaranteed amount because of financial insolvency. The amount at risk would be the difference between the
interest using 30 day LIBOR on $27,000 and the fixed 5.2% interest on $27,000 for the same period.
Management of the Pension Fund considers the possibility of loss due to the failure of the counterparties to be
remote. A receivable of $1,011 and a liability of $346 related to the swap are included with the investments on
the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets for the fiscal year-ended September 30, 2008. The second part of the
strategy involves the use of Treasury futures to replicate the return from the Lehman Brothers Government
Index. The contracts used are 3 month contracts and are usually rolled over to new contracts within a half
month of their maturity dates. The underlying securities used are new issues. As of September 30, 2008, the
Pension Fund held Treasury futures contracts in the amount of $64,444. The margin accounts for the futures
contracts are settled daily, so there is no market value for the futures as of September 30, 2008. Income is
recognized in the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets in net appreciation in fair value of investments.
The contracts in force as of September 30, 2008 are listed below:

Contracts in Force as of September 30, 2008

Contract Contract
Underlying Interest Market Beginning Maturity
Security Rate Value Date Date
2 Year T-Note 6.0% S 24,759 8/24/2008 12/31/2008
5 Year T-Note 6.0% 36,475 8/24/2008 12/31/2008
10 Year T-Note 6.0% 3,210 8/24/2008 12/31/2008

Total $ 64,444
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Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund

The Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund (Health Care Fund) board of trustees administers investments of the
Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund, a blended component unit. Investments are reported at fair value.
Short-term investments are reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on
national or international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.
Investments that do not have an established market value are reported at estimated fair value.

Investments in alternative investments are substantially held in the form of nonmarketable limited partnerships
interests. These investments are subject to the terms of the respective partnerships’ governing documents which
may limit the Health Care Fund’s withdrawal to specified times and conditions and restrict the transferability of
the Health Care Fund’s interest. The fair valuation of these investments is based on net asset values as set by the
partnerships’ fund managers. These net asset values may differ from the value that would have been used had a
ready market for the investments existed, and such differences could be material.

All investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments, is reported as additions in the
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets.

The Health Care Fund’s assets are invested as authorized by the Investment Policy Statement and Guidelines of
the San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund, San Antonio (Investment Policy). The Health Care Fund
utilizes an investment consultant that makes recommendations to the Health Care Fund as to the appropriate
target portfolio weightings among the major asset classes (e.g. stocks, mutual funds, limited liability partnerships
and cash) within the Health Care Fund. Additionally, the Health Care Fund has hired certain investment managers
to exercise full discretionary authority as to all buy, hold, and sell decisions for each security under management,
subject to the guidelines as defined in the Investment Policy. All of the Health Care Fund’s assets are held by a
custodial bank, Frost National Bank of San Antonio, Texas.

Investments authorized by the Health Care Fund’s Investment Policy include U.S. equities, including common
stocks, securities convertible into common stock, and open or closed end mutual funds; international equity;
certain fixed income assets, private equity and alternative investments, including real estate, absolute return
hedge funds, and natural resources. The cash portion of the Health Care Fund will be invested in a short-term
investment fund administered by the custodian bank, a money market mutual fund, or in individual permissible
securities.

The fair value of the Health Care Fund’s cash and investments at September 30, 2008 is $187,868. A summary of
the Health Care Fund’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments can be found at the beginning of Note 3.

Custodial Credit Risk (Deposits) - The Health Care Fund’s deposits that are held with Frost Bank in non-interest
bearing demand accounts are covered under the new FDIC Transaction Account Guarantee Program. Under this
program, through December 31, 2009, all non-interest bearing transaction accounts are fully guaranteed by the
FDIC for the entire amount in the account. Coverage under this program is in addition to and separate from the
coverage available under the FDIC’s general deposit rules. It does not appear that deposits the Health Care Fund
holds in demand accounts are exposed to custodial credit risk as of September 30, 2008.

The Health Care Fund does not have deposit or investment policies related to custodial credit risk as of
September 30, 2008. The Health Care Fund is aware of these risks and monitors such risks, if any, as part of its
day-to-day operations and through its daily dealings with the custodian bank.
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Custodial Credit Risk (Investments) - The Health Care Fund’s investment securities, stocks, and bonds, are held
at Frost National Bank’s third-party custodian, Bank of New York Mellon. All securities held for the Health Care
Fund at Bank of New York Mellon are in Frost National Bank’s name, and Frost National Bank tracks these
securities as being held for the benefit of the Health Care Fund. Since the securities are not registered in the
name of the Health Care Fund and are held by a counterparty, and are not insured, they are considered to be
exposed to custodial credit risk. These investments are reported as follows, by investment type, as of September
30, 2008:

Common Stock S 30,179
International Equity 12,453
Money Market Mutual Fund 6,944

Credit Risk - The Health Care Fund’s Investment Policy includes a section that addresses overall credit quality.
According to the Investment Policy, the average credit quality rating for the fixed-income portfolio will be at
least A. Ninety percent of the securities must be rated BBB-/Baa3 or higher by a nationally recognized rating
agency at time of purchase. For split-rated securities, the higher rating will be used in determining compliance
with these guidelines. Credit quality ratings for investments with credit risk are as follows at year-end:

Percentage
Rating Held

AAA/Aaa 62.4%
AA+ 2.2%
AA 1.0%
AA- 1.6%
A+ 4.4%
A 8.1%
A- 1.0%
BBB+ 2.2%
BBB 11.3%
BB+ 2.6%
BB- 0.8%
B 0.9%
Accrued Interest 1.5%
(Not Rated)
Total 100.0%

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Health Care Fund’s Investment Policy regarding concentration of credit risk
for equities states that no more than 5.0% of any investment manager’s portfolio at cost and 8.0% at the market
value shall be invested in the securities of any one company. Regarding fixed-income assets, no more than 10.0%
of an investment manager’s bond portfolio at cost shall be invested in the securities of any one issuer. The policy
further states there shall be no such limit on U.S. government securities, U.S. agency securities or government -
sponsored entities, U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities, or other sovereign issues rated AAA or Aaa. At year-
end, the Health Care Fund did not have any investments in any one issuer that represented 5.0% or more of total

investments.
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Interest Rate Risk - The Health Care Fund does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The
Health Care Fund is aware of this risk and has chosen to rely on the expert advice of professional money managers
to manage its exposure to interest rate changes. The money market mutual fund with a fair value of $6,944, at
year-end and is payable on demand.

Securities Lending - Securities lending assets are reported at fair value. State statutes and the Health Care Fund
policies allow for securities lending transactions. The Health Care Fund entered into an agreement with its
custodial bank in May 2003 to lend the Health Care Fund’s securities to one or more borrowers for a fee. It is the
policy of the Health Care Fund and the custodian bank to require that collateral equal 100.0% of the loaned
security’s market value plus accrued interest for domestic government or agency securities loaned, and 102.0% of
the loaned security’s market value plus accrued interest for approved, domestic, nongovernment, or agency
securities loaned be maintained by the custodial bank. Collateral may be in the form of cash, U.S. government
securities, or irrevocable letters of credit. Until such time as the loan is terminated, the borrower retains all
incidents of ownership with respect to the collateral. In the event the borrower fails to repay the borrowed
securities, when due and the value of the collateral is insufficient to replace the borrowed securities, the Health
Care Fund may suffer a loss. Management of the Health Care Fund considers the possibility of such a loss to be
remote. Cash collateral is invested in open-end money market type mutual funds at September 30, 2008.

Subscribed Capital Commitments - As of September 30, 2008, the Fund had non-binding commitments to
invest capital in ten investment companies under investment capital subscription agreements. These
commitments are subject to periodic calls from the investment companies. The amount of this investment
capital committed under the subscription agreements totaled to $105,000. As of September 30, 2008, $45,358
of this total had been called.

CPS Energy

CPS Energy’s investments with a maturity date within one year of the purchase date are reported at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. Amortization of premium and accretion of discount are recorded over the
terms of the investments that mature within one year. CPS Energy’s investments with a maturity date of one year
or longer from the purchase date are accounted for using fair value. As available, fair values are determined by
using generally accepted financial reporting services, publications, and broker and dealer information, as
necessary. The specific identification method is used to determine costs in computing gains or losses on sales of
securities. CPS Energy reports all investments of the Decommissioning Trusts at fair market value.

Restricted funds are generally for uses other than current operations. They are designated by law, ordinance or
contract and are often used to acquire or construct noncurrent assets. Restricted funds consist primarily of
unspent bond or commercial paper proceeds, debt service required for the New Series Bonds and Junior Lien
Obligations, and funds for future construction or contingencies. This category also includes customer assistance
programs where proceeds are received from outside parties. The assets of the Decommissioning Trusts are also

considered restricted.

The Repair and Replacement Account is restricted in accordance with the CPS Energy’s bond ordinances. In
compliance with a bond ordinance, CPS Energy’s board of trustees authorized that a portion of the Repair and
Replacement Account be designated for converting overhead electric facilities to underground (also referred to as
the Overhead Conversion Fund).

CPS Energy’s cash deposits at January 31, 2008 were entirely insured by federal depository insurance or
collateralized by banks. For deposits that were collateralized, the securities were U.S. government, U.S.
government agency, or U.S. government-guaranteed obligations held in book entry form by Frost National Bank in
CPS Energy’s name.
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Since the assets in the Decommissioning Trusts are restricted for use only for decommissioning at some future
date, securities lending cash collateral has been treated as long-term and thus has been classified as an
investment in the Trusts. Consistent with other investments in the Trusts, securities lending cash collateral is
shown separately on the table that lists investments by type in the Decommissioning Trust section of this Note.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and
Securities Lending Cash Collateral

Cash and cash equivalents
Petty cash funds on hand
Bond paying agent - debt service - restricted
Deposits with financial institutions
Unrestricted CPS Energy deposits
Restricted CPS Energy deposits
Debt service
Project Warm
Investments with original maturities of less than 90 days
CPS Energy unrestricted (current)
CPS Energy restricted (noncurrent)
Decommissioning Trusts - restricted (noncurrent)
Total cash and cash equivalents
CPS Energy - securities lending cash collateral
Total cash, cash equivalents and
securities lending cash collateral

January 31,
2008

S 122
578

4,326

735
301

156,478
62,801

13,809

239,150

400,306

S 639,456

CPS Energy’s cash, cash equivalents and investments can be separated in the following manner:

Those directly managed by CPS Energy, and
Those managed through the Decommissioning Trusts.

For financial reporting purposes, cash, cash equivalents and investments managed directly by CPS Energy have
been consistently measured as of the end of the applicable fiscal years. The Decommissioning Trusts are reported

on a calendar-year basis.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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CPS Energy (Continued)

Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Along with Current and Noncurrent Investments

January 31,
2008
Cash and cash equivalents
CPS Energy unrestricted and restricted S 225,341
Decommissioning Trusts - restricted 13,809
Total cash and cash equivalents 239,150
Gross investments - current and noncurrent
CPS Energy unrestricted and restricted 1,188,115
Decommissioning Trusts - restricted 443,258
Total gross investments 1,631,373
Investments with original maturities of less than
90 days also included in cash equivalents
CPS Energy unrestricted and restricted (219,279)
Decommissioning Trusts - restricted (13,809)
Total investments also included in cash equivalents (233,088)
Net current and noncurrent investments 1,398,285
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments S 1,637,435

CPS Energy’s direct investments and the investments held in the Decommissioning Trusts are subject to the rules
and regulations of the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA). The PFIA regulates what types of investments can be
made, requires written investment policies, mandates training requirements of investment officers, requires
internal management reports to be produced at least quarterly, and provides for the selection of authorized
brokers. In September 2005, the Texas legislature passed a law to allow the decommissioning trust funds for
municipally owned nuclear power plants to hold investments authorized by Subtitle B, Title 9, of the Property
Code (i.e., corporate bonds and equities such as common stocks).

CPS Energy’s allowable direct investments are defined by CPS Energy Board Resolution, CPS Energy Investment
Policy, bond ordinances, Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper (TECP) Ordinance and state law. These investments are
subject to market risk, and their market value will vary as interest rates fluctuate. All CPS Energy direct
investments are held in trust custodial funds by an independent bank.

CPS Energy’s investments in the Decommissioning Trusts are held by an independent trustee. Investments are
limited to those defined by CPS Energy Board Resolution, the South Texas Project Decommissioning Trust
Investment Policy, the Investment Strategy Committee, the Trust Agreements and state law. Allowable
investments for the Decommissioning Trusts include those directly permissible for CPS Energy, as well as equities
and corporate bonds (including international securities). Specifically, starting in September 2005, in accordance
with the applicable amended investment policies, total investments can include a maximum of 60.0% equity
securities.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Permissible Investments

CPS Energy Decommissioning
Investment Description Direct Investments Trusts

U.S. Government, Government
Agency, or U.S. Government- v v
guaranteed obligations

Collateralized mortgage obligation v v
issued by the U.S. Government

Fully secured certificates of deposit

issued by a state, national or v v
savings bank domiciled in the State

of Texas

Direct repurchase agreements v v
Reverse repurchase agreements v v
Defined bankers' acceptances and v

commercial paper

No-load money market mutual v v
funds

Other specific types of secured or % v
guaranteed investments

Equities N/A v
Corporate bonds N/A v
International securities N/A 4
Securities lending v v

In fiscal year 2007, CPS Energy and the Decommissioning Trusts entered into agreements with Frost National
Bank, a Texas-based financial institution, for the purpose of securities lending. The cash collateral received for
CPS Energy’s securities lending transactions is reported as a current asset on the Balance Sheets and the
corresponding obligation to repay the cash collateral is reported on the Balance Sheets as a current liability that
directly offsets the amount received from brokers or dealers in exchange for securities loaned. See Note 12, Risk
Financing for details regarding securities lending.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments by Fund
January 31,

2008
Unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents S 160,926
Investments 234,115
Total Unrestricted (current) 395,041
Restricted
Debt service
Cash and cash equivalents 2,272
Total Debt Service 2,272
Capital projects
Investments 290,501
Total Capital Projects 290,501
Ordinance
Cash and cash equivalents 54,039
Investments 444,220
Total Ordinance 498,259
Other
Project Warm
Cash and cash equivalents 8,104
Total Project Warm 8,104
Decommissioning Trusts
Cash and cash equivalents 13,809
Investments 429,449
Total Decommissioning Trusts 443,258
Total Other 451,362
Total Restricted
Cash and cash equivalents 78,224
Investments 1,164,170
Total Restricted (noncurrent) 1,242,394
Total cash, cash equivalents and
investments (unrestricted and restricted)’ S 1,637,435

CPS Energy’s cash equivalents and fixed-income investments are exposed to interest rate risk, credit risk
(including custodial credit risk and concentration of credit risk), and foreign currency risk. Interest rate risk is the
exposure to fair market value losses resulting from rising interest rates. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an
investment will not fulfill its obligations (will be unable to make timely principal and interest payments on the
security). Foreign currency risk is the exposure to fair market value losses arising from changes in exchange rates.
Cash, cash equivalents and fixed-income investments are also exposed to inflation, liquidity, political, legal,
event, reinvestment and timing (call) risks. Additionally, equity investments are exposed to political, legal, event
and general economic risks.

CPS Energy’s direct investments portfolio has limited indirect exposure related to the asset-backed commercial
paper holdings in its AIM Investments money market funds. AIM Investments has issued a formal statement that
outlines their investment practice of ensuring that all asset-backed commercial paper purchased has high credit
protection and liquidity support that exceeds the negligible indirect subprime mortgage exposure.
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While the financial markets continue to experience impacts due to subprime lending, neither CPS Energy’s direct
investments nor the investments in the Decommissioning Trusts have any direct exposure to investments backed
by subprime collateral.

The investments in the Decommissioning Trusts have limited indirect exposure related to the ownership of
equities of various financial institutions, a sector that, as a whole, has been under considerable downward price
pressure. The Trusts’ investment policy requires a diversified investment strategy that facilitates the mitigation
of market risks during periods of economic downturn.

CPS Energy’s direct investments and the investments in the Decommissioning Trusts are managed with a
conservative focus. The investment policies are structured to ensure compliance with bond ordinances, the PFIA,
the Public Funds Collateral Act, the NRC, the PUCT, other applicable state statutes, and CPS Energy board of
trustee resolutions relating to investments. CPS Energy identifies and manages risks by following an appropriate
investment oversight strategy, establishing and monitoring compliance with investment policies and procedures,
and continually monitoring prudent controls over risks. All investment policies follow the “prudent person”

concept.

Summary of Investments by Organizational Structure and Type

January 31,
2008
CPS Energy investments
U.S. Treasury, Government Agencies and
money market funds S 1,188,115
Decommissioning Trusts
U.S. Treasury, Government Agencies and

money market funds 198,297
Corporate bonds 47,391
Foreign bonds 4,434

Subtotal 250,122
Common stock 193,136

Total Decommissioning Trusts 443,258

Grand total - all investments S 1,631,373

Effective September 1, 2005, as a result of a change in Texas law, the investment policies of the Decommissioning
Trusts were revised to allow for investment in additional types of securities, such as corporate bonds and equity
securities. The policies provide guidelines to ensure all funds are invested in authorized securities in order to earn
a reasonable return. The primary emphasis is placed on long-term growth commensurate with the need to
preserve the value of the assets and, at the time funds are needed for decommissioning costs, on liquidity. The
investment policies continue to follow the “prudent person” concept.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, additional disclosures have been provided in this note that address
investment exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk (including custodial credit risk and concentration of credit
risk), and foreign currency risk, as applicable. The disclosure requirements of this Statement do not apply to
equity securities since they are not directly or immediately exposed to these risks. CPS Energy and the
Decommissioning Trusts do not have custodial credit risk, as all investments are held either by an independent
trustee or bank and are in CPS Energy’s or the Decommissioning Trusts names.
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CPS Energy’s Direct Investments - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, the following tables address
credit risk (including custodial credit risk and concentration of credit risk) and interest rate risk exposure by
investment type using the weighted-average maturity (WAM) method. Since CPS Energy does not hold foreign
instruments in its direct investments (those not held by one of the Decommissioning Trusts), foreign currency risk
is not applicable.

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its investment policy, CPS Energy manages exposure to fair market value
losses resulting from rising interest rates by limiting the portfolio’s WAM to two years or less. WAM is defined as
the weighted-average time to return a dollar of principal. It is used as an estimate of the interest rate risk of a
fixed-income investment. CPS Energy invests the cash collateral received from securities lending and other funds
in money market mutual funds that have no fixed maturities. Accordingly, a WAM in terms of years for money
market mutual funds is not applicable.

Concentration of Credit Risk - In accordance with its investment policy, CPS Energy manages exposure to
concentration of credit risk through diversification and by limiting its investment in each government-sponsored
entity to 50.0% and its investment in any nongovernment issuer to 5.0% of the total fixed-income portfolio.

Weighted-
Carrying Market Average
Investment Type Value Value Allocation Maturity (Years)
U.S. Agencies:
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. S 122,358 S 122,617 10.3% 1.7
Federal National Mortgage Assn. 249,599 250,313 21.0% 2.7
Federal Home Loan Bank 560,843 562,949 47.3% 0.5
Federal Farm Credit Bank 15,075 15,075 1.2% 0.0
JP Morgan - CD 75,000 75,000 6.3% 0.4
AIM Money Market 165,240 165,240 13.9% 0.0
Total Fixed-Income Investments 1,188,115 1,191,194 100.0% 0.7
Cash Collateral - Securities Lending 400,306 400,306
Total Fixed-Income Portfolio $ 1,588,421 $ 1,591,500

Credit Risk - In accordance with its investment policy, CPS Energy manages exposure to credit risk by limiting its
fixed-income investments to a credit rating of “A” or better. As of January 31, 2008, CPS Energy held no direct
investments with a credit rating below “AAA”.

Carrying Market
Credit Rating Value Value Allocation
AAA S 1,588,421 S 1,591,500 100.0%
Total Fixed-Income Investments S 1,588,421 $ 1,591,500 100.0%

Decommissioning Trust Investments - As mentioned above, the Decommissioning Trust report their assets on a
calendar-year basis; therefore, the tables in this section are as of December 31. These tables address interest
rate risk exposure by investment type (using the weighted-average duration method), credit risk, concentration
of credit risk and foreign currency risk. All investments held by the Decommissioning Trusts are long-term in
nature and are recorded at market value.
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Interest Rate Risk - Generally, the long-term nature of the liabilities and the limited need for daily operating
liquidity allow interim fluctuations in market value to occur without jeopardizing the ultimate value of the assets.
Where long-term securities are held, the interim market value of assets can be sensitive to changes in interest
rates. As the general level of interest rates moves up and down, the interim market value of longer-maturity
bonds may change substantially. To mitigate this interest rate risk, a limitation is placed on the duration of the
fixed-income portfolio. The overall portfolio duration should not deviate from the weighted-average duration of
the Investment Strategy Committee’s specified fixed-income index by more than +/- 1.5 years. The Investment
Strategy Committee’s fixed-income index is based on the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Index, which is 4.4 for 2007.

Weighted-average duration is defined as the weighted-average time to return a dollar of principal and interest
and also incorporates potential changes in the timing of principal and interest return that may occur as a result of
changes in interest rates. It makes assumptions regarding the most likely timing and amounts of variable cash
flows and is used as an estimate of the interest rate risk of a fixed-income investment - especially those with

payment terms dependent on market interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk - In accordance with the investment policy, exposure to concentration of credit risk
is managed through diversification and by limiting investments in each government-sponsored entity to 30.0% and
investments in any nongovernment-sponsored issuer to 5.0% of the total fixed-income portfolio (excluding cash
collateral from securities lending). At December 31, 2007, total nongovernment-sponsored (corporate and
foreign) issuers amounted to 34.3% of the 28.0% Decommissioning Trust and 13.7% of the 12.0% Decommissioning

Trust.

The following tables list the fixed-income investment holdings by type:

28.0% Interest 12.0% Interest
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Market Duration Market Duration
Investment Type Value Allocation (Years) Value Allocation (Years)
U.S. Treasuries S 13,695 10.1% 3.0 S 2,683 7.2% 6.2
U.S. Agencies:
Federal National Mortgage Assn. 36,919 27.1% 3.6 11,946 31.9% 3.6
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 17,509 12.9% 3.5 6,192 16.5% 4.3
Small Business Administration 4,929 3.6% 5.7
Government National Mortgage Assn. 3,523 9.4% 4.9
Municipal Bonds - Texas 146 0.1% 2.4 1,883 5.0% 7.6
Municipal Bonds - Other States 3,368 2.5% 7.3 5,003 13.4% 4.7
Corporate Bonds 42,261 31.1% 6.8 5,130 13.7% 5.4
Foreign Bonds 4,434 3.2% 8.3
AIM Money Market 12,731 9.4% 1,078 2.9%
Total Fixed-income Investments S 135,992 100.0% 5.0 S 37,438 100.0% 4.9
Cash Collateral - Securities Lending 54,971 21,721
Total Portfolio $ 190,963 S 59,159

Credit Risk - In accordance with the investment policies, exposure to credit risk is managed by limiting all fixed-
income investments to a credit rating of “BBB-” or better from at least two nationally recognized credit rating
agencies. As of December 31, 2007 the Decommissioning Trusts held no investments with a credit rate below

“ BBB. ”
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28.0% Interest 12.0% Interest
Credit Rating Market Value  Allocation  Market Value  Allocation

U.S. Treasuries S 13,695 7.2% S 2,683 4.4%
AAA 142,290 74.5% 50,031 84.6%
AA 3,742 2.0% 3,468 5.9%
A 17,299 9.0% 2,641 4.5%
BBB 13,937 7.3% 336 0.6%

Total Fixed-income Portfolio S 190,963 100.0% S 59,159 100.0%

Foreign Currency Risk - With the exception of dedicated foreign-equity portfolios, all investments authorized
for purchase by the Decommissioning Trusts are U.S. dollar-denominated. This, along with the low level of
foreign fixed-income investment, reduced the potential foreign currency risk exposure to the portfolio. The
foreign bonds outstanding amounted to $4,434 as of December 31, 2007 held by the 28.0% Decommissioning
Trust.

CPS Energy Employee Benefit Plan Investments - Due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 45, the
Employee Benefit Plans have been removed from the CPS Energy financial statements as component units in
fiscal year 2008. The Employee Benefit Plans’ separately audited financial statements, including the
disclosures related to GASB Statement No. 40 can be obtained by contacting the Employee Services Division of
CPS Energy by email at BPSiller@CPSEnergy.com.

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

SAWS is permitted by City Ordinance No. 75686, SAWS’ Investment Policy and Texas state law, to invest in direct
obligations of the U.S. or its agencies and instrumentalities. Other allowable investments include direct
obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities; secured certificates of deposit issued by
depository institutions that have their main office or a branch office in the State of Texas; defined bankers
acceptances and commercial paper; collateralized direct repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase
agreements; no-load money market mutual funds; investment pools; and other types of secured or guaranteed
investments. These investments are subject to market risk, interest rate risk, and credit risk, which may affect
the value at which these investments are recorded. Investments other than money market investments are
reported at fair value. Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, money market investments, including U.S.
Treasury and agency obligations, with a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less at reported
cost. A summary of SAWS cash, cash equivalents, and investments can be found at the beginning of Note 3.

Custodial Credit Risk (Deposit) - All funds are deposited at JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A., SAWS’ general depository
bank. The general depository agreement with the bank does not require SAWS to maintain an average monthly
balance. As required by state law, all deposits are fully collateralized and/or are covered by federal depository
insurance. At December 31, 2007, the collateral pledged is being held by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York
under SAWS’ name so SAWS incurs no custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2007, the bank balance of demand
and savings account was $19,187, and the reported amount was $14,384 which included $31 of cash on hand.

Custodial Credit Risk (Investment) - All investments, with the exception of those held in escrow, are in Agencies
of the United States and are held in safekeeping by SAWS’ depository bank, JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A.,
registered as accounts of SAWS. Funds held in escrow are Money Market Funds managed by U.S. Bank and are
invested in U.S. Treasury Obligations. As of December 31, 2007, all investments of SAWS are classified as current
assets as they had remaining maturities of less than one year.
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San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)

As of December 31, 2007, SAWS had the following investments and maturities:

| Investments Maturities (in Days)

Investment Type 90 Days or Less 91 to 180 181 to 365 Fair Value Reported
U.S. Agency Discount Notes S 83,202 S 114,990 S 25,491 $ 223,683 $ 223,556
U.S. Agency Coupon Notes 77,829 95,776 59,720 233,325 233,192
Money Market Funds:
U.S. Bank 9,109 9,109 9,109
S 170,140 $ 210,766 S 85,211 S 466,117 S 465,857
Percentage of Portfolio 36.5% 45.2% 18.3% 100.0%

Interest Rate Risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses due to rising interest rates, SAWS’
investment policy limits its investment maturities to no more than five years. As indicated in the table above,
100.0% of SAWS’ investment portfolio is invested in maturities less than one year.

Credit Risk - In accordance with its investment policies, SAWS manages exposure to credit risk by limiting its
investments in obligations of other states and cities to those with a credit rating of “A” or better. Additionally,
any investments in commercial paper require a rating of at least “A-1” or “P-1”. As of December 31, 2007 SAWS
held no direct investments with a credit rating below “AAA”.

Credit Rating Carrying Value  Market Value  Allocation Investment Policy Limit

December 31, 2007
AAA S 465,857 S 466,117 100.0% Max. = 100.0%

Total Portfolio S 465,857 S 466,117 100.0%

Concentration of Credit Risk - SAWS’ investment policy does not limit the amount it may invest in U.S. Treasury
securities, government-guaranteed securities, or government-sponsored entity securities. However, in order to
manage its exposure to credit risk, SAWS’ investment policy does limit the amount that can be invested in any
one government-sponsored issuer to no more than 50.0% of the total investment portfolio, and no more than 5.0%
of the total investment portfolio on any non-government issuer unless it is fully collateralized. As of December
31, 2007, SAWS has invested more than 5.0% of its investments in the following government-sponsored entities in
the form of discount or coupon notes: 29.0% in Federal Home Loan Bank, 43.0% in Federal National Mortgage
Association, and 22.0% in Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)

The following is a reconciliation of deposits and investments disclosed in the note to the amounts presented for
cash and investments in the balance sheets for 2007:

December 31,

2007
Reported amounts in note for:
Deposits S 14,384
Investments 465,857
Total Deposits and Investments S 480,241
Totals for Balance Sheets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents S 14,384
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:
Capital Projects Accounts 13,773
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 28,157
Investments:
Unrestricted current investments 179,615
Restricted current investments:
Debt Service Accounts 30,318
Other Restricted Accounts:
Operating reserve 29,567
Customers' deposits 7,857
Total Other Restricted Accounts 37,424
Total Current Investments 247,357
Restricted noncurrent investments:
Capital Projects Accounts 204,727
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments S 480,241

Note 4 Capital Assets

Primary Government (City)

In November 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of
Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries, which establishes guidance for accounting and reporting for the
impairment of assets and for insurance recoveries. Impairments of $83 were identified and reduced in capital
assets for governmental activities and $740 in business-type activities.
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Capital asset activity for governmental activities, to include Internal Service Funds, for the year-ended
September 30, 2008, is as follows:

| Capital Assets - Governmental Activities ]

Beginning
Beginning Prior Period Balance Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Adjustment ' (Restated) Increases Decreases Transfers Balance

Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land S 1,341,567 S B S 1,341,567 S 14,574 S - S - S 1,356,141

Construction in Progress 214,187 214,187 214,848 (3,914) (144,707) 280,414

Other Non-Depreciable Assets 500 500
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 1,555,754 1,555,754 229,922 (3,914) (144,707) 1,637,055
Depreciable Assets:

Buildings 668,349 231 668,580 (123) 42,428 710,885

Improvements 238,440 472 238,912 60 56,872 295,844

Infrastructure 2,246,274 2,246,274 45,407 2,291,681

Machinery and Equipment 328,510 36 328,546 24,046 (7,954) 344,638
Total Depreciable Assets 3,481,573 739 3,482,312 24,106 (8,077) 144,707 3,643,048
Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings (219,509) (219,509) (18,796) 123 (238,182)

Improvements (62,427) (32) (62,459) (10,745) (73,204)

Infrastructure (1,384,688) (1,384,688) (55,147) (1,439,835)

Machinery and Equipment (173,224) (173,224) (26,963) 6,884 (193,303)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,839,848) (32) (1,839,880) (111,651) 7,007 (1,944,524)
Total Depreciable Assets, net 1,641,725 707 1,642,432 (87,546) (1,070) 144,707 1,698,524
Total Capital Assets, net S 3,197,479 $ 707 S 3,198,186 S 142,376 S (4,984 § - S 3,335,579
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General Government S 21,270

Public Safety 6,706

Public Works 58,927

Health Services 630

Sanitation 87

Welfare 622

Culture and Recreation 4,345

Convention and Tourism 4,214

Economic Development and Opportunity 99

Depreciation on Capital Assets Held by City's Internal Service

Funds are Charged to Various Functions Based on Asset Usage 14,751

Total Depreciation Expense for Governmental Activities $ 111,651

The capital assets of Internal Service Funds are included in governmental activities. In fiscal year 2008, Internal Service Funds capital assets increased by
$19,815, and decreased by $7,665, resulting in an ending balance of $150,512. Depreciation expense of $14,751 resulted in an ending accumulated
depreciation balance of $95,978, to arrive at net book value of $54,534.

' Prior Period Adjustments are due to the incorporation of the San Antonio Library Foundation as a blended component unit of the City. As the Foundation is a
self-governing agency the City has no control over rights to these assets. See Note 17, Prior Period Restatement.
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Primary Government (City) (Continued)

The City capitalizes interest incurred on construction projects, in accordance with Statement of Accounting
Standards No. 62, Special Reports, issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. In fiscal year 2008, the
City capitalized construction period interest for the Airport System in the amount of $946. Capital asset activity

for business-type activities for the year-ended September 30, 2008, is as follows:

[ Capital Assets - Business-Type Activities

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land:
Airport System S 4,543 S 780 S S 5,323
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 9,018 9,018
Total Land 13,561 780 14,341
Construction in Progress:
Airport System 97,999 76,602 (54,417) 120,184
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 3,210 (740) (1,201) 1,269
Total Construction in Progress 97,999 79,812 (740) (55,618) 121,453
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 111,560 80,592 (740) (55,618) 135,794
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings:
Airport System 144,248 51,554 195,802
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 30,362 30,362
Total Buildings 174,610 51,554 226,164
Improvements:
Airport System 210,372 11 2,863 213,246
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 7,013 1,201 8,214
Total Improvements 217,385 11 4,064 221,460
Machinery and Equipment:
Airport System 11,189 428 (39) 11,578
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 6,991 3,512 10,503
Total Machinery and Equipment 18,180 3,940 (39) 22,081
Total Depreciable Assets 410,175 3,951 (39) 55,618 469,705
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings:
Airport System (64,916) (3,535) (68,451)
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds (10,685) (805) (11,490)
Total Buildings (75,601) (4,340) (79,941)
Improvements:
Airport System (86,071) (5,705) (91,776)
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds (1,700) (264) (1,964)
Total Improvements (87,771) (5,969) (93,740)
Machinery and Equipment:
Airport System (9,392) (481) 34 (9,839)
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds (4,110) (536) (4,646)
Total Machinery and Equipment (13,502) (1,017) 34 (14,485)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (176,874) (11,326) 34 (188,166)
Total Depreciable Assets, net 233,301 (7,375) (5) 55,618 281,539
Total Capital Assets, net S 344,861 S 73,217 S (745) S 417,333
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CPS Energy

CPS Energy’s plant-in service includes seven power plants, which are solely owned and operated by CPS Energy. In
total, the plants have 19 generating units—three of which are coal-fired and 16 of which are gas-fired. The

following is a list of plants and relative generating units:

Generating Generating
Plant Units Type Plant Units Type
J.T. Deely 2 Coal V.H. Brauning 3 Gas
J.K. Spruce 1 Coal W.B. Tuttle 4* Gas
Arthur von Rosenberg 1 Gas Leon Creek 6 Gas
0.W. Sommers 2 Gas

* Included as a part of the 16 gas generating units are W.B. Tuttle Unit 2, which is fully depreciated
and is currently not available for use.

Construction on J.K. Spruce Unit 2 (Spruce 2) was started on March 21, 2006, with plans for commercial operation
in 2010. Spruce 2, a 750-megawatt unit, will be the largest of the coal units at Calavaras Lake and will be

equipped with current emissions-control technology.

Other notable capital assets in electric and gas plant include a fleet of rail cars, a transmission network for the
movement of electric power from the generating stations, and the electric and gas distribution systems.

Included in general plant are the Energy Management Center; the main office complex; the North Side Customer
Service Center; the construction and customer service centers; the Villita Assembly Building; and a fleet of
automobiles, trucks, and work equipment.

Impairments - No capital asset impairments were identified for fiscal year 2008.

Investment in STP - STP is currently a two-unit nuclear power plant located in Matagorda County, Texas. It is
maintained and operated by the STP Nuclear Operating Company (STPNOC), a nonprofit Texas corporation
special-purpose entity. It is financed and controlled by the owners - CPS Energy, NRG Energy, Inc. and the City of

Austin.

CPS Energy’s 40.0% interest in STP Units 1 and 2 is included in plant-in-service. On October 29, 2007, the CPS
Energy board of trustees approved a resolution enabling CPS Energy to participate in development activities
related to new nuclear electrical-generating capacity, including the STP nuclear power plants Units 3 and 4.

STP Capital Investment (40.0% share), Net
January 31, 2008

STP capital assets, net

Construction-in-progress S 84,835
Land 5,701
Electric and general plant 1,332,717
Nuclear fuel 65,110
Total STP capital assets, net S 1,488,363
Total CPS Energy capital assets, net S 5,805,531

STP capital investments as a percentage
of total CPS Energy capital assets, net 25.6%
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CPS Energy (Continued)

The following tables provide more detailed information on the activity of CPS Energy’s net capital assets as
presented on the Balance Sheets, including capital asset activity for fiscal year 2008:

| Capital Assets - CPS Energy J
Beginning Additions/ Transfers Reductions/ Ending
Balance Increases In/(Out) Decreases Balance
Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land:

Land S 60,080 S - S 3,581 S (250) S 63,411
Nonutility Land 12,599 (12,599)

Construction in Progress 419,795 735,080 (308,193) 846,682
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 492,474 735,080 (304,612) (12,849) 910,093
Depreciable Capital Assets:

Utility Plant in Service:

Electric Plant 6,599,451 48,777 247,693 (31,861) 6,864,060
Gas Plant 601,453 3,097 13,139 4) 617,685
General Plant 607,784 15,503 43,780 (17,938) 649,129
Utility Property Leased 18,785 (18,785)

Nuclear Fuel 521,229 24,370 (7,242) 538,357
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 8,348,702 91,747 304,612 (75,830) 8,669,231
Accumulated Depreciation

Depletion and Amortization:

Utility Plant in Service:
Electric Plant (2,708,475) (204,255) 30,569 (2,882,161)
Gas Plant (205,076) (13,344) 334 (218,086)
General Plant (180,740) (46,741) 27,182 (200,299)
Utility Property Leased (840) (317) 1,157
Nuclear Fuel (451,253) (29,250) 7,256 (473,247)
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Depletion and Amortization (3,546,384) (293,907) 66,498 (3,773,793)

Total Capital Assets, net S 5,294,792 S 532,920 S - $  (22,181) § 5,805,531

Cash flow information - Cash paid for additions, net removal costs, and nuclear fuel was $802,310. Noncash
AFUDC was 528,453, and a noncash write-off of excess amortization was $13, for a total of $830,776. Included in
Reductions/Decreases was $8,495 in removal costs. These reductions were offset by $4,559 in salvage sales.
Depreciation, depletion and amortization totaled $264,657.

Other - the increases in electric plant also included new substations, as well as transmission and distribution
infrastructure.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

SAWS capitalized interest on debt proceeds used to finance utility plant additions is capitalized as part of the cost
of capital assets. For the year-ended December 31, 2007, interest capitalized was $9,201. Capital asset activity

for SAWS is as follows:

[ Capital Assets - San Antonio Water System |
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Transfers Decreases Balance
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land:
Land $ 73,069 S S 5474 S - § 78,543
Acquisition of Water Rights 39,719 5,319 245 44,793
Construction in Progress 372,598 289,940 (300,791) 555 361,192
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 485,386 289,940 (289,998) 800 484,528
Depreciable Assets:
Utility Plant in Service:
Structures and Improvements 351,342 1,492 25,145 377,979
Pumping and Purification 111,382 46 2,821 114,249
Distribution and Transmission System 1,152,560 582 163,010 21 1,316,131
Treatment Facilities 1,177,473 98,340 2,032 1,273,781
Machinery and Equipment:
Machinery and Equipment 88,461 11,829 575 143 100,722
Furniture and Fixtures 4,830 3 99 4,932
Computer Equipment 15,843 1,111 8 116 16,846
Software 9,832 560 10,392
Total Depreciable Assets 2,911,723 15,623 289,998 2,312 3,215,032
Accumulated Depreciation:
Utility Plant in Service:
Structures and Improvements (75,114) (7,434) (82,548)
Pumping and Purification (18,461) (2,847) (21,308)
Distribution and Transmission System (322,607) (28,352) (21) (350,938)
Treatment Facilities (436,997) (31,197) (2,021) (466,173)
Machinery and Equipment:
Machinery and Equipment (51,470) (5,043) (143) (56,370)
Furniture and Fixtures (3,021) (321) (3,342)
Computer Equipment (11,226) (1,889) (107) (13,008)
Software (7,354) (1,224) (8,578)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (926,250) (78,307) (2,292) (1,002,265)
Total Depreciable Assets, net 1,985,473 (62,684) 289,998 20 2,212,767
Total Capital Assets, net S 2,470,859 S 227,256 S - S 820 S 2,697,295
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Disaggregation of Receivables

Net receivables at September 30, 2008 are as follows:

Notes and  Accrued Total Net
Accounts Taxes Loans Interest Other Receivables
Governmental Activities $ 145,594 S 14,703 § 5,058 S 7,434 S 8,674 S 181,463
Business-Type Activities:
Airport System § 5,000 S - S - § 2,064 S - S 7,065
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 6,839 245 7,084
Total Business-Type Activities S 11,840 § - S - S 2,309 S - S 14,149

The receivable balances for Governmental Activities have been reduced by estimated allowances for doubtful
accounts of $52,690 against customer, other governmental agencies and other receivables, and $4,659 against
property and occupancy taxes. The receivable balances for Business-Type Activities have been reduced by
estimated allowances for doubtful accounts of $1,876 against customer and other receivables.

The only receivables not expected to be collected within one year are $5,058 of notes and loans receivables, net
of allowance for doubtful accounts, related to Urban Redevelopment and Housing and Economic Development and
Opportunity. These notes and loans have a corresponding unearned revenue balance recorded within the
respective funds.

Disaggregation of Payables

Payables at September 30, 2008 are as follows:

Accrued Total
Accounts Payroll Payables
Governmental Activities $ 150,980 S 19,811 $ 170,791
Business-Type Activities:
Airport System S 13,624 S 871 S 14,495
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 3,176 1,052 4,228
Total Business-Type Activities S 16,800 S 1,923 S 18,723

Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances

As of September 30, 2008, the interfund receivable and payable balances represent short-term loans resulting
from (1) post-closing adjustments between funds after cash and related interest earning have been calculated
and allocated and (2) short-term borrowings at year-end. Of the $37,881 due from other funds in the General
Fund, $36,155 is a result of overdraws of pooled cash. Except for an internal loan of $648 from the Equipment
Renewal Replacement fund to Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #27, all interfund balances are expected to be
paid within one year. See Note 6 Long-Term Debt, for additional information regarding the internal loan.
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Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances (Continued)

The following is a summary of interfund receivables and payables for the City as of September 30, 2008:

Summary Table of Interfund Receivables and Payables

As of September 30, 2008

Due from Other Funds

Due To Other Funds

General Fund:

Fiduciary Funds S 442 S -
Categorical Grant-In Aid 33,492 1,720
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,866 2,519
Airport System Fund 81
Total General Fund 37,881 4,239
Debt Service Funds:

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 413 13

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 442 2,130
Total Debt Service Funds 855 2,143
Airport System Fund:

General Fund 81

Categorical Grant-in Aid 8 1

Internal Service Funds 8

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1"

Airport Operating Fund from the Airport Construction Fund 2,584

Airport Debt Service Fund from Airport PFC Fund 135

Airport Debt Service Fund from Airport Capital Improvement Fund 465

Airport Debt Service Fund from Airport Construction Fund 363

Airport Debt Service Fund from Airport Debt Service Fund 34 34

Airport PFC Capital Improvement Fund from Airport Construction Fund 1,086

Airport Construction Fund to Airport PFC Capital Improvement Fund 1,086

Airport PFC Fund from Airport Debt Service Fund 106

Airport Debt Service Fund to Airport PFC Fund 106

Airport PFC Capital Improvement Fund to the Airport PFC Fund 5,154

Airport PFC Fund to the Airport PFC Captial Improvement Fund 5,154

Airport Construction Fund to Airport Debt Service Fund 363

Airport Capital Improvement Fund to Airport Debt Service Fund 465

Airport Construciton Fund from Airport Operating Fund 2,584

Airport PFC Fund to the Airport Debt Service Fund 135
Total Airport System Fund 9,935 10,028
Categorical Grant-In Aid:

General Fund 1,720 33,492

Airport System Fund 1 8

Internal Service Funds 199 72

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 158 537

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 164 126
Total Categorical Grant-in Aid 2,242 34,235
Fiduciary Funds:

General Fund 442
Total Fiduciary Funds 442
Internal Service Funds:

Internal Service Funds 1,407 1,407

Categorical Grant-In Aid 72 199

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 3,208

Airport System Fund 8

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 705 199
Total Internal Service Funds 5,400 1,805
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

General Fund 2,519 3,866

Categorical Grant-In Aid 126 164

Debt Service Fund 13 413

Internal Service Funds 199 705

Airport System Fund 11

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 1,306 10,065

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 43,317 43,317
Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds 47,491 58,530
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:

Categorical Grant-In Aid 537 158

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 9,488 9,488

Internal Service Funds 3,208

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 10,065 1,306

Debt Service Fund 2,130 442
Total Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 22,220 14,602
Total S 126,024 $ 126,024
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CPS Energy

Disaggregation of Receivables - Net customer accounts receivable as of January 31, 2008, included $49,635 for
unbilled revenue receivables and $131,105 for billed utility services. Interest and other receivables included
$8,300 for regulatory-related receivables, $3,800 for interest receivables and $13,688 for other miscellaneous

receivables.

Disaggregation of Payables - At January 31, 2008, accounts payable and accrued liabilities included $307,600
related to standard operating supplier and vendor payables, including fuels payable; $32,500 to employee-related
payables; $22,561 to the current portion of deferred lease revenue; and $48,578 to other miscellaneous payables

and accrued liabilities.

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts are broken down by core
business as follows:

December 31,

2007
Water Delivery ) 13,149
Water Supply 13,384
Wastewater 15,318
Chilled Water and Steam 1,186
S 43,037

Sundry Payable and Accruals - SAWS has sundry payable and accruals totaling $30,725 as of December 31,
2007. A detailed breakdown of amounts included in these totals is provided in the table below:

2007

Accrued ordinance payments to City S 548
Sewer service collections payable 304
Payroll liabilities 3,964
Unfunded Other Postemployment Benefits 13,217
Miscellaneous accruals 7,110
Contingency accrual 3,000
Utility accrual 1,722
Unclaimed property 211
Unearned revenues 649

Total Sundry Payable and Accruals S 30,725

A portion of sundry payable and accruals has been classified as long-term. The long-term portion consists of Other
Postemployment Benefits that are not expected to be paid within the next year.
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Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt

The City’s debt management and ongoing capital improvement financing for infrastructure and “quality of life”
purposes resulted in the issuance of additional indebtedness during fiscal year 2008. In December 2007, the City
issued the following; $121,220 in General Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 and $106,755
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligations, Series 2007 (of which $2,500 was sold for purposes of
Environmental Services).

The General Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 were issued to finance general improvements of the
City and to refund the City’s $60,000 Tax Notes, Series 2007. The $60,000 Tax Notes, Series 2007 are short-term
debt obligations payable from ad valorem taxes over a three-year period, which were used as an interim funding
mechanism in anticipation of the long-term General Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 which are
paid out over a 20-year period. The net proceeds from the sale of the General Improvement and Refunding Bonds,
Series 2007, which included an original premium of $6,780, were applied, together with a cash contribution from
the City, to fund an escrow account for the redemption, discharge, and defeasance of the refunded obligations.
As a result of converting the debt from short-term debt to long-term debt, the City will realize a total increase of
$26,758 in debt service payments and an economic loss (difference between the present values of the debt
service payments on the old and new debt) of $384. The General Improvement and Refunding Bonds are retired
serially in the years 2008 to 2028, with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%.

Proceeds of the Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2007 will be utilized to fund
capital projects to include constructing, renovating, and improving municipal facilities; constructing the new
Haven for Hope Homeless Campus; constructing, improving, and renovating park facilities; acquiring Mission Drive
In Theatre land for open space; construction of improvements to the City’s library system and municipal golf
courses; constructing improvements for flood control; constructing parking facilities at the Witte Museum and the
Zoo area; acquiring, constructing, and improving public safety facilities; the purchase of materials, supplies,
machinery, land, and rights of way for authorized needs and purposes relating to public safety, drainage, flood
control, street, library, parks, utility infrastructure, and public works purposes; and the payment of professional
services related to the construction and financing of the aforementioned projects. The Certificates have
maturities ranging from 2008 to 2028, with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%.

On December 18, 2007, the City issued $21,270 in Tax Notes, Series 2007A. The proceeds of the Notes will be
utilized to fund technology improvements for various City-owned systems and improvements to the City’s
infrastructure improvements at Brooks City-Base. The Notes are payable from the proceeds of an annual ad
valorem tax levied upon all taxable property within the limitations prescribed by law. The Notes will have
maturities ranging from 2008 to 2012, with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%.

On July 11, 2008, the City issued $135,000 Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate Lien Variable Rate Demand
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2008. $106,440 was issued to refund the Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue
Bonds, Series 2004B. Additionally, $28,650 in new money was issued for renovation to the Lila Cockrell
Theatre, including ADA compliance improvements, asbestos abatement, renovation of all interior finishes and
mechanical, electrical, and plumbing upgrades, as well as other expansion-related improvements. The Hotel
Occupancy Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004B were originally issued as Multi-modal bonds insured by Ambac
Assurance Corporation (Ambac) and structured as a Put Bond anticipated to mature August 15, 2008. The Put
Bond was designed to be rolled over into a Variable Rate Demand Bond (“VRDB”), extended into another Put
Bond structure, or refunded into fixed rate debt. The City chose an advanced refunding to a new series VRDB
as the most advantageous option which preserved the City’s flexibility given its continued development of the
Convention Center Expansion Financing Plan. The transaction required the City to secure an irrevocable direct-
pay letter of credit to provide additional security for the VRDB’s. The Bonds have maturities ranging from 2008
to 2034, with interest rates set weekly. As a result of the 2008 refunding, the City will realize a total increase
of $47,846 in debt service payments. Through this transaction, the City incurred an economic loss of $23,517.

-79 - Amounts are expressed in thousands



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Note 6 Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Primary Government (City) (Continued)

Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The City of San Antonio’s General Obligation, Certificates of Obligation, and Tax Notes are pledged by ad
valorem taxes. The Certificates of Obligation are additionally secured by a lien on and pledge of certain
Pledged Revenues of the City’s municipal parks system, not to exceed $1,000 during the entire period the
Certificates or interest remains outstanding, solely to permit the Certificates to be sold for cash. The
Convention Center Expansion Revenue Bonds are pledged from hotel occupancy tax. The Municipal Drainage
Bonds are pledged from municipal drainage revenue. The Municipal Facilities Corporation Lease Revenue Bonds
are funded by lease payments. The Hotel Empowerment Zone Bonds are pledged by revenues to be received
from the hotel operations. Starbright Industrial Development Corporation Revenue Bonds are pledged by utility
revenue received by the City from CPS Energy.

Prior Years’ Defeased Debt

In prior years, the City advance refunded, prior to maturity, certain general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and
certificates of obligation. The refunding bonds were utilized to purchase securities, which are direct obligations
of the United States of America (the Purchased Securities). The Purchased Securities plus cash were deposited
into irrevocable escrow accounts in amounts scheduled to mature in principal amounts that, when added to
interest earned on the Purchased Securities plus remaining balances in the escrow fund, are fully sufficient to
make timely payment on the principal, premium if any, and interest scheduled to come due on the refunded
obligations. The refunded obligations represent a legal defeasance and are no longer a liability of the City;
therefore, they are not included in the City’s financial statements. On September 30, 2008, $183,770 of
previously defeased bonds were outstanding.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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The following table is a summary of changes for the year-ended September 30, 2008 for governmental activity
debt:

Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt
Time of Original Issuance

Final Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Original Principal Interest Outstanding During During Outstanding
Issue Amount Payment Rates (%) October 1, 2007 Year Year September 30, 2008
General Obligation Bonds:

1996A Refunding $ 82,730 2008 4.8000-6.000 $ 4,205 $ $ 4,205 -

1998 Refunding 30,855 2018 4.500-5.000 14,125 1,050 13,075

1998 Forward Refunding 53,950 2008 5.500-6.000 7,630 7,630

1998A Refunding 49,110 2019 4.000-5.250 21,380 3,490 17,890

1999 12,000 2011 5.500 2,210 505 1,705

2000 27,565 2020 4.500-5.000 6,620 1,195 5,425

2000A 15,615 2021 5.250-5.375 4,300 615 3,685

2001 84,945 2022 3.000-5.250 3,320 755 2,565

2002 Forward Refunding 251,280 2013 5.000-5.250 135,500 22,360 113,140

2002 55,850 2023 3.000-5.500 32,260 3,030 29,230

2003 40,905 2014 2.750-5.000 25,840 3,375 22,465

2003A 56,515 2016 3.500-5.000 50,690 2,955 47,735

2004 33,570 2024 2.375-4.750 33,570 1,440 32,130

2004 Refunding z 13,245 2016 1.875-4.650 9,685 9,685

2005 116,170 2025 3.500-5.250 116,170 116,170

2006 Forward Refunding 33,090 2016 3.700-5.500 33,090 33,090

2006 Refunding : 169,785 2026 3.500-5.000 166,685 4,780 161,905

2007 Refunding 121,220 2028 4.000-5.000 121,220 4,155 117,065
Total General Obligation Bonds $ 1,248,400 S 667,280 S 121,220 § 71,225 717,275
Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation:

Series 1998 S 4,315 2018 4.700-5.000 $ 915 $ S 420 495

Series 1998A 36,535 2019 4.000-5.250 10,115 1,980 8,135

Series 1999 4,230 2011 5.750 780 180 600

Series 2000 8,490 2020 4.500-5.000 2,035 370 1,665

Series 2000A 8,810 201 5.250-5.375 2,425 345 2,080

Series 2000C 6,415 2020 5.000-5.500 5,530 295 5,235

Series 2001 65,195 2014 4.000-5.250 37,990 5,565 32,425

Series 2002 69,930 2023 3.000-5.500 49,250 4,320 44,930

Series 2004 29,525 2024 2.000-5.000 27,915 2,135 25,780

Series 2005 10,535 2025 4.000-5.250 10,535 10,535

Series 2006 * 72,755 2026 3.500-4.370 70,695 2,895 67,800

Series 2007 104,255 2028 4.000-5.000 104,255 12,555 91,700
Total Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation S 420,990 S 218,185 §$ 104,255 § 31,060 291,380
Taxable Certificates of Obligation:

Series 20008 $ 1,755 2011 7.500-7.550 $ 290 $ 65 225
Total Taxable Certificates of Obligation $ 1,755 S 290 S - S 65 225
Tax Notes:

Series 2007 $ 60,000 2010 3.898 S 60,000 $ -8 60,000 -

Series 2007A 21,270 2012 4.000-5.000 21,270 3,345 17,925
Total Tax Notes 81,270 $ 60,000 $ 21,270 % 63,345 17,925
Revenue Bonds:

Series 1996 Hotel Occupancy Tax ' $ 182,012 2026 5.100-6.020 S 18,112 § - S - 18,112

Series 2004A Hotel Occupancy Tax 10,390 2029 5.000 10,390 10,390

Series 2004B Hotel Occupancy Tax 111,425 2034 2.000-5.000 106,950 106,950

Series 2006 Hotel Occupancy Tax Ref 72,620 2026 4.000-4.500 71,820 245 71,575

Series 2007 Hotel Occupancy Tax Note 5,500 2010 4.040 5,500 5,500

Series 2008 Hotel Occupancy Tax Ref 135,000 2034 Variable 135,000 135,000

Series 2003 Municipal Drainage 44,150 2028 3.500-5.000 39,810 1,185 38,625

Series 2005 Municipal Drainage 61,060 2030 3.500-5.250 58,395 1,405 56,990

Series 2001 Municipal Facitity Corp 14,465 2020 3.800-5.200 11,090 640 10,450

Convention Series 2005A 129,930 2039 5.000 129,930 129,930

Convention Series 2005B 78,215 2028 4.500-5.310 78,215 78,215

Starbright Industrial Development Corp. 24,685 2033 2.180-5.110 24,160 535 23,625
Total Revenue Bonds 869,452 $ 554,372 $ 135,000 § 110,960 578,412
Total $ 1,500,127 § 381,745 § 276,655 1,605,217

1 A portion of the Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue Bonds Series 1996 was sold as Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABS). Interest on the CABS accrete from date of delivery and will
be payable only at maturity or redemption. Interest accreted through fiscal year 2008 has resulted in an increase of $17,620 in revenue bonds payable. This increase is
reflected in the combined Statement of Net Assets but is not shown in the above table.

2 As of October 1, 2007, the Taxable General Improvement Refunding Bond, Series 2004A was reclassified from governmental activity debt to the Parking Fund. The balance is

reflected in the business-type long-term debt table.

3 As of October 1, 2007, a portion of the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006 and Certificates of Obligation, Series 2006, were transferred from governmental activity debt to

business-type debt via Environmental Services. These balances are reflected in the business-type long-term debt table.

- 81 -

Amounts are expressed in thousands



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Note 6 Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Primary Government (City) (Continued)

Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Annual Requirements

The annual requirement to amortize all general obligation bonds, certificates of obligation, tax notes, and
revenue bonds outstanding as of September 30, 2008 is as follows:

| Principal and Interest Requirements j

General Certificates of
Obligation Bonds Obligation Tax Notes Revenue Bonds
Year Ending Total Annual
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Requirements
2009 S 61,065 S 34,840 $ 25,385 S 12,957 S 4,210 S 783 S 8,160 $ 28,331 S 175,731
2010 65,060 32,130 24,170 11,882 4,380 615 13,470 27,286 178,993
2011 68,520 28,925 25,365 10,794 4,555 440 10,058 26,710 175,367
2012 49,160 25,551 27,110 9,527 4,780 212 10,599 26,381 153,320
2013 51,250 23,011 30,290 8,172 10,981 26,019 149,723
2014-2018 201,785 79,292 63,960 28,274 65,749 123,802 562,862
2019-2023 155,425 33,454 60,090 15,369 109,385 104,346 478,069
2024-2028 65,010 7,494 35,235 3,449 131,260 74,538 316,986
2029-2033 126,015 42,300 168,315
2034-2038 77,785 14,211 91,996
2039-2040 14,950 748 15,698
Total $717,275  $264,697  $291,605 S 100,424 $ 17,925 $ 2,050 $ 578,412  $ 494,672 S 2,467,060
Total Principal and Interest Payable within One Year
Principal $ 61,065 $ 25,385 S 4,210 $ 8,160 S 98,820
Interest 34,840 12,957 783 28,331 76,911
Total $ 95,905 S 38,342 S 4,993 S 36,491 S 175,731
Authorized but Unissued General Obligation Debt
Authorization Amount Bonds Previously Bonds Authorized
Date Purpose Authorized Issued but Unissued

5/12/2007 Streets, Bridges, and Sidewalks S 306,998 S 27,641 S 279,357

5/12/2007 Drainage 152,052 16,693 135,359

5/12/2007 Parks, Recreations, Open Space, and Athletics 79,125 59,251 19,874

5/12/2007 Library System 11,025 5,088 5,937

5/12/2007 Public Health Facilities 800 675 125

Total $ 550,000 S 109,348 S 440,652

In May 2007, the citizens authorized the City to sell $550,000 in debt for the 2007-2012 Municipal Bond Program.
The program includes 151 projects designed to improve and enhance existing, as well as acquire or construct,
new local streets, bridges, sidewalks, drainage facilities, parks, athletic facilities, libraries, and public health
centers. The Bonds are categorized in five areas: Streets, Bridges and Sidewalks Improvements; Drainage
Improvements; Parks, Recreations, Open Space, and Athletics Improvements; Library Improvements; and Public
Health Facilities Improvements. The Bonds are pledged with and will be repaid from ad valorem tax revenue the

City collects on an annual basis.
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Debt Limitation

The amount of ad valorem tax-supported debt that the City may incur is limited by City Charter and by the
Constitution of the State of Texas. The City Charter establishes a limitation on the general obligation debt
supported by ad valorem taxes to an amount not to exceed 10.0% of the total assessed valuation. The total
assessed valuation for the fiscal year 2008 was $76,465,984, which provides a debt ceiling of $7,646,598. The
total outstanding debt that is secured by an ad valorem tax pledge is $1,039,105 including $12,300 that is
reporting in business-type activities.

The Constitution of the State of Texas provides that the ad valorem taxes levied by the City for debt service and
maintenance and operation purposes shall not exceed $2.50 for each $100 of assessed valuation of taxable
property. There is no limitation within the $2.50 rate for interest and sinking fund purposes; however, it is the
policy of the Attorney General of the State of Texas to prohibit the issuance of debt by a city if such issuance
produces debt service requirements that exceed the amount that can be paid from $1.50 tax rate calculated at
90.0% collections (please note that dollar figures in this paragraph are not reflected in thousands).

Interfund Borrowings

In certain instances, after an evaluation of project/purchase funding requirements, it has been determined that
some funds or operations may require temporary financing. As an alternative to the issuance of external debt to
finance those projects/purchases, the City has authorized internal temporary financing from available cash
balances in the Internal Service Equipment Replacement Funds to meet those needs.

In May 2008, a loan was authorized from the City’s Internal Service Fund to the City’s Community Services Funds,
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) #27, to finance the purchase of the draft River North Master Plan, in an
amount not to exceed $650. The principal amount of the loan was $648, with quarterly interest to be calculated
at the City’s pooled investment portfolio rate. The City’s rate for the quarter ended September 30, 2008, was
2.6%, resulting in interest of $1. Repayment of the principal and interest on this loan will occur as funding is
available from the revenues of the TIRZ.

The following is a summary of changes in the loan for the year-ended September 30, 2008:

Balance Balance
October 1, 2007 Additions Reductions September 30, 2008

S - S 648 S - S 648

Leases

The City leases property and equipment from others. Leased property having elements of ownership are
recorded in the government-wide financial statements. The related obligations, in amounts equal to the
present value of minimum lease payments payable during the remaining term of the leases, are also recorded
in the government-wide financial statements. Other leased property, not having elements of ownership, are
classified as operating leases. Both capital and operating lease payments are recorded as expenditures when
matured in the governmental fund financial statements. Total expenditures for operating leases for the fiscal
year-ended September 30, 2008 were approximately $5,108.
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The City has entered into various lease purchase agreements for the acquisition of printers, refuse collection
containers, self-contained breathing apparatus, a mainframe computer, various fire trucks, golf cars,
electrocardiograms, an inventory theft detection system, hybrid vehicles. These lease agreements qualify as
capital leases for accounting purposes and have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease
payments as of the date of inception. Payments on each of the lease purchases will be made from budgeted
annual appropriations to be approved by the City Council.

The assets acquired through capital leases for governmental activities are as follows:

Machinery and Equipment $ 37,501
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (15,179)
Total $ 22,322

As of September 30, 2008, the City had future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases
with a remaining term in excess of one year for governmental activities as follows:

Capital Operating

Leases Leases Total
Fiscal Year Ending September 30:

2009 S 4,630 S 4,694 S 9,324

2010 4,472 3,257 7,729

2011 3,235 2,578 5,813

2012 933 2,164 3,097

2013 195 1,880 2,075

2014-2018 1,409 1,409

Future Minimum Lease Payments 13,465 S 15,982 $ 29,447
Less: Interest (780)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments 12,685
Less: Current Portion (4,227)
Capital Lease, Net of Current Portion S 8,458

MGA-SA has leased from the City certain golf carts (approximately 158 golf carts at September 30, 2008) which
are used at their courses. The leases are accounted for as capital leases on MGA-SA’s financial statements as
well as on the City’s. The assets subleased to MGA-SA had a net book value of $479 as of September 30, 2008.
MGA-SA remaining lease obligation was $345.

Principal Interest Total
2009 S 169 S 10 S 179
2010 176 4 180

S 345 S 14 S 359
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Business-Type Activity long-term debt applies to those City operations that relate to business and quasi-business
activities where net income and capital maintenance are measured (Enterprise Funds). Long-term debt, which is
to be repaid from proprietary funds resources, is reported in the respective proprietary fund. The long-term
indebtedness of the City’s Enterprise Funds is presented in the discussion that follows.

Airport System - The Airport System includes the City of San Antonio International Airport and Stinson Municipal
Airport and all land, buildings, structures, equipment, and facilities pertaining thereto. The Airport System’s
long-term debt is equally and ratably secured solely by a first lien on and pledge of the gross revenues of the
Airport System. Gross revenues of the Airport System include all revenues of any nature derived from contracts or
use agreements with airlines and other users of the Airport System and its facilities.

On December 14, 2007, the City issued $82,400 in Airport System Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2007.
Concurrently, the City issued $74,860 in Passenger Facility Charge and Subordinate Lien Airport System Revenue
Improvement Bonds, Series 2007. The Bonds were issued to fund various airport system capital improvements
including PFC eligible airport-related projects. The Bonds have maturities ranging from 2008 to 2032, with
interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 5.3%.

Parking System - The Parking System operation includes the ownership and operation of parking facilities,
parking lots, parking meters, and retail/office space. Long-term debt is issued in the form of revenue bonds or is
allocated to the Parking System on a pro rata basis from proceeds received from the issuance of general
obligation debt for Parking System related improvements and is paid from revenues derived from the operation of
the Parking System. The allocated debt is additionally secured by an ad valorem tax pledge.

In fiscal year 2008, the Taxable General Improvement Refunding Bond, Series 2004, in the amount of $9,685, was
transferred from governmental activity funds into the Parking System. This transaction was executed in order to
move self-supporting debt into its assigned proprietary funds. In addition to the bond payable, costs of issuance in
the amount of $941, a premium in the amount of $762, and defeased debt in the amount of $1,138, were also
moved to the Parking System. The net dollar impact on both funds was $8,368, which is reflected on the
Statement of Activities under “special items”.

Environmental Services - Environmental Services was established on a financially self-supporting basis in 1988.
Revenues are received from garbage collection fees which are utilized to pay operating costs and indebtedness.
Long-term debt is allocated to Environmental Services on a pro rata basis from proceeds received from the
issuance of general obligation and certificates of obligation debt for Environmental Services related
improvements and is paid from revenues derived from the operation of Environmental Services. The allocated
debt is secured by an ad valorem tax pledge.

In fiscal year 2008, the Environmental Services Fund received proceeds from the Combination Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2007, in the amount of $2,500. These proceeds will be utilized to provide a
Compress Natural Gas fueling facility at the City’s Northeast Service Center, and to repair a slope failure at
Pearsall Landfill.

Additionally, in fiscal year 2008, a portion of the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006, and the Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2006, were transferred from governmental activity funds to the Environmental Services Fund.
The amount of debt moved was $1,360. Cash proceeds in the amount of $1,400 and capital assets related to those
issuances were also transferred to the Environmental Services Fund. This transaction was executed in order to
move self-supporting debt into its assigned proprietary funds. In addition to the bond payable, costs of issuance in
the amount of $3, a premium in the amount of $8, and an arbitrage liability in the amount of $4, were also
moved. The net dollar impact between the governmental activity funds and the Environmental Service Fund was
(547), which is reflected on the Statement of Activities under “special items”.
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Capitalized Interest Costs - Interest costs incurred on revenue bonds, general obligation bonds, and certificates
of obligation totaled $21,220. For fiscal year 2008, an amount of $946 was capitalized for the Airport System,
as part of the cost of additions to the Airport System.

Prior Years’ Defeased Debt - In prior years, the City advance refunded, prior to maturity, certain general
obligation bonds and revenue bonds. The refunding bonds were utilized to purchase securities, which are direct
obligations of the United States of America (the Purchased Securities). The Purchased Securities plus cash were
deposited into irrevocable escrow accounts in amount scheduled to mature in principal amounts that, when
added to interest earned on the Purchase Securities plus remaining balances in the escrow fund, are fully
sufficient to make timely payment on the principal, premium if any, and interest scheduled to come due on the
refunded obligations. The refunded obligations represent a legal defeasance and are no longer a liability of the
City; therefore, they are not included in the City’s financial statements. On September 30, 2008, $17,875 of
previously defeased bonds were outstanding.

The following table is a summary of changes for the fiscal year-ended September 30, 2008 for business-type debt:

| Business-Type Long-Term Debt B
Time of Original Issuance
Balance Balance
Final Outstanding Additions Deletions Outstanding
Original Principal Interest October 1, During During September 30,
Issues Amount Payment Rates (%) 2007 Year Year 2008
Airport System:
Revenue Bonds:

Series 2001 S 17,795 2016 5.375 S 17,795 S - S - S 17,795

Series 2002 92,470 2027 5.000-5.750 89,005 1,275 87,730

Series 2002 PFC 37,575 2027 4.000-5.750 33,350 955 32,395

Series 2003 Refunding 50,230 2013 5.500-6.000 33,420 4,810 28,610

Series 2003B 3,255 2009 2.300-3.000 2,235 1,100 1,135

Series 2005 38,085 2030 3.375-5250 36,405 890 35,515

Series 2006 17,850 2014 5.000 16,385 1,125 15,260

Series 2007 82,400 2032 5.000-5.250 82,400 82,400

Series 2007 PFC 74,860 2032 5.000-5.250 74,860 2,120 72,740
Total Airport System S 414,520 S 228,595 $ 157,260 S 12,275 S 373,580
Parking System:

Revenue Bonds:
Series 2000 S 24,845 2024 5.000-5.750 S 22,775 S - $ 660 S 22,115
General Obligation Bonds:

Series 2004 Refunding ' 13,245 2016 2.800-4.650 9,685 1,130 8,555
Total Parking System S 38,090 S 22,775 $ 9,685 S 1,790 $ 30,670
Environmental Services:

General Obligation Bonds:
Series 2006 * S 970 2026 3.500-5.000 S - S 970 S 30 S 940
Certificates of Obligation:

Series 2006 2 390 2026 3.500-5.000 390 10 380

Series 2007 2,500 2028 4.000-5.000 2,500 75 2,425
Total Environmental Services S 3,860 S - S 3,860 S 115 S 3,745
Total $ 456,470 S 251,370 $ 170,805 S 14,180 $ 407,995

1t As of October 1, 2007, the Taxable General Improvement Refunding Bond, Series 2004 was reclassed from governmental debt to the Parking
Fund. The balance is reflected in this table.

2 As of October 1, 2007, a portion of the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006 and the Certificates of Obligation, Series 2006, was transferred
from governmental activity debt to business-type debt via Environmental Services. The balance is reflected in the table.
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The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt for the City’s Enterprise Funds related to general obligation
bonds, certificates of obligation, and revenue bonds outstanding at September 30, 2008, are as follows:

| Business-Type Long-Term Debt |

Airport System Parking System Environmental Services
Year Ending
Sept. 30: Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2009 S 13,200 $ 19,678 S 32,878 $ 1,950 S 1,565 S 3,515 S 125 S 176 S 301
2010 15,855 19,012 34,867 1,050 1,492 2,542 125 170 295
2011 17,210 18,158 35,368 1,375 1,445 2,820 135 165 300
2012 18,125 17,217 35,342 2,285 1,376 3,661 140 158 298
2013 19,135 16,226 35,361 2,470 1,266 3,736 145 152 297
2014-2018 79,965 66,524 146,489 10,360 4,603 14,963 845 647 1,492
2019-2023 76,120 46,812 122,932 9,045 2,228 11,273 1,080 415 1,495
2024-2028 88,115 24,701 112,816 2,135 123 2,258 1,150 142 1,292
2029-2033 45,855 5,723 51,578
Total $ 373,580 S 234,051 S 607,631 $ 30,670 S 14,098 S 44,768 $ 3,745 $ 2,025 S 5,770
Total Principal and Interest Payable within One Year
Airport Parking Environmental
System System Services
Principal $ 13,200 S 1,950 S 125
Interest 19,678 1,565 176
Total S 32,878 S 3,515 S 301
Leases

The City has entered into various lease purchase agreements for the acquisitions of refuse collection containers,
refuse collections trucks, brush grappler trucks, and brush tractor/trailer combinations. These lease agreements
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and have been recorded at the present value of their future
minimum lease payments as of the date of inception. Payments on each of the lease purchases will be made from
budgeted annual appropriations to be approved by the City Council. While the garbage containers meet the
criteria for capital lease recognition these items were expensed during the current year as their individual costs

were below the City’s capitalization threshold.

The assets acquired through capital leases for business-type activities are as follows:

Machinery and Equipment S 6,518
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,278)
Total $ 5,240
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As of September 30, 2008, the City had future minimum payments under capital and operating leases with a
remaining term in excess of one year for business-type activities as follows:

Capital Operating

Leases Leases Total
Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

2009 S 4,334 S 204 S 4,538

2010 3,947 156 4,103

2011 3,774 8 3,782

2012 1,082 1,082

2013 1,082 1,082

2014-2018 2,052 2,052

Future Minimum Lease Payments 16,271 S 368 $ 16,639
Less: Interest (1,325)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments 14,946
Less: Current Portion (3,887)
Capital Leases, Net of Current Portion $ 11,059

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Long-term obligations and amounts due within one year:

Beginning New Changes Ending Due Within
Balance Issuances During Year Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds S 667,280 S 121,220 S (71,225 S 717,275 S 61,065
Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation 218,185 104,255 (31,060) 291,380 25,315
Taxable Certificates of Obligation 290 (65) 225 70
Tax Notes 60,000 21,270 (63,345) 17,925 4,210
Revenue Bonds 554,372 135,000 (110,960) 578,412 8,160
1,500,127 381,745 (276,655) 1,605,217 98,820
Unamortized Premium/ (Discount) 82,099 12,014 (54,122) 39,991 6,042
Deferred Amount on Refunding (17,283) 268 6,728 (10,287) (1,880)
Total Bonds Payable 1,564,943 394,027 (324,049) 1,634,921 102,982
Total Commercial Paper ' 4,000 6,500 10,500
Other Payables:
Accrued Arbitrage Rebate Payable * 828 24 (351) 501
Capital Leases 14,465 2,799 (4,579) 12,685 4,227
Net OPEB Obligation * 18,267 18,267
Compensated Absences 156,796 48,068 (1,247) 203,617 41,463
Notes Payable 56,171 648 (1,861) 54,958 2,118
Other Payables 4,619 (2,304) 2,315 2,315
Total Other Payables 232,879 69,806 (10,342) 292,343 50,123
Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 1,801,822 S 470,333 $ (334,391) S 1,937,764 S 153,105
Business-Type Activities:
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds $ - §$ 10655 §  (1,160) § 9,495 $ 1,135
Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation 2,890 (85) 2,805 90
Revenue Bonds 251,370 157,260 (12,935) 395,695 14,050
Total Bonds Payable 251,370 170,805 (14,180) 407,995 15,275
Unamortized Premium/Discount 9,842 4,553 (9,144) 5,251 305
Deferred Amount on Refunding (2,937) (1,138) 1,122 (2,953) (583)
Total Bonds Payable 258,275 174,220 (22,202) 410,293 14,997
Other Payables:
Airport System 242 7 (242) 7 7
Norimajor Enterprise Funds 7 5 (10) 2 2
249 12 (252) 9 9
Airport System Arbitrage Rebate Payable * 136 (129) 7 7
Nonmajor Enterprise Arbitrage Rebate Payable * 5 (4) 1 1
Capital Leases Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 2,678 13,137 (869) 14,946 3,887
Net OPEB Obligation ? 3,605 3,605
Accrued Landfill Postclosure Costs > 1,475 670 (109) 2,036 275
Compensated Absences 3,867 266 4,133 689
Total Other Payables 8,405 17,695 (1,363) 24,737 4,868
Total Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities S 266,680 S 191,915 S (23,565) S 435,030 S 19,865

NOTE: The accreted interest through fiscal year 2008 has resulted in an increase of $17,620 in Hotel Tax Revenue Bonds payable in
governmental activities. The accreted interest in the amount of $17,620 is reflected on the Statement of Net Assets, but is not reflected in

this table.

' See Note 7, Commercial Paper Programs and Other Borrowings for a description of the commercial paper program.
2 See Note 9, Postemployment Retirement Benefits for a description of the postemployment program.

3 See Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies for a description of the Arbitrage and Landfill Postclosure Care Costs.
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Governmental and Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Compensated Absences

The following is a summary of compensated absences for the year-ended September 30, 2008:

Governmental Activities

Short-Term Short-Term Total
Fund Type Available Remaining Short-Term Long-Term Total
Governmental Funds S 9,032 S 32,002 S 41,034 S 160,009 S 201,043
Internal Service Funds 429 429 2,145 2,574

Total Governmental Activities S 9,032 S 32,431 S 41,463 S 162,154 S 203,617

The General Fund accounts for approximately 65.0% of the City’s employees; therefore, most of the compensated
absences’ liability has been liquidated from the General Fund. When a City employee terminates, the fund that
their salary was charged to throughout the year will be the same fund that will pay their compensated absences.

[ Business-Type Activities
Fund Short-Term  Long-Term Total
Airport System S 356 S 1,778 S 2,134
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 333 1,666 1,999
Total Business-Type Activities S 689 S 3,444 S 4,133

Conduit Debt Obligations

The City facilitates the issuance of bonds to enable the San Antonio Industrial Development Authority, Health
Facilities Development Corporation and the Education Facilities Corporation, component units of the City, to
provide financial assistance to various entities for the acquisition, construction, or renovation of facilities deemed
to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
property transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. As of September 30, 2008, the aggregate principal
amounts payable are as follows: seven series of Education Facilities Revenue Bonds in the amount of $110,485;
one series of Health Facilities Development Bonds in the amount of $7,540; three series of Industrial Development
Revenue Bonds in the amount of $26,250; and two series of Empowerment Zone Development Revenue Bonds in

the amount of $39,900.

The City also facilitates the issuance of tax-exempt revenue bonds to enable the San Antonio Housing Finance
Corporation to provide financing of residential developments for persons of low and moderate income. The bonds
are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from, and secured by, a pledge of rental receipts. As
of September 30, 2008, 29 series of tax-exempt revenue bonds were outstanding, with an aggregate principal
amount payable of $265,139 and an aggregate principal amount issued of $283,679.

The City has authorized San Antonio Housing Trust Finance Corporation to issue single family and multi-family
mortgage revenue bonds used to provide affordable housing to the City of San Antonio. The bonds are payable
solely out of the revenues and receipts derived from any residential development or home mortgage financed by
the bonds. As of September 30, 2008, the amount of conduit debt was $28,088.
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Primary Government (City) (Continued)

Governmental and Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Conduit Debt Obligations (Continued)

To provide for the acquisition and construction of certain airport facilities, the City has issued Special Airport
Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995. The bond is payable pursuant to lease agreements, which
stipulate that various commercial entities are obligated to pay amounts to a third-party trustee in lieu of lease
payments to the City. These payments are sufficient to pay for the principal, premium, interest, and purchase
price of the bond when they become due. The aggregate principal amount outstanding for the Special Airport
Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995 at September 30, 2008 was $3,400.

The City entered into an agreement with the Port to fund renovations at the Port, in the amount of $20,000. The
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) provides the funding for the loan through a Section 108
Loan. The loan is secured by pledged Port revenues and property and is payable solely from payments received by
the Port. As of September 30, 2008, the aggregate amount of the outstanding loan totaled $14,575. The City is
not liable for this debt. The Port submits payment to the City; the City then directly pays HUD for the principal
and interest payments when due.

The City also facilitates the issuance of tax-exempt revenue bonds for SA Energy Acquisition Public Facility
Corporation (SAEAPFC) to enter into long-term prepaid purchases of natural gas. SAEAPFC in turn, sells
contracted volumes of the prepaid gas to CPS Energy on a monthly basis at a discounted rate, which is passed
on to CPS Energy’s gas customers through reduced utility costs. The bonds are secured by the gas supplier and
are payable primarily from the contracted volume sales and associated gas swap payments. As of September
30, 2008, SAEAPFC issued one series of tax-exempt revenue bonds with an aggregate principal amount issued
and payable of $628,850.

Neither the City, the State of Texas, nor any political subdivision of the State of Texas, is obligated in any
manner for repayment of the aforementioned bonds, loans or leases. Accordingly, the bonds, loans, and leases
are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

CPS Energy

To support its long-term capital financing needs, CPS Energy uses several types of debt instruments. As of January
31, 2008 these included fixed-rate and variable-rate bonds, as well as commercial paper. Relative to the bond
instruments, provisions may be included that allow for refunding after specified time periods during the bond

term.

Current refundings involve issuing new debt (refunding bonds) to redeem existing debt (refunded bonds) that can
be called within 90 days of issuing the refunding bonds. Advance refunding of bonds involves issuing new debt to
redeem existing debt that cannot be called within 90 days of issuing the refunding bonds. In these circumstances,
the refunding bond proceeds are irrevocably escrowed with a third party. These proceeds, and income thereon,
are used to pay the debt service on the refunded bonds until the refunded bonds can be called. Refunding bonds
are generally issued to achieve debt service savings.

Subject to applicable timing restrictions that may prevent early payoff, CPS Energy also has the option to defease
or extinguish debt with cash. A bond defeasance occurs when cash is placed in an irrevocable trust to be used
solely for satisfying scheduled payments of both interest and principal of the defeased debt, which fully

discharges the bond issuer’s obligation.

At the time of an extinguishment with cash, since the issuer no longer has the legal obligation, the defeased debt
is removed from the balance sheets, the related unamortized costs are expensed and the gain or loss is
immediately recognized.
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For current and advance refundings, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the old debt is deferred and reported as a deduction or addition to the new debt liability. The deferred
amount is amortized as a component of interest expense over the shorter remaining life of the refunding or the
refunded debt.

As of January 31, 2008, the bond ordinances for New Series Bonds issued on and after February 1, 1994 contained,
among others, the following provisions:

Revenue deposited in CPS Energy’s General Account shall be pledged and appropriated to be used in the following
priority for:

Maintenance and operating expenses of CPS Energy;

Payments of the New Series Bonds;

Payment of Prior Lien Bonds, including Junior Lien Obligations;

Payment of the Notes and the Credit Agreement (as defined in the ordinance authorizing Commercial Paper);

Payment of any Inferior Lien Obligations issued, which are inferior in lien to the New Series Bonds, the Prior

Lien Bonds and the Notes and Credit Agreement;

e An annual amount equal to 6.0% of the gross revenue of CPS Energy to be deposited in the Repair and
Replacement Account;

e Cash payments and benefits to the General Fund of the City not to exceed 14.0% of the gross revenue of CPS
Energy; and

e Any remaining net revenues of CPS Energy in the General Account to the Repair and Replacement Account,

which is used to partially fund construction costs.

The maximum amount in cash to be transferred or credited to the City’s General Fund from the net revenues of
CPS Energy during any fiscal year shall not exceed 14.0% of the gross revenues of CPS Energy, less the value of gas
and electric services of CPS Energy used by the City for municipal purposes and the amounts expended during the
fiscal year for additions to the street lighting system and other authorized exclusions. The percentage of gross
revenues of CPS Energy to be paid over, or credited to, the City’s General Fund each fiscal year shall be
determined (within the 14.0% limitation) by the governing body of the City.

The net revenues of CPS Energy are pledged to the payment of principal of and interest on the New Series Bonds,
which are classified as Senior Lien Obligations. All New Series Bonds and the interest thereon shall have a first
lien upon the net revenues of CPS Energy.

The Junior Lien, Variable-Rate Demand Obligation (VRDO) bonds are debt instruments of the City payable solely
from, and equally and ratably secured by, a junior lien on and pledge of the net revenues of CPS Energy, subject
and subordinate to liens and pledges securing the outstanding Senior Lien Obligations and any additional Senior
Lien Obligations hereafter issued, and superior to the pledge and lien securing the currently outstanding
Commercial Paper Obligations, all as fully set forth in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Junior Lien

Obligations as noted below:

The City agrees that it will at all times maintain rates and charges for the sale of electric energy, gas, or other
services furnished, provided, and supplied by CPS Energy to the City and all other consumers, which shall be
reasonable and nondiscriminatory and which will produce income and revenues sufficient to pay:

e All operation and maintenance expenses, depreciation, replacement and betterment expenses, and other
costs as may be required by Chapter 1502 of the Texas Government code, as amended;

e The interest on, and principal of, all Parity Bonds, as defined in the New Series Bond Ordinances, as and when
the same shall become due, and for the establishment and maintenance of the funds and accounts created for
the payment and security of the Parity Bonds;
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e The interest on, and principal of, the Prior Lien Bonds, including the Junior Lien Obligations and any
additional Junior Lien Obligations hereafter issued (all as defined in the New Series Bond Ordinances), as and
when the same shall become due, and for the establishment and maintenance of the funds and accounts
created for the payment and security of the Junior Lien Obligations and any additional Junior Lien
Obligations;

e To the extent the same are reasonably anticipated to be paid with available revenues (as defined in the
Ordinance authorizing the Commercial Paper), the interest on and principal of all Notes (as defined in said
Ordinance), and the Credit Agreement (as defined in said Ordinance); and

e Any legal debt or obligation of CPS Energy as and when the same shall become due.

As of January 31, 2008, the Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper (TECP) Ordinance contains, among others, the
following provisions:

To secure the payment of TECP principal and interest, a pledge is made of:

e Proceeds from
— The sale of bonds and additional notes issued for such purposes, and
— The sale of TECP;

e Loans under and pursuant to the revolving credit agreement; and

e The net revenues of CPS Energy, after payment on New Series Bond requirements and Prior Lien Bond
Obligations.

Revenue Bonds

On June 28, 2007, CPS Energy issued $449,410 of New Series 2007 Revenue and Refunding Bonds. Included were
par amounts of $403,215 of Revenue Bonds and $46,195 of Refunding Bonds used to refund New Series 1998A
Refunding Bonds. The refunding transaction resulted in net present value debt service savings of $2,300, or 4.8%
of the par amount of the bonds being refunded. CPS Energy received $419,900 in net proceeds from the issuance
of the Revenue Bonds. These proceeds will be used to fund generation, transmission, and electric and gas
distribution construction projects.

On February 8, 2007, CPS Energy issued $128,845 of tax-exempt New Series 2006B Revenue Refunding Bonds. On
February 9, 2007, the bond proceeds were used to refund $77,100 par value of the taxable New Series 1998B
Bonds and $41,730 par value of the taxable New Series 2000B Bonds. At that time, CPS Energy cash defeased
$6,500 par value of the taxable New Series 1998B Bonds that could not be advance refunded with tax-exempt
debt. The refunding transaction resulted in net present value debt service savings of $6,700, or 5.3% of the par
amount of the bonds refunded.

[ CPS Energy Revenue Bond Summary |
Weighted-Average
Yield on Outstanding January 31,
Maturities Bonds at January 31, 2008 2008

Tax Exempt New Series Bonds, 1994A-2007; 2008-2032 4.7% S 2,965,090
Total 2,965,090
Tax Exempt Variable-Rate Series Bonds, 2003-2004, 2024-2033 4.7% 402,000
Total Long-Term Revenue Bonds Outstanding 3,367,090
Less: Current Maturities of Bonds 152,875
Total Revenue Bonds Outstanding, Net of Current Maturities S 3,214,215
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CPS Energy (Continued)

Revenue Bonds (Continued)

As of January 31, 2008, principal and interest amounts due for all revenue bonds outstanding for each of the next
five years and thereafter to maturity are:

CPS Energy
Principal and Interest Requirements

Year Principal Interest Total

2009 S 152,875 $ 159,065 S 311,940

2010 149,745 151,372 301,117

2011 163,265 143,727 306,992

2012 177,220 135,348 312,568

2013 174,950 126,393 301,343
2014-2018 745,155 502,400 1,247,555
2019-2023 836,935 316,637 1,153,572
2024-2028 600,370 119,728 720,098
2029-2033 366,575 34,877 401,452

Totals $ 3,367,090 $ 1,689,547 S 5,056,637

The above table includes Senior Lien and Junior Lien bonds. Interest on the Senior Lien bonds is based upon the
stated coupon rates of each series of bonds outstanding. The 2003 Junior Lien bonds were issued as variable-rate
bonds and as such have interest rates that reset on a weekly basis. On December 1, 2007, the 2004 Junior Lien
bonds were remarketed for a three-year term at an interest rate of 3.6%. This interest rate will remain in effect
until the next interest reset date of December 1, 2010. The total interest amounts for all revenue bonds
outstanding included a blended interest rate of 2.7% for the 2003 and 2004 Junior Lien Bonds.

The interest rate term mode for the Junior Lien Revenue bonds, or any portion thereof, may be converted to a
different mode, or to an auction rate or term rate with an interest rate period of different duration, at the
direction of the City. Following such a conversion, the Junior Lien Revenue bonds, or portion thereof, will bear
interest at the corresponding daily rate, weekly rate, auction rate, commercial paper rate, term rate, or fixed

rate.

The problems associated with the subprime mortgage markets have had a minimal impact on CPS Energy’s
variable-rate debt. CPS Energy continues to monitor the markets on a daily basis and is in close communication
with its remarketing agents, financial advisors and bond counsel.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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Revenue Bonds (Continued)

| Long-Term Debt Activity

Balance Balance
Final Interest Outstanding Additions Decreases Outstanding
Original Principal Rates February 1, During During January 31,
Issue Amount Payment (%) 2007 Year Year 2008
Revenue and Refunding Bonds:
1994A Tax Exempt S 684,700 2012 5.008 S 68,965 S - $ - S 68,965
1998A Tax Exempt 785,515 2021 4.918 515,495 84,515 430,980
1998B Taxable 99,615 2020 6.343 83,640 83,640
2000A Tax Exempt 170,770 2010 5.374 8,090 3,210 4,880
2000B Taxable 50,425 2021 7.403 41,730 41,730
2001 Tax Exempt 115,280 2011 3.843 85,030 22,415 62,615
2002 Tax Exempt 436,090 2017 4.055 436,090 10,050 426,040
2002 Tax Exempt 140,615 2015 4.751 10,525 10,525
2003 Tax Exempt Junior Lien 250,000 2033 Variable 250,000 250,000
2003A Tax Exempt 93,935 2014 3.675 82,150 295 81,855
2003 Tax Exempt 350,490 2013 3.081 255,320 63,265 192,055
2004 Tax Exempt Junion Lien 160,000 2027 Variable 157,000 5,000 152,000
2005 Tax Exempt 294,625 2020 4.381 294,625 294,625
2005 Tax Exempt 240,675 2025 4.683 240,675 240,675
2005A Tax Exempt 197,335 2025 4.571 197,335 197,335
2006A Tax Exempt 384,185 2025 4.555 384,185 384,185
2006B Tax Exempt 128,845 2021 3.974 128,845 7,900 120,945
2007 Tax Exempt 46,195 2018 4.159 46,195 46,195
2007 Tax Exempt 403,215 2032 4.575 403,215 403,215
3,110,855 578,255 322,020 3,367,090
Bonds Outstanding:
Bond Current Maturities (141,755) (11,120) (152,875)
Bond (Discount)/Premium 104,212 30,653 17,760 117,105
Bond Reacquisition Costs (95,761) (20,512) (24,699) (91,574)
Revenue Bonds, Net 2,977,551 577,276 315,081 3,239,746
Tax Exempt Commercial Paper (TECP) Variable 350,000 100,000 450,000
Total Long-Term Debt, Net S 3,327,551 S 677,276 S 315,081 S 3,689,746

Other Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Credits - The long-term portion of the deferred revenue associated
with a lease/leaseback was recorded as a deferred credit and is being amortized over the life of the lease.

Other liabilities and deferred credits include the obligations of the Decommissioning Trusts, customer service
deposits and advance payments from customers for construction. The long-term portion of the payable to the
Port, formerly known as the Greater Kelly Development Authority, for the purchase of electric and gas properties
is fiscal year 2000, has also been recorded in other noncurrent liabilities.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

On April 30, 1992, the City Council approved the consolidation of City owned utilities related to water including
the water, wastewater, and water reuse systems as the San Antonio Water System.

The System - SAWS has been defined in City Ordinance No. 75686 as all properties, facilities and plants currently
owned, operated, and maintained by the City and/or the board of trustees, for the supply, treatment,
transmission and distribution of treated potable water, chilled water and steam, for the collection and treatment
of wastewater and for water reuse, together with all future extensions, improvements, purchases, repairs,
replacements and additions thereto, and any other projects and programs of SAWS provided, however, that the
City retains the right to incorporate a stormwater system as provided by the Texas Local Government Code.

Funds Flow - City Ordinance No. 75686 requires that gross revenues of SAWS be applied in sequence to (1)
payment of current maintenance and operating expenses including a two-month reserve amount based upon the
budgeted amount of maintenance and operating expenses for the current fiscal year; (2) Debt Service Fund
requirements of Senior Lien Obligations; (3) Reserve Fund requirements of Senior Lien Obligations; (4) Interest
and Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund requirements of Junior Lien Obligations; (5) Interest and Sinking Fund and
Reserve Fund requirements of Subordinate Lien Obligations; (6) payment of amounts required on Inferior Lien
Obligations; and (7) transfers to the City’s General Fund and to the Renewal and Replacement Fund.

Stormwater - The Stormwater Program is a federally mandated program, under the Environmental Protection
Agency, for the monitoring of the quality and quantity of pollution found in rain runoff.

The City and SAWS have administered responsibility for the Stormwater Program and have entered into an
interlocal agreement, which establishes the entities’ respective responsibilities. SAWS’ responsibility includes
various aspects of data collection and analysis related to the water quality of stormwater as well as responsibility
for customer billings and collection. Costs incurred by SAWS related to the Stormwater Program are reflected as
expenses and are reimbursed by the City. Such reimbursements are included in operating revenues.

The following information provides a summary of the operations of the Stormwater Program for the year-ended
December 31, 2007:

December 31,

2007
Revenue S 3,061
Expense 3,798
Revenues under Expense S (737)

As defined by City Ordinance No. 75686, the Stormwater Program is not considered a part of SAWS and as such,
revenues generated by the Stormwater Program are used to pay expenses of the Stormwater Program but are not
available for debt service or for transfer to the City.

Reuse Contract - SAWS has a contract with CPS Energy, the City-owned electricity and gas utility, for the
provision of reuse water. According to City Ordinance No. 75686, the revenues derived from the contract have
been restricted in use to only reuse activities and are excluded from gross revenue for purposes of calculating any

transfers to the City’s General Fund.

No Free Service - City Ordinance No. 75686 also provides for no free services except for municipal firefighting
purposes.
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Revenue Bonds - On January 23, 2007, SAWS issued $8,070 City of San Antonio, Texas Water System Junior Lien
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 through the Texas Water Development Board. The bonds were sold
under the Federal Cross Cutter Program with interest rates ranging from 1.7% to 2.4%. The proceeds from the
sale of the bonds were used to (i) finance capital improvement projects which qualify under the Texas Water
Development Board program, (ii) refund $550 in outstanding commercial paper notes, and (iii) pay the cost of
issuance. The bonds are secured together with other currently outstanding Junior Lien Obligations solely by a
lien on a pledge of net revenues and are subordinate to outstanding Senior Lien Obligations.

On January 23, 2007, SAWS issued $35,375 City of San Antonio, Texas Water System Junior Lien Revenue and
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007A through the Texas Water Development Board. The bonds were sold under the State
Revolving Fund (SRF) Program with interest rates ranging from 2.7% to 3.4%. The proceeds from the sale of the
bonds were used to (i) finance capital improvement projects which qualify under the Texas Water Development
Board program, (ii) refund $14,200 in outstanding commercial paper notes, and (iii) pay the cost of issuance. The
bonds are secured together with other currently outstanding Junior Lien Obligations solely by a lien on a pledge
of net revenues and are subordinate to outstanding Senior Lien Obligations.

On February 22, 2007, SAWS issued $311,160 City of San Antonio, Texas Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2007. The proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used to (i) refund $49,950 City of San Antonio, Texas
Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1997 (Series 1997 Bonds), (ii) refund $237,610 in outstanding
commercial paper notes, (iii) advance refund $25,775 City of San Antonio Water System Revenue Bonds, Series
2002-A (Series 2002-A Bonds), and (iv) pay the cost of issuing the bonds. In addition to the bond proceeds used to
refund $49,950 Series 1997 Bonds, SAWS utilized $25,000 of renewal and replacement funds to redeem the
remaining balance of the Series 1997 Bonds. The refunding of the Series 1997 Bonds reduced total debt service
payments over the next nine years by approximately $8,900 and resulted in an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $3,100. The advance
refunding of the Series 2002-A Bonds reduced total debt service over the next 11 years by approximately $2,000
and provided an economic gain of approximately $1,500.

Senior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, comprised of Series 2001, Series 2002, Series 2002-A, Series 2004,
Series 2005 and Series 2007, outstanding in the amount of $1,153,935 at December 31, 2007, are collateralized by
a senior lien and pledge of the gross revenues of SAWS after deducting and paying the current expenses of
operation and maintenance of SAWS and maintaining a two-month operating reserve for such expenses.

Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, comprised of Series 1999, Series 1999-A, Series 2001, Series 2001-A,
Series 2002, Series 2002-A, Series 2003, Series 2004, Series 2004-A, Series 2007 and Series 2007-A outstanding in
the amount of $244,585 at December 31, 2007, are collateralized by a junior lien and pledge of the gross
revenues of SAWS after deducting the current expenses of operation and maintenance of SAWS, maintaining ‘a
two-month operating reserve for such expenses, and paying debt service on senior lien debt.

Subordinate Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, comprised of Series 2003-A and 2003-B, outstanding in the
amount of $113,990 at December 31, 2007, are collateralized by a subordinate lien and pledge of the gross
revenues of SAWS after deducting and paying the current expenses of operation and maintenance of SAWS,
maintaining a two-month operating reserve for such expenses, and paying debt service on senior lien and junior
lien debt.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)

Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Revenue bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Build, Improve, Extend, Enlarge, and Repair the System 0.60-6.25% $ 1,512,510

The following summarizes transactions of the Revenue Bonds for the year-ended December 31, 2007:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Due Within
Jan. 1, 2007 Additions Reductions Dec. 31, 2007 One Year
Bonds Payable S 1,283,510 S 354,605 $ 125,605 $ 1,512,510 $ 27,630
Deferred Amounts for Issuance
(Discounts)/Premiums/ (Losses) (25,868) 5,119 (1,104) (19,645)
Total Bonds Payable, Net $ 1,257,642 S 359,724 S 124,501 S 1,492,865 S 27,630

The following table shows the annual debt service requirements on SAWS’ debt obligations for each of the next
five years and then in five year increments:

Annual Debt Service Requirements
Revenue and Refunding Bonds

Year Ended
December 31, Senior Lien Junior Lien Subordinate Lien
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2008 S 15,505 S 56,643 S 9,750 S 8,010 S 2,375 S 4,765
2009 17,655 55,874 11,990 7,690 2,485 4,665
2010 16,535 55,049 14,305 7,314 2,600 4,562
2011 17,340 54,225 14,745 6,885 2,720 4,453
2012 18,195 53,366 15,205 6,426 2,840 4,339
2013-2017 108,970 251,077 84,335 24,052 16,265 19,804
2018-2022 174,470 215,725 72,110 9,096 20,320 16,080
2023-2027 260,955 160,060 22,145 1,359 25,405 11,427
2028-2032 183,460 100,963 31,740 5,611
2033-2037 219,325 57,871 7,240 303
2038-2040 121,525 9,284
Total $ 1,153,935 $ 1,070,137 $ 244,585 $ 70,832 $ 113,990 $ 76,009

Pay-Fixed, Receive-Variable Interest Rate Swap - On March 27, 2003, SAWS entered into an interest rate swap
agreement in connection with its City of San Antonio, Texas Water System Subordinate Lien Revenue and
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003-A and 2003-B (the Series 2003 Bonds) issued in a variable interest rate mode. The
Series 2003 Bonds were issued to provide funds for the SAWS’ Capital Improvement Program and to refund certain
outstanding commercial paper notes. The swap was used to hedge interest rates on the Series 2003 Bonds to a
synthetic fixed rate that produced a lower expected interest rate cost than traditional long-term fixed rate
bonds.
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Terms - The terms, including the counterparty credit ratings of the outstanding swap, as of December 31, 2007,
are included in the following table. SAWS’ swap agreement contains scheduled reductions to the outstanding
notional amounts that are expected to follow scheduled reductions in the associated bonds. The Series 2003
Bonds were issued on March 27, 2003, with a principal amount of $122,500. The swap was structured to match
the principal amortization structure and dates of the Series 2003 Bonds. The counterparty to the swap is Bear
Stearns Financial Products, Inc. (Bear Stearns) with the index for the variable-rate leg of the swap being the
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) Municipal Swap Index.

Market Value at

Related CP Rating by Variable-Rate  Fixed Rate December 31,
Bonds Maturity Counterparty Moody's/S&P/Fitch Received Paid 2007
Series 2003  May 1, 2033  Bear Sterns FPI Aaa/AAA/AAA SIFMA 4.18% S (6,277)

The combination of variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a synthetic fixed rate issue. The
synthetic fixed rate protects against the potential of rising interest rates in conjunction with SAWS’ Series 2003
Bond issued in a weekly mode and achieved a lower fixed rate than in the traditional fixed rate bond market at
the time of issuance.

Fair Value - The swap had a negative fair value as of December 31, 2007 of $6,277. This value was calculated
using the zero-coupon method. This method calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap,
assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates.
These net payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical
zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap.

Credit Risk - As of December 31, 2007, SAWS was not exposed to credit risk on its outstanding swap because the
swap had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap become
positive, SAWS would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the swap’s fair value. The swap counterparty,
Bear Stearns FPI, was rated AAA by Fitch’s Ratings and Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investor Service as
of December 31, 2007. The swap agreement contains a collateral agreement with the counterparty.
Collateralization of the fair value of the swap is required should Bear Stearns FPI credit rating fall below the

applicable thresholds in the agreement.

Basis Risk - SAWS is exposed to basis risk to the extent that the interest payments on its variable-rate bonds do
not match the variable-rate payments received on the associated swap. SAWS attempts to mitigate this risk by (a)
matching the notional amount and amortization schedule of the swap to the principal amount and amortization
schedule of the Series 2003 Bonds, and (b) selecting an index for the variable-rate leg of the swap that is
reasonably expected to closely match the interest rate resets on the Series 2003 Bonds over the life of the issue.

Termination Risk - SAWS may terminate the swap at any time for any reason. Bear Stearns FP| may terminate
the swap if SAWS fails to perform under the terms of the agreement. The ongoing payment obligations under the
swap are insured, and Bears Stearns FPI cannot terminate as long as the insurer does not fail to perform. If the
swap should be terminated, the Series 2003 Bonds would no longer carry synthetic fixed interest rates. Also, if at
the time of the termination the swap has a negative fair value, SAWS would be liable to the counterparty for a
payment equal to the swap’s fair value.
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Note 6 Long-Term Debt (Continued)

San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)

Swap Payments and Associated Debt - As of December 31, 2007, debt service requirements of the variable-rate
debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same, are detailed in the following
table. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.

Pay-Fixed, Receive-Variable Interest Rate Swap
Estimated Debt Service Requirements of Variable-Rate
Debt Outstanding and Net Swap Payments

Variable-Rate Bonds

Interest Rate

Year Principal Interest Swap, Net Total
2008 S 2,375 S 3,899 S 866 S 7,140
2009 2,485 3,817 848 7,150
2010 2,600 3,732 829 7,161
2011 2,720 3,643 810 7,173
2012 2,840 3,550 789 7,179
2013-2017 16,265 16,203 3,601 36,069
2018-2022 20,320 13,157 2,924 36,401
2023-2027 25,405 9,349 2,078 36,832
2028-2032 31,740 4,591 1,020 37,351
2033 7,240 248 55 7,543
Total $ 113,990 $ 62,189 S 13,820 $ 189,999

Debt Covenants - SAWS is required to comply with various provisions included in the ordinance which
authorized the bond issuances. SAWS is in compliance with all significant provisions of the ordinance.

Prior Years Defeasance of Debt - In current and prior years, SAWS defeased certain revenue bonds by placing
revenues or proceeds of new bond issues in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments
on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included
in SAWS’ financial statements. At December 31, 2007, $125,540 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

Note Payable - During fiscal year 2000, a contract was entered into between SAWS and CPS Energy whereby
SAWS acquired water rights valued at $3,593 from certain CPS Energy owned properties. In exchange for these
water rights, a note was signed for 116 payments of $40 at an interest rate of 7.5%. The liability as of
December 31, 2007 is reflected in the Statement of Net Assets for both the current portion of $453 and long-
term amount of $118. The annual principal and interest requirements are as follows:

San Antonio Water System
Principal and Interest Requirements

Year Ending Total Annual
December 31, Principal Interest Requirements
2008 S 453 S 27 S 480
2009 118 2 120
Total S 571 S 29 S 600
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Note 6 Long-Term Debt (Continued)

San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)

Accrued Vacation Payable - SAWS records an accrual for vacation payable for all full-time employees and pays
unused vacation hours available at the end of employment with the final paycheck.

Liability Liability
Balance at Balance at Estimated
Beginning of Current-Year End of Due Within
Fiscal Year Accruals Payments Fiscal Year One Year
Year Ended
December 31, 2007 S 5,220 S 4,033 S (3,541) S 5,712 S 3,541

Note 7 Commercial Paper Programs

Primary Government (City)

Commercial Paper

In May 2007, the City adopted an ordinance authorizing the issuance of up to $50,000 in Sales Tax Revenue
Commercial Paper Notes, Series A. Proceeds from the sale of the Commercial Paper Notes are to provide funds
to acquire property for a conservation easement or open-space preservation program with the intent of
protecting water in the Edwards Aquifer as contemplated by the “Edwards Aquifer Protection Venue Project”
(authorized at an election held on May 7, 2005). As of September 30, 2008, $10,500 of Commercial Paper Notes
are outstanding with various maturities ranging from 1 to 270 days.

The Commercial Paper Notes are supported by an irrevocable direct-pay Letter of Credit dated as of May 23, 2007
issued by Bank of America, N.A. The role of the Letter of Credit provider is to assure the timely payment of
principal and interest on the Commercial Paper Notes at maturity. The Letter of Credit provider has issued its
irrevocable, direct-pay Letter of Credit for the account of the City and for the benefit of the issuing and paying
agent on behalf of the note holders. The dealer for the Commercial Paper Notes is Ramirez & Co., Inc. as of July
1, 2008 and the issuing and paying agent is Wells Fargo, N.A. The Letter of Credit in an amount equal to $53,699
enables the City to pay at maturity the principal amount of the Commercial Paper Notes plus up to 270 days
interest, at an assumed interest rate of 10.0% per year; provided however that none of the Commercial Paper
Notes shall mature later than August 1, 2017. Under the terms of the Letter of Credit, the City may borrow up to
an aggregate amount not to exceed $50,000 for the purpose of paying principal due under the Commercial Paper
Notes. The Letter of Credit agreement will expire April 30, 2012, unless previously terminated or extended. As of
September 30, 2008, there have been no borrowings under the Letter of Credit.

The Commercial Paper Notes have been classified as long-term in accordance with the refinancing terms of the
revolving credit agreement included in the Letter of Credit. The Commercial Paper Notes are secured by and
payable from a pledge of and lien on two-thirds of one-eighth of one percent (1/8 of 1.0%) sales and use tax in an
amount not to exceed $90,000.

Commercial Paper

Balance Balance
Outstanding Outstanding
Issue October 1, 2007 Additions  Deletions September 30, 2008
Series A (2007) S 4,000 $ 6,500 S - S 10,500
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Note 7 Commercial Paper Programs (Continued)

CPS Energy
Commercial Paper

In 1988, the City Council adopted an ordinance authorizing the issuance of up to $300,000 in Tax-Exempt
Commercial Paper (TECP). This ordinance, as amended in June 1997, provides for funding to assist in the
financing of eligible projects in an aggregate amount not to exceed $450,000. Eligible projects include fuel
acquisition, capital improvements to the utility systems, and refinancing or refunding any outstanding
obligations which are secured by and payable from a lien and/or a pledge of net revenues of CPS Energy. The
program’s scheduled maximum maturities cannot extend beyond November 1, 2028.

The TECP has been classified as long-term in accordance with the refinancing terms under a revolving credit
agreement with a consortium of banks, which supports the commercial paper. Under the terms of the amended
revolving credit agreement, effective September 6, 2007, CPS Energy may borrow up to an aggregate amount
not to exceed $450,000 for the purpose of paying principal due under the TECP. On September 6, 2007, the
revolving credit agreement was extended until November 1, 2012, and may be renewed for an additional year.

As of January 31, 2008, there have been no borrowings under the revolving credit agreement. The TECP is
secured by the net revenues of CPS Energy. Such pledge of net revenues is subordinate and inferior to the pledge
securing payment of existing New Series Bonds and Junior Lien Obligations.

CPS Energy issued $100,000 of TECP on September 10, 2007. These proceeds will be used to fund generation
projects. The current outstanding TECP balance as of January 31, 2008, is $450,000.

TECP Outstanding $ 450,000
TECP New Money Issues $ 100,000
Weighted Average Interest Rate of Outstanding TECP 3.2%
Average Life of Outstanding TECP (Approximate Number of Days) 109

San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

Commercial Paper

SAWS maintains a commercial paper program that is used to provide funds for the interim financing of a portion
of its capital improvements.

On November 17, 2005, the City Council of the City of San Antonio approved the expansion of the commercial
paper program from $350,000 to $500,000. The increase in the program provides additional interim financing
capacity for the increased level of future expenditures on water resource projects. Notes payable under the
program cannot exceed maturities of 270 days.

The City has covenanted in the ordinance authorizing the commercial paper program (the Note Ordinance) to
maintain at all times credit facilities with banks or other financial institutions which would provide available
borrowing capacity sufficient to pay the principal of the commercial paper program. The credit facility is
maintained under the terms of a revolving credit agreement.

(The remainder of this page left blank i<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>